
 
Page 1 of 2 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, POMONA 

 
Meeting of the Board of Directors, Number 356 

 
September 26, 2013 

2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge 
 

AGENDA 
            

ANNUAL MEETING 
 
 Roll Call              
             Page 
I. PRESIDENT’S REPORT      Dr. J. Michael Ortiz, President 
  

A. Election and Appointment of Board Members – 2013-2014  Dr. J. Michael Ortiz   1 - 2   
(ATTACHMENT 356-I-A)     Chair 
-Election of 2013-14 Board Members: 

Mr. Devon Graves, ASI (Student Director) 
Mr. Johndaniel Morales, ASI (Student Director) 
Mr. Jack Kulp, CEO TrafFix Devices (At Large Director) 
Dr. Sep Eskandari, Chair, Biological Sciences (Faculty Director) 

-Appointment of 2013-14 Board Members:  
Ms. Christine Hall, ASI President (Designated Director) 

        
II. CONSENSUS ITEMS          

Consensus Items: Items in this section are considered to be routine and acted on by the committee in one motion.  
Each item of the Consent agenda approved by the committee shall be deemed to have been considered in full and 
adopted as recommended. Any committee member may request that a consent item be removed from the consent 
agenda to be considered as a separate action item.  If no additional information is requested, the approval vote will 
be taken without discussion. An “A” distinguishes items requiring approval. 

   
A. Reading of Minutes 355     Dr. J. Michael Ortiz   3 - 5 

(ATTACHMENT 356-II-A) A     Chair 
 

B. Board Meeting Schedule – 2013-2014    G. Paul Storey   6 
(ATTACHMENT 356-II-B) A     Executive Director 
 

C. Board Committee Appointments – 2013-2014   G. Paul Storey   7  
(ATTACHMENT 356-II-C) A     Executive Director 
 

D. State Preschool Program Audit 2012-13    David Prenovost   8 - 40   
(ATTACHMENT 356-II-D) A     Senior Manager/CFO  
 

E. Investment Report 4th Quarter 2012-13    David Prenovost   41 - 57 
(ATTACHMENT 356-II-E) A     Senior Manager/CFO  
 

F. Financial Highlights –4th Quarter 2012-13    David Prenovost   58 - 62  
  (ATTACHMENT 356-II-F)     Senior Manager/CFO  

 
G Policy 123-Real Estate Acquisition and Development   G. Paul Storey   63 - 67 

  (ATTACHMENT 356-II-G) A     Executive Director 
 

H. Policy 122-Minimum Authorized Signatures    David Prenovost   68 - 72 
  (ATTACHMENT 356-II-H) A     Senior Manager/CFO 
          
III. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Audited Financials Statements and     David Prenovost   73 - 154   
Single Audit Report 2012-13     Senior Manager/CFO  
(ATTACHMENT 356-III-A) 
 

B. Endowment Spending Distribution Approval    David Prenovost   155 - 160 
  (ATTACHMENT 356-III-B)     Senior Manager/CFO 
   

C. CPP Beer Brewing Program Microbrewery Model at CTTI  G. Paul Storey   161 - 166 
  (ATTACHMENT 356-III-C)     Executive Director 
 



Board of Directors Meeting #356 
September 26, 2013 
 

 
Page 2 of 2 

 
IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

None 
 
V. INFORMATION ITEMS 

The following items provide information and reports by management staff to the committee.  Staff and committee 
may engage in discussion on any item if requested by committee member or staff member. 

 
A. General Counsel Introduction and Presentation   G. Paul Storey   167 - 173 

       Executive Director 
 

B. Sodexo Partnership Report      G. Paul Storey   174 - 176 
       Executive Director 
 

C. CSU Compliance Audit Update     David Prenovost   177 - 183 
       Senior Manager/CFO 
 

D. Capital Project Updates     G. Paul Storey   184 - 192 
       Executive Director 

 
 E. Executive Director’s Report     G. Paul Storey   193 - 195  
  -NACAS Campus Visit     Executive Director    
           

 
V. OPEN FORUM 



Faculty Director Sep Eskandari is a professor in the Biological Sciences Department, 
and currently serves as the Chair of the department. He has been a faculty member at 
Cal Poly Pomona since Fall 2000. His connection to Cal Poly Pomona goes back a long 
way, however, as he pursued his undergraduate (chemistry, 1993) and master’s 
(biology, 1995) studies at Cal Poly Pomona. After completing a Ph.D. in Physiology at 
UCLA (1999), and a post-doctoral fellowship also at UCLA (Physiology and 
Neurobiology, 2000), he returned to his home institution. In addition to maintaining an 
active research program (over 40 refereed journal articles), he regularly contributes to 
various department, college, and university committees. 
 
 
At Large Director Jack Kulp Over 26 years ago Jack Kulp and his wife Sue, co-
founded TrafFix Devices Inc. TrafFix Devices manufactures and distributes highway 
safety products for the traffic control and transportation industry. TrafFix has since 
grown to 150 employees, dispersed throughout the country – from the corporate offices 
in San Clemente, to plants in Fairfield, Iowa; Adelanto, California; and Tijuana, Mexico; 
producing over 100 traffic control and safety products. TrafFix Devices is now one of the 
largest producers of road safety products in the world – with most of TrafFix products 
continuing to be manufactured in the United States.  
 
Student Director Devon Graves grew up in Murrieta, California where he graduated 
from Vista Murrieta High school in 2011. Devon started as a student-athlete at Cal Poly 
Pomona where he was a red-shirt on the Men’s Basketball team. In August 2012, 
Devon was appointed to the position of Associated Students Incorporated Attorney 
General. He finished his term as attorney general being named ASI 2012-13 ‘Rookie of 
the Year’. In June 2013, Devon was elected to serve as Chair of the California State 
Student Association (CSSA) for the 2013-14 year. Devon is currently in his Junior/third 
year at Cal Poly Pomona majoring in Political Science with a minor in Public Relations. 
He has post graduate plans to attend law school. Devon is supported by his family: 
father and mother, Xavier and Cynthia, and siblings Jamarr and Maya.  

Student Director Johndaniel Morales is going into his last year, majoring in 
International Business & Marketing. He is currently the ASI Attorney General and 
Competition Chair for Enactus, an entrepreneur club under CBA. Last year he was on 
the E-Board of the Business Council and was a Student-At-Large for ASI’s Facilities & 
Operations Committee and Personnel Review Committee. Before switching over to 
business, he was an art major. He still loves the arts but believes his real passion is for 
people and business. He feels that Cal Poly’s “Learn By Doing” philosophy has really 
allowed him to thrive and grow as a person (and have fun while doing so). He believes 
in collaboration and serving a cause bigger than himself, which is why he chose not to 
work his last year of school and put all his energy into being as involved as possible 
instead. In his free time he likes to run and workout.  

 

 

1



Designated Director Christine Hall is going into her fourth and final year at Cal Poly 
Pomona. She is studying Communication and has a minor in Spanish. The Los Angeles 
native has aspirations to further her education and pursue a Master’s degree in 
Business Administration. She enjoys road trips, cooking, going to the movies, and 
napping. She has been extremely involved and taken on many leadership roles in her 
time at Cal Poly Pomona. These roles include: Orientation Leader, Front-desk Assistant 
at the Office of Financial Aid, Black History Month Committee Secretary, Black Advance 
Banquet Chair, Fundraising Chair for Shades of Queens, member of Chi Omega 
Fraternity for Women, ASI Vice President, and she currently serves as the 2013-14 ASI 
President. 
 
 

2



     CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona 

 
MINUTES OF MEETING NO. 355 

OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

May 23, 2013 
 

Pursuant to a written order by Dr. J. Michael Ortiz, delivered to each member of the Board of Directors on April 10, 2013, the Board of Directors of the 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. assembled and held a meeting on the campus of the California State Polytechnic University, Pomona, 

California, at 2:00 p.m. on May 23, 2013. 

 

Present were; Dr. Ed Barnes, Mr. Evin Coukos, Dr. Marten denBoer, Ms. Susie Diaz, Ms. Rachel Dominguez, Dr. Winny Dong, Mr. Tom Goff, Mr. 

Jordon Kittleson, Mr. John McGuthry, Dr. Edward Merritt, Mr. Lowell Overton, Ms. Cassandra Reyes, Mr. Oliver Santos, Mr. Mickey Segal, Mr. David 

Speak, and Ms. Kathy Tully.  

. 

Absent were; Ms. Mei Lien Chang, Dr. Doug Freer, Dr. Richard Lapidus, Dr. J. Michael Ortiz, Mr. Christopher Osuala, Mr. James Priest, and Mr. Scott 

Warrington. 

 

Ms. Anne McLoughlin, Mr. Dennis Miller, Ms. Debra Poe, Mr. David Prenovost, Ms. Karen Sandoval and Mr. G. Paul Storey were invited guests.  

 

Board Vice Chairman Dr. Ed Barnes called the meeting to order at 2:10pm, on behalf of Dr. J. Michael Ortiz.  

 

First order of business was the election of 2013-14 Board Members; 

 

Ms. Cynthia Williams - election to Staff Director 

Mrs. Mei Lien Chang – re-election to At-Large Member 

Ms. Kathy Tully – re-election to At-Large Member  

Mr. Lowell Overton – re-election to Community Member 

Mr. Oliver Santos – re-election to Community Member 

Mr. Thomas Goff – re-election to At-Large Member 

Mr. Mickey Segal – re-election to At-Large Member 
  

A motion was made by Marten denBoer to approve the election of 2013-14 Board Members. The motion was seconded by David Speak and approved,  

16 Ayes, 0-Abstentions, 0-Nays. 

 

I. PRESIDENT’S REPORT – none given 
 

Dr. Ortiz was in Colorado attending the National Championship Track and Field Events to honor the largest number of Cal Poly athletes ever in 

attendance. 

 
II. CONSENSUS ITEMS 

 

A. Reading of Board Meeting Minutes # 354 

 

B. Election of Officers – 2013-2014 

 

C. Financial Highlights-3rd Quarter 2012-13 

 

D. 2012-13 External & Financial Single Auditor Selection 

 

E. 2012-13 Child Care Auditor Selection 

 

F. Investment Report 3rd Quarter 2012-13 

 

Ed Barnes stated the Consensus Items were approved by consent. 

 
III  ACTION ITEMS  

      

A. Budget 2013-2014 

 

3



Minutes - Board of Director’s Meeting  
May 23, 2013 
Page 2 

 
Paul Storey explained the Foundation Budget Process Policy #18 stipulates that Foundation Administration present annually the operating 

and capital proposed budgets, forecasts and supporting detailed schedules and information to the Board of Directors. 

 

The Cal Poly Pomona Foundation’s proposed operating budgets and forecast include: General Activities (Administration; Real Es tate & 

Investments) Enterprise Activities (Bookstore/Dining Services/Kellogg West/Foundation Housing); Supplemental Programs (Research Office, 

Agriculture Units, Continuing Education and Unrestricted Foundation Programs); Designated Gifts; Reserves and Capital Budgets ; along with 

the Summary of Sources and Uses and Working Capital; Statement of Activities; Debt Service Coverage; and Long Term Cash 

Plan/Reserves. 

 

The proposed restricted and unrestricted budget is projected to generate a surplus of $13.1 million based upon budgeted revenues of $74.8 

million and budgeted expenditures of $61.6 million.  The proposed unrestricted operating revenues of $53.3 million and offset by the 

expenditures of $51.8 million generate a net surplus of $1,486,778.  

 

The budget includes contributing 10.05% to the CALPERS 2% at 55 years of age retirement Risk Pool for employees hired on or before June 

26, 2011, and 8.049% for employees hired thereafter to the CALPERS 2% at 60 retirement Risk Pool  and 6.25% for employees hired on or 

after January 1, 2013, for a total of approximately $790,000; and no change to salary grades ranges and a 3% or approximately $143,000 

wage adjustment for eligible employees, $1.0 million to the VEBA Trust, capital expenditures of $3.82 million and carryover of $489K for a 

total of $4.3million, principal debt payment of $780,000, contribution to reserves $2.5 million and the Designated Gift  of $1,626,640 to the 

University. 

 
A motion was made by Marten denBoer to approve the Proposed Operating and Capital Budgets for fiscal year 2013-14 and forecasts for 

fiscal year 2012-13 for General Activities, Enterprise Activities, Supplemental Programs, Designated Gifts, Reserves and the long-range cash 

plan/reserve. The motion was seconded by David Speak and approved 16 Ayes, 0-Abstentions, 0-Nays. 

 

B.    457 Plan Employee Conversion 

 

 Dennis Miller explained the PARS Vacation/Sick Leave Conversion Program allows the Foundation to provide eligible employees a 

supplemental retirement plan by contributing unused vacation and sick leave into a PARS account on a tax-deferred basis. A conservative 

forecast for unused sick leave conversion is $61,710 and $82,165 for unused vacation. When employees convert unused vacation time, there 

is no cost for Foundation as the amounts have already been earned and accrued. In addition, there is a reduction in payroll taxes of about 9% 

for these conversions. 

 

 A motion was made by Tom Goff to approve the funding for the PARS Vacation/Sick Leave Conversion Plan effective July 1, 2013.  The 

motion was seconded by Oliver Santos and approved, 16 Ayes, 0-Abstentions, 0-Nays. 

  

C. Dining Service/Bookstore Summer and Fall Operating Hours  

 

Paul Storey explained the Program Committee was asked to review planned hours of operation for the time periods indicated at their May 6th 

meeting. There were a couple of questions from the committee that needed clarification prior to approval of these hours of operation, specifically 

regarding the closure of Denny’s/Vista over the summer months.  

 

In order to ensure the needs of resident students at the suites are met over the summer, the Foundation proposes the following; 

       The Bronco Student Center will open additional venues, including QDoba, Subway, Poly Fresh, and Peets/Freshens. 

Los Olivos will remain open throughout the summer during periods when resident student meal plans are active. The only exception would be 

the July 4 holiday. The Poly Trolley food truck will be in operation, and will make the area in and around building 52 a regular stop. Vista 

Market will be open 7 days a week from 11 am to 7 pm. Denny’s Diner will be open Monday thru Thursday 11 am to 5 pm. 

 
 A motion was made by Susie Diaz to approve the hours of operation proposed by Foundation Management. The motion was seconded by 

Marten denBoer and approved, 16 Ayes, 0-Abstentions, 0-Nays. 

 

D. Policy 157 Update 

 

David Prenovost requested changes be made to the Foundation Purchasing and Capitalization Policy #157 in order to be in-line with the 

changes made to Policy #118 that was approved at the last board meeting in February. 

 

A motion was made by Marten denBoer to approve the suggested changes to the Foundation Purchasing and Capitalization Policy #157. The 

motion was seconded by Susie Diaz and approved, 16 Ayes, 0-Abstentions, 0-Nays. 

4



Minutes - Board of Director’s Meeting  
May 23, 2013 
Page 3 

 
  

IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

         None 
 

V. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A.    2013 CSU Auxiliary Compliance Audit 

  

 David Prenovost explained the compliance audit fieldwork began on March 25, 2013 and ended April 26, 2013. The CSU auditors interviewed 

key personnel and reviewed Federal Statutes, California code of regulations, Trustee resolutions, Executive Orders, Campus and Foundation 

policies/practices and sound business practices to develop a risk assessment and scope to produce an audit program.  

 

An informal exit conference was held by the CSU auditors on April 26, 2013 and preliminary observations were presented for further 

discussion and clarification. The auditors will prepare a draft report and a final report within the calendar year that will include the 

Foundation’s responses and timeline for implementing any corrective action. 

  

B. Executive Director’s Report 

 

1. The W.K. Kellogg Foundation conducted a financial audit on the Kellogg grant mid-May.  The auditor stated the audit went well; he will be 

issuing a report soon, and mentioned the Kellogg Foundation was very pleased with their relationship with Cal Poly Pomona.  

 

 2. Faculty/Staff Housing update; Kellogg Track has 3 houses in escrow, appraising at approximately $240,000. The Fair Oaks Track has 3 

homes in escrow and 2 homes available for sale for new faculty. These homes are appraising in the $270,000 range.   

 

3. The Foundation Dining Services Operations has received an Honorable Mention Award by the National Association of College and 

University Food Services.  

 

 4. Paul invited Board members to a reception immediately following this meeting, served by the new Poly Trolley Food Truck. 

 
        OPEN FORUM 

   

  Ed Barnes recognized and thanked Board members whose terms have ended; 

 

  Dr. Ed Merritt – Term as Faculty Director ended – 4 years of service 

   Ms. Cassandra Reyes – Term as Staff Director ended - 6 years of service 

  Mr. Christopher Osuala – Term as ASI President ended 

  Mr. Evin Coukos – Term as Student Director ended 

   Mr. Jordan Kittleson – Term as Student Director ended 

    Mr. Phil Sales – Term as Audit Committee member ended 

 

 

  Meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m.  

 

 

     

Respectfully submitted, 

  

 

Dr. Winny Dong, 

Secretary/Treasurer 

5



Ael
Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation 
 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
“Quality Service Supporting Quality Education” 

 
 

2013-2014 Yearly Board of Directors Meeting Schedule 
 

  
• Meeting 356 Thursday September 26, 2013 2:00-4:00pm Garden Vista Room @ KW 

 Thursday October 10, 2013  Hot Dog Caper 11:30 am – 1:00 pm 
 

• Meeting 357 Wednesday November 13, 2013 2:00-4:00pm Garden Vista Room @ KW 
 

• Meeting 358 Thursday  February 20, 2014  2:00-4:00pm Garden Vista Room @ KW 
 

• Meeting 359 Thursday May 22, 2014 (Budget) 2:00-4:00pm Garden Vista Room @ KW 
 
 Tuesday September 23, 2014 Hot Dog Caper 11:30 am – 1:00 pm 

• Meeting 360 Tuesday September 23, 2014 2:00-4:00pm Garden Vista Room @ KW 
   

 
Advance notice will be given to all committee members prior to establishing a committee 
meeting. 
 
 
Finance Committee Meetings:   Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Investment Committee Meetings:  Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Personnel Committee Meetings:    Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Program Committee Meetings:    Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Audit Committee Meetings:   Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Nominating Committee Meetings:  Committee members will be contacted. 
 
 
Executive Committee Meetings:  Committee members will be contacted. 

6



 
CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Quality Service Supporting Quality Education 
 

2013-2014 Committee Assignments 
 

Finance Committee  Investment Committee 
Dr. Ed Barnes, Chair  
Ms. Christine Hall 
Dr. Marten denBoer 
Ms. Rachel Dominguez 

 Mr. Thomas Goff, Chair 
Dr. Ed Barnes 
Dr. Richard Lapidus 
Ms. Kathy Tully 

Dr. Doug Freer  *Mr. Darwin Labordo 
Mr. Scott Warrington 
Dr. David Speak 

  

Mr. John McGuthry 
Mr. Jack Kulp   
Mr. Oliver Santos 
Mr. Mickey Segal 

  

*Mr. Darwin Labordo   
   
Personnel Committee  Program Committee 
Dr. Ed Barnes, Chair  Dr. Doug Freer, Chair 
Mrs. Mei Lien Chang 
Mr. Devon Graves 

 Dr. Winny Dong 
Mr. Johndaniel Morales 

Dr. Winny Dong 
Mr. James Priest 
Dr. Sep Eskandari 

Mr. John McGuthry 
Mr. Scott Warrington 
Ms. Cynthia Williams 

Dr. Richard Lapidus  Dr. Sep Eskandari 
Ms. Susie Diaz 
*Ms. Sharon Reiter 

 Mr. Lowell Overton 
Ms. Susie Diaz 

  *Mr. Frank Ewers 
   
   

   
Audit Committee  Executive Committee 
*Ms. Joice Xiong, Chair  Dr. J. Michael Ortiz 
Mr. James Priest  Dr. David Speak 
Mr. Devon Graves  Dr. Ed Barnes 
*Mr. Darwin Labordo  Ms. Rachel Dominguez 

  Ms. Christine Hall 
  Mr. Oliver Santos 
Nominating Committee   
Will be appointed April 2014   

 
 
* Non-Board Member 

7



Memorandum

Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

September 26, 2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

David F. Prenovost
Senior Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer

2012-2013 STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM AUDIT

Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

GYL Decauwer, LLP has completed the audit of the State Preschool Program grants from the
California Department of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The audit report
and the results of the audit are as follows:

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

The results of GYL Decauwer's tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance relating to the calculation of attendance that is required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards and will be reported
accordingly. In addition, there were no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that GYL Decauwer
considered to be material weaknesses.

PROPOSED ACTION:

WHEREAS, The Foundation is requesting the Board of Directors accept GYL Decauwer's State
Preschool Program Audit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc., Board of
Directors accepts the GYL Decauwer's State Preschool Program Audit Report.

Passed and adopted this 26th day of September 2013.

By: (2-e-4'-c-

Rachel Dominguez, Sedetary
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

A
Date:

To:

Memorandum

September 26,2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

,)Aafuh
From: David F. Prenovost

Senior Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer

Subject: 2012-2013 STATE PRESCHOOL PROGRAM AUDIT

GYL Decauwer, LLP has completed the audit of the State Preschool Program grants from the
California Department of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The audit report
and the results of the audit are as follows:

1. Report on Compliance and on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards.

The results of GYL Decauwer's tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance relating to the calculation of attendance that is required to
be reported under Government Auditing Standards and will be reported
accordingly. ln addition, there were no matters involving the internal
control over financial reporting and its operation that GYL Decauwer
considered to be material weaknesses.

PROPOSED AGTION:

WHEREAS, The Foundation is requesting the Board of Directors accept GYL Decauwer's State
Preschool Program Audit Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc., Board of
Directors accepts the GYL Decauwer's State Preschool Program Audit Report.

Passed and adopted this 26th day of September 2013.

8l H[ Pummt

Founilrtion

Rachel Dominguez,
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.



ecauwer LLPIIIV
Certified Public Accountants V Business Co ns u It n t s

4120 Concours
Suite 100
Ontario, CA 91764

909.948.9990
800.644.0696
FAX 909.948.9633

gyld@gyldecauwercom

www.gyldecauwer.com

tteCr
DrTrI\ATIO\

September 3, 2013

JOHN LERIAS, CPA

STEPHEN C. WILLIANIS, CPA

JOSEPH 0. Romao, CPA

To the Management and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Cal Poly
Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs

We have audited the financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool,
General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs for the year ended June 30, 2013, and have
issued our report thereon dated September 3, 2013. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards and Government Auditing Standards, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter
to you dated February 5, 2013. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you
the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Findings

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The
significant accounting policies used by Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool,
General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies
was not changed during 2012. We noted no transactions entered into by the Organization
during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that
future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive
estimate affecting the financial statements was:

Management's estimate of the allocation of costs is utilized to allocate costs to each
program. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the cost
allocation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole. The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and
clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the
misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

CPA RINTEERNATIIONAL

"*"." Crowe Horwath International.
9



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
Communication with Governance
Page 2 of 2

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter,
whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report.
We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation
letter dated September 3, 2013.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to the Organization's financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as the Organization's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in
the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Matters

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not changed
from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial
statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. and is
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

AbJ_
GYL Decauwer
Ontario, California

GYLb
OMR' LLP CPAs & Business Consultants

10



Client: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
Engagement: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 6/30/13
Period Ending: 6/30/2013
Workpaper: Adjusting Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # I
Reclassify CSPP reserve account.

2500-60 GRANTS & CONTRACTS PAYABLE
2600-10 SDE RESERVES

LR-1

102.03
102.03

Total 102.03 102.03

Adjusting Journal Entries JE # 2 130-3
Record supplemental revenue and expenditures.

7135-70 INDIRECT COSTS 36,670.06
7190-70 MISCELLANEOUS 62,779.00
7272-70 SALARIES/REIMBURSED 79,167.83
7311-70 STAFF BENEFITS/REIMBURSED 26,911.34
7326-70 SUPPLIES/EXPENDABLE 21,792.16
4700-70 SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUE 227,320.39

Total 227,320.39 227,320.39

11



9/4/2013
5:00 PM

Client: 80244.1 - Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
Engagement: 80244.1 - Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 6/30/13
Period Ending: 6/30/2013
Trial Balance: 130-1 - Trial Balance
Workpaper: 140-2 - Reclassifying Journal Entries Report

Account Description W/P Ref Debit Credit

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 3 TB
Reclass Due from ASI balance

1100-30
2500-10
1100-10
1128-30

Total

ACCTS RECEIVABLE-INVOICES
DUE TO ASI
ACCTS RECEIVABLE-PARENT FEES
DUE FROM ASI

Reclassifying Journal Entries JE # 4 AC-1
Reclassify revenue to reconcile revenues.

4600-30 EARNED EQUITIES -FUND 2
5102-10 SUBSIDIZED REVENUES
4600-10 EARNED EQUITIES -FUND 2
5102-30 SUBSIDIZED REVENUES

Total

13,064.31
521.26

13,585.57

13,065.00
521 00

13,586.00

521.26
13,064.31
13,585.57

521.00
13,065.00
13,586.00

1 of 1

12



GlimmerU1'
Certified Public Accountants . Business Consultants

L mr.
Hauer LLPIIIV

Certified Public Accountants r).,. Business Consul !ants

 

 

 

 

      
CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE 

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS 
 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2013 
(Summarized Totals for 2012) 

 
  
 
  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

13



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information 1

Independent Auditor's Report 2-3

Statement of Financial Position 4

Statement of Activities 5

Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to Financial Statements 7-8

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards 9

Combined Schedule of Revenue and Expenditures by State Contracts 10

Schedule of Expenditures by State Categories 11

CSPP-2150 State Preschool
Audited Final Attendance and Fiscal Report 12-15

CPKS-2025 Prekindergarten and Family Literacy Support
Audited Final Revenue and Expense Report 16

CCTR-2075 General Child Care & Development
Audited Final Revenue and Expense Report 17-19

Audited Final Reserve Account Cash Activity Report 20

Schedule of Renovation and Repair Expenditures 21

Schedule of Equipment Expenditures 22

Notes to Supplementary Information 23

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards 24-25

14



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

NAME OF AGENCY:

PROGRAM:

TYPE OF AGENCY:

ADDRESS OF AGENCY:

NAME AND ADDRESS OF:

Chief Financial Officer:

Preschool Director:

TELEPHONE NUMBER:

PERIOD COVERED BY THE

EXAMINATION:

NUMBER OF DAYS OF

OPERATION OF AGENCY:

SCHEDULE HOURS OF

OPERATION EACH DAY:

GENERAL INFORMATION

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

State Preschool
Prekindergarten and Family
Literacy Support
General Child Care and
Development

Non-Profit State of California
Foundation

CSPP-2150

CPKS-2025

CCTR-2075

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
State Preschool Office
3801 W. Temple Ave., Building 116
Pomona, California 91768

David Prenovost
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
3801 West Temple Avenue, Building 55
Pomona, California 91768

Yvonne Bailey

Foundation Office
State Preschool Office

July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2013

245 days
245 days

Opening time:
Closing time:
Number of days per week:

8:45 a.m.
12:30 a.m.

(909) 869-2948
(909) 869-2284

CSPP-2150
CCTR-2075

1:00 p.m.
5:00 p.m.
5

15



G L
ecauwerilL

Certified Public Accountants I) Business Consultants

4120 Concours
Suite 100
Ontario, CA 91764

909.948.9990
800.644.0696
FAX 909.948.9633

gyld@gyldecauwer.com

www.gyldecauwer.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
State Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs
Pomona, California

JOHN LERIAS, CPA

STEPHEN C. WILLIAMS, CPA

JOSEPH 0. ROMERO, CPA

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
State Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs, which comprise the
financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related statements of activities and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
the basis for our opinion.

2

CPA RINTEERNATIIONAL

Crowe Horwath International.
16



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten
Programs as of June 30, 2013, and the results of its activities and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and
Prekindergarten Programs 2012 fiscal year financial statements, and our report dated September 11, 2012,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those audited financial statements. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, is consistent, in all
material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information presented on
pages 9 - 23, is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and in conformity with the Audit Guide of Child Development and
Nutrition Programs issued by the California Department of Education. In our opinion, the information is fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 3, 2013,
on our consideration of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and
Prekindergarten Programs' internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in consideration of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and
Prekindergarten Programs' internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

1,

GYL Decauwer LLP
Ontario, California

September 3, 2013

G Lig
HallWeriirk. CPAs & Business Consultants 3

17



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2013

(Summarized Totals for 2012)

ASSETS 2013 2012

Claims on cash $ $ 15,078
Grants and contracts receivable 82,092 42,443
Due from ASI 49,705 44,154

Total Assets $ 131,797 $ 101,675

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Claims on cash $ 81,883 $

Accounts payable 40,412 75,332
Accrued expenses 9,400 16,381

SDE reserves 102 9,962

Total Liabilities 131,797 101,675

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 131,797 $ 101,675

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
418



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the year ended June 30, 2013

(Summarized Totals for 2012)

REVENUE
2013 2012

State apportionments $ 302,291 $ 435,736
Federal awards 135,798 59,819
Transfer from CD reserves 9,880
Other grants 227,320
Parent fees-certified 33,359 47,246
Parent fees-non certified 101,349 81,824
Interest income 45 735

Total Revenue 810,042 625,360

EXPENSES
Program Services

Child care services 730,209 567,037
Support Services

Administrative costs 79,833 58,323
Total Expenses 810,042 625,360

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Unrestricted Net Assets - beginning of year

Unrestricted Net Assets - end of year $

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
519



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

(Summarized Totals for 2012)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Decrease (increase) in operating assets

2013 2012

Grants and contracts receivable $ (39,649) $ (19,952)
Parent fees receivable (5,551) (41,075)

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Accounts payable (34,920) 11,614
Accrued expenses (6,981)
SDE reserves (9,860) (17,879)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (96,961) (67,292)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
None

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
None

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 15,078 82,370

Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ (81,883) $ 15,078

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
620



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Revenues - The State Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs
("Programs"), component units of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. ("Foundation"), are
funded by the California Department of Education. The purpose of the programs is to
provide day care and child development services. The component units have earned
revenue of $447,969. As required by the California Department of Education, Cal Poly
Pomona Foundation, Inc. is mandated to obtain an audit of the component unit and submit
the audited financial statements and supplementary information of the component unit as
well as the audited financial statements of the entire Foundation.

Property and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or, if donated, at
their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. Depreciation is provided using
the straight-line method over the assets' estimated useful lives. It is the Foundation's
policy to capitalize equipment and property with a cost of $5,000 or greater.

Property and equipment acquired by the Foundation's Programs are considered owned by
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. However, government funding sources maintain an
equitable interest in the property purchased with grant monies as well as the right to
determine the use of any proceeds from the sale of these assets.

Income Taxes - No provision for income taxes has been made in the accompanying
financial statements, since the Foundation has been granted exemptions from Federal and
State income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Programs are affiliated and integrated with the
Foundation, who performs a number of fiscal services on behalf of the program, including
the management of cash. Therefore, the cash and cash equivalents are displayed in the
statement of cash flows as claims on cash.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Summarized Prior Year Information - The financial statements include summarized
comparative information from the prior year, which is not presented by net class or include
comparative footnotes, and does not include sufficient detail to conform with GAAP. This
information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for
the year ended June 30, 2012, for which the comparative information was extracted.

721



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2013

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Date of Managements' Review - The Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through
September 3, 2013 the date which the financial statements were available to be issued and
there are no subsequent events requiring disclosure.

Note 2 Related Party Transactions

The State Preschool and Prekindergarten operate from facilities paid for by California State
Polytechnic University, Pomona. The Foundation performs fiscal administration for the
State Preschool and Prekindergarten. The Foundation's fee is 8% for fiscal administration.

The State Preschool and Prekindergarten teaching staff consist of employees from
Associated Students, Inc. On a monthly basis, the State Preschool and Prekindergarten
reimburses Associated Students, Inc. for salaries, benefits and pension cost. Associated
Students, Inc. also collects parent fees for both certified and non-certified children that then
are remitted to the Foundation.

Note 3 State Child Development Reserves

The funding agreements with the California Department of Education (CDE) allow the
Foundation to record "reserves" for the amounts not earned during the current year, up to
certain amounts. These reserves are presented as a liability for financial statement
purposes and are not included in the current year revenue. As of June 30, 2013, the
reserves' total balance was $102.

Note 4 Contingencies

The Foundation has received grant funds for specific purposes that are subject to review
and audit by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate expenditure
disallowances under terms of the grants, it is believed that any required reimbursements
will not be material.

8

22



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

23



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

CFDA
Grantor/ Program Title Number

Agency or
Pass-through

Number

Program
or Award
Amount

State
Disbursements/

Expenditures

U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services:

Passed through California Department
of Education:
State Preschool 93.596/93.575 CSPP-2150 $ 76,876 $ 76,876
General Child Care & Development 93.596/93.575 CCTR-2075 58,922 58,922

Total Federal Awards $ 135,798 $ 135,798

State Preschool CSPP-2150 $ 257,542 $ 246,729
General Child Care & Development CCTR-2075 57,487 53,064
Prekindergarten and Family Literacy Support CPKS-2025 2,500 2,498

Total State Awards $ 317,529 $ 302,291

See accompanying notes to supplementary information
924



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES BY STATE CONTRACTS
For the year ended June 30, 2013

REVENUE

CSPP-2150
State

Preschool

CPKS-2025
Prekindergarten

and Family
Literacy Support

CCTR-2075
General

Child Care &
Development Total

Federal awards $ 76,876 $ 58,922 $ 135,798
State apportionments 246,729 2,498 53,064 302,291
Transfers from CD reserves 9,880 9,880
Other grants 227,320 227,320
Parent fees-certified 28,531 4,828 33,359
Parent fees-non certified 65,285 36,064 101,349
Interest income 45 45

Total Revenue 654,666 2,498 152,878 810,042

EXPENDITURES
Certificated salaries and wages 298,857 81,330 380,187
Employee benefits 142,669 42,068 184,737

Total Salaries and Related Expenses 441,526 123,398 564,924

Books and supplies 31,592 2,313 1,298 35,203
Services and other operating expenses 113,224 16,858 130,082
Indirect cost rate 68,324 185 11,324 79,833

Total Expenditures 654,666 2,498 152,878 810,042

See accompanying notes to the supplementary information
1025



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY STATE CATEGORIES
For the year ended June 30, 2013

CPKS-2025 CCTR-2075
CSPP-2150 Prekindergarten General

State and Family Child Care &
Preschool Literacy Support Development Total

EXPENDITURES
Direct payment to providers

1000 Certified salaries $ 219,689 $ $ 81,330 $ 301,019
2000 Classified salaries

3000 Employee benefits 115,758 42,068 157,826
4000 Books and supplies 9,800 2,313 1,298 13,411

5000 Services and other operating expenses 50,445 16,858 67,303
6100/6200 Other approved capital outlay

6400 New equipment

6500 Replacement equipment

Depreciation on assets not purchased with public funds

Start-up expenses - service level exemption

Indirect costs 31,654 185 11,324 43,163

Total expenses claimed for reimbursement 427,346 2,498 152,878 582,722
Total supplemental expenses 227,320 227,320

Total Expenditures $ 654,666 $ 2,498 $ 152,878 $ 810,042

See accompanying notes to the supplementary information
1126



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT

for California State Preschool Programs
Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No.

CSPP-2150

E923

Fiscal Year Ended: June 30, 2013 Contract No.

Independent Auditor's Name: GYL Decauwer LLP

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E
SECTION I - CERTIFIED CHILDREN

DAYS OF ENROLLMENT
CUMULATIVE

FISCAL YEAR PER
FORM CDFS 8501

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENTS

CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR PER

AUDIT

ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR

ADJUSTED DAYS
OF ENROLLMENT

PER AUDIT

Three and Four Year Olds
Full-time-plus 1,968 1,968 1.1800 2,322.240
Full-time 6,303 6,303 1.0000 6,303.000
Three-quarters-time 1,266 1,266 0.7500 949.500
One-half-time 311 311 0.6172 191.949

Exceptional Needs
Full-time-plus - - 1.4160 -
Full-time - - 1.2000 -

Three-quarters-time 150 150 0.9000 135.000
One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

Limited and Non-English Proficient
Full-time-plus 20 20 1.2980 25.960
Full-time 264 264 1.1000 290.400
Three-quarters-time 2 2 0.8250 1.650
One-half-time 1 0 1 0 0.6172 6.172

At Risk of Abuse or Neglect
Full-time-plus - - 1.2980 -

Full-time - - 1.1000 -

Three-quarters-time - - 0.8250 -

One-half-time 29 29 0.6172 17.899
Severely Disabled

Full-time-plus - 1.7700 -

Full-time - - 1.5000

Three-quarters-time - - 1.1250 -

One-half-time - 0.6172 -

TOTAL DAYS OF ENROLLMENT 10,323 - 10,323 10,243 770
DAYS OF OPERATION 245 - 245 - ,
DAYS OF ATTENDANCE 10,305 - 10,305

NO NONCERTIFIED CHILDREN - Check this box, omit page 2, and continue to Section III if no noncertified children were enrolled in the program.

Comments - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 8501, Page 1 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

1 2

27



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT
for California State Preschool Programs

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year Ended: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CSPP-2150

SECTION II - NONCERTIFIED CHILDREN
COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E

Report all children who were not certified, but who
were served at the same sites as certified children.

DAYS OF ENROLLMENT

CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR PER
FORM CDFS 8501

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENTS

CUMULATIVE FISCAL
YEAR PER AUDIT

ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR

ADJUSTED DAYS
OF ENROLLMENT

PER AUDIT

. _
Three and Four Year Olds

Full-time-plus 309 309 1.1800 364.620
Full-time 727 727 1.0000 727.000
Three-quarters-time 764 764 0.7500 573.000
One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

Exceptional Needs
Full-time-plus - - 1.4160 -

Full-time - - 1.2000 -

Three-quarters-time - - 0.9000 -

One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

Limited and Non-English Proficient
Full-time-plus - - 1.2980 -

Full-time - - 1.1000 -

Three-quarters-time - - 0.8250 -

One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

At Risk of Abuse or Neglect
Full-time-plus - - 1.2980 -

Full-time - - 1.1000 -

Three-quarters-time - 0.8250 -

One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

Severely Disabled
Full-time-plus - - 1.7700 -

Full-time - - 1.5000 -

Three-quarters-time - - 1.1250 -

One-half-time - - 0.6172 -

TOTAL DAYS OF ENROLLMENT 1,800 - 1,800 1,664.620

Comments - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 8501, Page 2 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

13
28



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT

for California State Preschool Programs

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CSPP-2150

SECTION III - REVENUE

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C
CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR

PER FORM
CDFS 8501

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENT
INCREASE OR
(DECREASE)

CUMULATIVE FISCAL
YEAR PER AUDIT

RESTRICTED INCOME
Child Nutrition Programs $0 $0 $0
County Maintenance of Effort (EC § 8279) 0
Other (Specify): 0

Subtotal $0 $0 $0
Transfer from Reserve Contract # 9,880 9,880

Contract # 0

Family Fees for Certified Children Contract # 28,531 28,531
Contract # 0

Interest Earned on Apportionments Contract # 45 45
Contract # 0

UNRESTRICTED INCOME
Family Fees for Noncertified Children 65,806 (521) 65,285
Head Start Program (EC § 8235(b)) 0
Other (Specify): 0

TOTAL REVENUE $104,262 ($521) $103,741

SECTION IV - REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
1000 Certificated Salaries $219,689 $0 $219,689
2000 Classified Salaries 0

3000 Employee Benefits 115,758 115,758
4000 Books and Supplies 10,302 10,302
5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses 49,943 49,943
6100/6200 Other Approved Capital Outlay 0

6400 New Equipment (program-related) 0

6500 Replacement Equipment (program-related) 0

Depreciation or Use Allowance 0

Start-Up Expenses (service level exemption) 0
Budget Impasse Credit 0

Indirect Costs. Rate: 8. /00% (Rate Is Self-Calculating) 31,654 31,654

TOTAL EXPENSES CLAIMED FOR REIMBURSEMENT $427,346 $0 $427,346

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS (included in secbon IV above) $37,854 $0 $37,854

FOR CDE-A&I USE ONLY:

Independent Auditor's Assurances on Agency's compliance
Requirements of the California Department of Education, Child

Eligibility, enrollment, and attendance records are being
maintained as required (check YES or NO):

with Contract Funding Terms and Conditions and Program
Development Division:

COMMENTS - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

El YES

III NO - Explain any discrepancies.

Reimbursable expenses claimed above are eligible for
reimbursement, reasonable, necessary, and adequately
supported (check YES or NO):

YES

NO - Explain any discrepancies.

El NO SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUES OR EXPENSES - Check this box and omit page 4 if there are no supplemental revenues or expenses to report.

AUD 8501, Page 3 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

14

29



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT

for California State Preschool Programs

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CSPP-2150

SECTION V - SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUE

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C
CUMULATIVE FISCAL

YEAR PER FORM
CDFS 8501

AUDIT ADJUSTMENT
INCREASE OR
(DECREASE)

CUMULATIVE FISCAL
YEAR PER AUDIT

Enhancement Funding $227,320 $0 $227,320
Other (Specify): 0

0

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUE $227,320 $0 $227,320

SECTION VI - SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENSES
EXPENSES RELATED TO SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUE

1000 Certificated Salaries $79,168 $0 $79,168
2000 Classified Salaries 0 0

3000 Employee Benefits 26,911 26,911
4000 Books and Supplies 21,792 21,792
5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses 62,779 62,779
6000 Equipment/Other Capital Outlay 0

Depreciation or Use Allowance 0

Indirect Costs 36,670 36,670

NONREIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
6100-6500 Nonreimbursable Capital Outlay 0

Other: e.g., Entertainment Expenses 0

Other (Specify): 0

0

TOTAL SUPPLEMENTAL EXPENSES $227,320 $0 $227,320

COMMENTS - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 8501, Page 4 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

15
30



AUDITED FISCAL REPORT
for Child Development Support Contracts

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CPKS-2025

Multi-Year Contract? (Check "No" Box or Enter Contract Period):

Independent Auditors Name: GYL Decauwer LLP

or Period:No: -/

COLUMN Al COLUMN A2 COLUMN B COLUMN C

SECTION I - REVENUE

PRIOR YEAR'S
AUD 9529
ENDING

BALANCE FOR
THIS CONTRACT

(Multi-Year
Contract Only)

CURRENT
FISCAL YEAR

PER FORM
CDFS 9529

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENT
INCREASE OR
(DECREASE)

CUMULATIVE
THROUGH
CURRENT

FISCAL YEAR
PER AUDIT

RESTRICTED INCOME
Match Requirement $0 $0 $0 $0
County Maintenance of Effort (EC § 8279) 0

Other (Specify): 0

0

Subtotal $0 $0 $0 $0

INTEREST EARNED ON APPORTIONMENTS 0

UNRESTRICTED INCOME
Other (Specify): 0

0

TOTAL REVENUE $0 $0 $0 $0

SECTION II - REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
1000 Certificated Salaries $0 $0 $0 $0

2000 Classified Salaries 0

3000 Employee Benefits 0

4000 Books and Supplies 2,313 2,313
5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses 0

6100/6200 Other Approved Capital Outlay 0

6400 New Equipment (program-related) 0

6500 Replacement Equipment (program-related) 0

Depreciation or Use Allowance 0

Indirect Costs. Rate: 8.00% 185 185

TOTAL EXPENSES CLAIMED FOR REIMBURSEMENT $0 $2,498 $0 $2,498

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS oducledinsed. $0 $185 $0 $185

FOR CDE-A&I USE ONLY:

COMMENTS - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

111 NO SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUES OR EXPENSES - Check this box and omit page 2 if there are no supplemental revenues or expenses to report.

AUD 9529, Page 1 of 2 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

16
31



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT

for Child Development Programs
Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year Ended: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CCTR-2075

Independent Auditor's Name: GYL Decauwer LLP

SECTION I - CERTIFIED CHILDREN
DAYS OF ENROLLMENT

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E

CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR PER
FORM CDFS 9500

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENTS

CUMULATIVE FISCAL
YEAR PER AUDIT

ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR

ADJUSTED DAYS
OF ENROLLMENT

PER AUDIT

Infants (up to 18 months)
Full-time-plus - - 2.006 -
Full-time - - 1.700 -
Three-quarters-time - - 1.275 -
One-half-time - - 0.935 -

FCCH Infants (up to 18 months)
Full-time plus - - 1.652 -
Full-time - - 1.400 -
Three-quarters-time _ - 1.050 -
One-half-time - - 0.770 -

Toddlers (18 up to 36 months)
Full-time-plus 367 367 1.652 606.284
Full-time 1,080 1,080 1.400 1,512.000
Three-quarters-time 429 429 1.050 450.450
On-half-time 25 25 0.770 19.250

Three Years and Older
Full-time-plus - 1.180 -
Full-time 32 32 1.000 32.000
Three-quarters-time 426 426 0.750 319 500
One-half-time 398 398 0.550 218.900

Exceptional Needs
Full-time-plus - - 1.416 -
Full-time - - 1.200 -
Three-quarters-time - - 0.900 -
One-half-time - - 0.660 -

Limited and Non-English Proficient
Full-time-plus - - 1.298 -
Full-time 104 104 1.100 114.400
Three-quarters-time 18 18 0.825 14.850
One-half-time 182 182 0.605 110 110

At Risk of Abuse or Neglect
Full-time-plus - - 1.298 -
Full-time - - 1.100 -
Three-quarters-time - - 0.825 -

One-half-time - - 0.605 -

Severely Disabled
Full-time-plus - - 1.770 -
Full-time - - 1.500 -
Three-quarters-time - - 1.125 -

One-half-time - - 0.825 -
TOTAL DAYS OF ENROLLMENT 3,061 - 3,061 3,397 744
DAYS OF OPERATION 245 - 245
DAYS OF ATTENDANCE 3,034 - 3,034 ,,,,,

NO NONCERTIFIED CHILDREN - Check this box, omit page 2, and continue to Section III if no noncertified children were enrolled in the prograr

Comments - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 9500, Page 1 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

17
32



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT
for Child Development Programs

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year Ended: June 30, 2013 Contract No. CCTR-2075

SECTION II NONCERTIFIED CHILDREN
COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D COLUMN E

-

Report all children who were not certified, but who
were served at the same sites as certified children.

DAYS OF ENROLLMENT

CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR PER
FORM CDFS 9500

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENTS

CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR PER

AUDIT

ADJUSTMENT
FACTOR

_

ADJUSTED DAYS
OF ENROLLMENT

PER AUDIT

Infants (up to 18 months)
Full-time-plus - - 2.006 -

Full-time _ - 1.700 -

Three-quarters-time - - 1.275 -

One-half-time _ - 0.935 -

FCCH Infants (up to 18 months)
Full-time plus _ - 1.652 -

Full-time - - 1.400 -

Three-quarters-time - - 1.050 -

One-half-time - - 0.770 -

Toddlers (18 up to 36 months)
Full-time-plus 187 187 1.652 308.924
Full-time 22 22 1.400 30.800
Three-quarters-time 57 57 1.050 59.850
On-half-time 28 28 0.770 21.560

Three Years and Older
Full-time-plus 7 7 1.180 8.260
Full-time 226 226 1.000 226.000
Three-quarters-time 49 49 0.750 36.750
One-half-time 414 414 0.550 227.700

Exceptional Needs
Full-time-plus - - 1.416 -

Full-time - - 1.200

Three-quarters-time - - 0.900 -

One-half-time - - 0.660 -

Limited and Non-English Proficient
Full-time-plus - - 1.298 -

Full-time - - 1.100 -

Three-quarters-time - - 0.825 -

One-half-time - - 0.605 -

At Risk of Abuse or Neglect
Full-time-plus - - 1.298 -

Full-time - - 1.100 -

Three-quarters-time - - 0.825 -

One-half-time - - 0.605 -

Severely Disabled
Full-time-plus - - 1.770 -

Full-time - - 1.500 -

Three-quarters-time - - 1.125 -

One-half-time - - 0.825 -

TOTAL DAYS OF ENROLLMENT 990 - 990 919.844

Comments - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 9500, Page 2 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

18
33



AUDITED ATTENDANCE AND FISCAL REPORT

for Child Development Programs

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. Vendor No. E923

Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2013 Contract No.

Contract No.

CCTR-2075

Insert Any Commingled

SECTION III - REVENUE

COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C
CUMULATIVE
FISCAL YEAR

PER FORM
CDFS 9500

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENT
INCREASE OR
(DECREASE)

CUMULATIVE FISCAL
YEAR PER AUDIT

RESTRICTED INCOME
Child Nutrition Programs $0 $0 $0
County Maintenance of Effort (EC § 8279) 0
Uncashed Checks to Providers 0
Other (Specify):

Subtotal $0 $0 $0

Transfer from Reserve Contract # 0
Contract # 0

Family Fees for Certified Children Contract # 4,828 4,828
Contract # 0

Interest Earned on Apportionments Contract # 0
Contract # 0

UNRESTRICTED INCOME
Family Fees for Noncertified Children 22,999 13,065 36,064
Other (Specify): 0

TOTAL REVENUE $27,827 $13,065 $40,892

SECTION IV - REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
Direct Payments to Providers (FOCH Only) $0 $0 $0
1000 Certificated Salaries 81,330 81,330
2000 Classified Salaries 0
3000 Employee Benefits 42,068 42,068
4000 Books and Supplies 1,298 1,298
5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses 16,858 16,858
6100/6200 Other Approved Capital Outlay 0
6400 New Equipment (program-related) 0

6500 Replacement Equipment (program-related) 0

Depreciation or Use Allowance 0

Start-Up Expenses (service level exemption) 0
Budget Impasse Credit Contract # 0

Contract # 0

Indirect Costs. Rate: 8.00% (Rate is Self-Calculating) 11,324 11,324

TOTAL EXPENSES CLAIMED FOR REIMBURSEMENT $152,878 $0 $152,878

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS (included in section IV above) $17,524 $0 $17,524

FOR CDE-A&I USE ONLY:

Independent Auditors Assurances on Agency's compliance

Requirements of the California Department of Education, Child

Eligibility, enrollment, and attendance records are being
maintained as required (check YES or NO):

with Contract Funding Terms and Conditions and Program

Development Division:

COMMENTS - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

El YEE

111 NO - Explain any discrepancies.

Reimbursable expenses claimed above are eligible for
reimbursement, reasonable, necessary, and adequately
supported (check YES or NO):

YEE

NO - Explain any discrepancies.

NO SUPPLEMENTAL REVENUES OR EXPENSES - Check this box and omit page 4 if there are no supplemental revenues or expenses to report.

AUD 9500, Page 3 of 4 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

19
34



AUDITED RESERVE ACCOUNT ACTIVITY REPORT

Agency Name: Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

Fiscal Year End: June 30, 2013 Vendor No. E923

Independent Auditor's Name: GYL Decauwer LLP

RESERVE ACCOUNT TYPE (Check One): COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C

i Center Based

PER AGENCY

AUDIT
ADJUSTMENT

OR
(DECREASE)

PER AUDITLII Resource and ReferralLiINCREASEAlternative Payment

LAST YEAR:

1. Beginning Balance (must equal ending balance from Last Year's AUD 9530-A) $9,962 $0 $9,962
2. Plus Transfers from Contracts to Reserve Account
(based on last year's post-audit CDFS 9530, Section iv):

Contract No. $0 $0 $0
Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Total Transferred from Contracts to Reserve Account 0 0 0

3. Less Excess Reserve to be Billed
(enter as a positive amount any excess amount calculated by CDFS on last year's post-
audit CDFS 9530) $0 $0

4. Ending Balance on Last Year's Post-Audit CDFS 9530 $9,962 $0 $9,962

THIS YEAR:
5. Plus Interest Earned This Year on Reserve Funds
(column A must agree with this year's CDFS 9530-A, Section II) $20 $0 $20

6. Less Transfers to Contracts from Reserve Account
(column A amounts must agree with this year's CDFS 9530-A, Section III; and column
C amounts must be reported on this year's AUD forms for respective contracts):

Contract No. CSPP-2150 $9,880 $0 $9,880
Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0
Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Contract No. 0

Total Transferred to Contracts from Reserve Account 9,880 0 9,880

7. Ending Balance on June 30, 2013
(column A must agree with this year's CDFS 9530-A, Section iv) $102 $0 $102

COMMENTS - If necessary, attach additional sheets to explain adjustments:

AUD 9530-A, Page 1 of 1 (FY 2012-13) California Department of Education

20
35



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF RENOVATION AND REPAIR EXPENDITURES
UTILIZING CONTRACT FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2013

EXPENDITURES UNDER EXPENDITURES OVER $10,000 UNIT COST
$10,000 tJNIT COST WITH CDD APPROVAL WITHOUT CDD APPROVAL

COST ITEM COST ITEM COST

NONE NONE NONE

ITEM

2136



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
UTILIZING CONTRACT FUNDS

For the year ended June 30, 2013

EXPENDITURES UNDER
$7,500 UNIT COST

NONE

EXPENDITURES OVER
$7,500 UNIT COST

WITH CDD APPROVAL

NONE

EXPENDITURES OVER
$7,500 UNIT COST

WITHOUT CDD APPROVAL

NONE

22
37



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
STATE PRESCHOOL, GENERAL CHILD CARE

AND PREKINDERGARTEN PROGRAMS

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
June 30, 2013

Note 1 Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state awards includes the grant activity of
the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool and Prekindergarten Programs, and
both are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Audit Guide of Child Development and
Nutrition Programs by the California Department of Education. Therefore, some amounts
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation
of the basic financial statements.

Note 2 Administrative Costs

Administrative costs charged by the agency are as follows:

CSPP
2150

CPKS
1025

CCTR
1076

Indirect Costs $ 31,654 $ 185 $ 11,324
Professional fees 6,200 6,200

Total $ 37,854 $ 185 $ 17,524

Note 3 Out of State Travel

No out of state travel expenditures were charged to the program.

2338



ewer ap,,,
Certified Public Accountants (1) B usin ess Consultants

4120 Concours
Suite 100
Ontario, CA 91764

909.948.9990
800.644.0696
FAX 909.948.9633

gyld@gyldecauwer.com

www.gyldecauwer.com

it/e(r1
DrTrIATIO\

JOHN LERIAS, CPA

STEPHEN C. WILLIAMS, CPA

JOSEPH 0. ROMERO, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
State Preschool, General Child Care
and Prekindergarten Programs
Pomona, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool,
General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs (a nonprofit organization), which
comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2013, and the related
statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 3, 2013.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Cal
Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State Preschool, General Child Care and
Prekindergarten Programs' internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State
Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs' internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is
a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

24

CPAINTEERNATIIONAL
Crowe Horwath International.

39



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS (continued)

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weakenesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. State
Preschool, General Child Care and Prekindergarten Programs' financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

GYL Decauwer LLP
Ontario, CA

September 3, 2013

G L
ecanertiL

a4.P

CPAs & Business Consultants
25

40



Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
Date: September 26, 2013 

 
To: Board of Directors 

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From: David F. Prenovost 

Senior Managing Director/CFO 
 
Subject: INVESTMENT HIGHLIGHTS – Fourth Quarter 2012-13 

 
GENERAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 

 
As you may recall, the Investment Committee recommended and the Board approved at its February 
2013 meeting a change in the management of the fixed income portion of the General Investment 
Portfolio (Portfolio); accordingly, Graystone Consulting began managing the fixed income securities 
during the month of March 2013.  The General Investment Portfolio includes equity, fixed income, 
private capital and real estate investments along with an alternative investment in the first phase 
infrastructure at Innovation Village. The Portfolio has a current market value of $37,840,948 and the 
current allocation is 24% in equities versus the target of 20%, 69% in fixed income versus the target of 
60%, 0% in cash versus the target of 5%, 0% in real estate versus the target of 5% and 7% in 
alternative investments versus the target of 10%. 

 
We only report the Foundation program and scholarship funds that are stratified into three durations, 
short term being 1 to 3 years, medium term being 4 to 7 years and long term being greater than 7 years. 
As of March 31st and June 30st the short term balances are $12.9 million and $12.8 million, medium 
term balances are $4.1 million and $4.1 million and long term balances $8.5 million and $8.1 million 
respectively. 

 
For the rolling one year the Portfolio returned 3.7% compared to the performance benchmark Higher 
Education Price Index (HEPI) of 2.3% plus 2% or 4.3% per the Foundation’s General Investment Policy # 
131. The HEPI index is used to measure the absolute objective of the portfolio as measured in terms of 
preserving purchasing power. The fixed income portfolio of $26.1 million lost a total return of 1.8% for the 
quarter and lost 0.92% for the one year compared to the Barclays Intermediate US Government Credit that 
lost 1.70% for the quarter and lost 0.29% for the one year. The duration of the fixed income portfolio is 
3.39 in line with the Barclays Intermediate Government Credit index of 3.79. 

 
Per the Foundation’s Policy # 133, only the annualized yield is distributed; for the fiscal year the annual 
net yield is 0.17% and the scholarship programs received $7,834 and the Foundation programs 
received $67,269. 

 
The Common Fund Multi-Strategy Equity Fund is $9.1 million and earned 1.97% for the quarter and 
21.51% for the one year compared to the S & P 500 index which earned 2.91% and earned 20.60% 
respectively. The Common Fund Multi-Strategy Bond fund is $157,856 was sold and the proceeds 
transferred to Graystone Consulting to invest in the fixed income portfolio they manage. 

 
The Common Fund Real Estate Fund value is $41,420 as of March 2013 and the Foundation has 
received $244,744 and is expected to receive approximately the remaining value of the fund in 2013-14. 

41



The Foundation has received capital call notices and has contributed $190,625 against its commitment of
$250,000 to Capital Partners IV and $510,750 against its commitment of $750,000 to Capital Private
Equity Partners VII. The value of the Non-Marketable Investments is $686,287 as of March 31, 2013.
Please see Capital Partners IV quarterly report for further details.

The Alternative Investment in Innovation Way infrastructure is $2.6 million and fiscal year to date was
charged $15,593 per the terms of the investment. This alternative investment repaid $100,539 in the first
quarter of 2009-10 and $300,000 in the second quarter of fiscal year 2012-13.

ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

The Endowment Investment Portfolio (Portfolio) includes securities managed by investment managers
selected by Graystone Consulting, a division of Morgan Stanley Private Wealth Management
which provides investment advisory and reporting services to the Foundation for the endowment
investment portfolio. The Portfolio has a current market value of $69,290,107 as of June 30, 2013 and
the current portfolio allocation is no more than 2.0% less than or greater than the investment policy asset
allocation and lost 1.51% versus the earned 0.18 blended benchmark for the quarter and earned 10.95%
versus 13.43% for the blended benchmark for the rolling one year mainly due to the underperformance
of the global equities (First Eagle fund manager), International and Emerging Market Equities (Dupont
Emerging Markets and Harbor International Equity) offset by the fixed income portfolio's performance by
all the managers except for PIMCO Total Return. See asset allocation and performance report for further

details.

LIFE INCOME TRUST PORTFOLIO

The Life Income Trust Portfolio has a new Trust and now consists of six charitable remainder trusts with
a current market value of $1,692,026; all the trusts reported negative earnings for the quarter ended
except for one and positive earnings for the year ended.

Recommended Action: The Foundation's Endowment and General Investment Policies 130 and131
requires a comprehensive quarterly report of the investment portfolios performance be provided to the
Investment Committee and Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting. Foundation
management believes that the quarterly investment reports are in compliance with the investment
policies, and recommends the quarterly investment reports be accepted by the Board of Directors.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th pAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

Rachel Dominguez, Secretari9
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

By:

49

The Foundation has received capital call notices and has contributed $190,625 against its commitment of

$250,000 to Capital Partners lV and $510,750 against its commitment of $750,000 to Capital Private
Equity Partners Vll. The value of the Non-Marketable Investments is $686,287 as of March 31, 2013.
Please see Capital Partners lV quarterly report for further details.

The Alternative Investment in Innovation Way infrastructure is $2.6 million and fiscal year to date was

charged $15,593 per the terms of the investment. This alternative investment repaid $100,539 in the first
quarter of 2009-10 and $300,000 in the second quarter of fiscal year 2012-13.

ENDOWMENT INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

The Endowment Investment Portfolio (Portfolio) includes securities managed by investment managers

selected by Graystone Consulting, a division of Morgan Stanley Private Wealth Management

which provides investment advisory and reporting services to the Foundation for the endowment
investment portfolio. The Portfolio has a current market value of $69,290,107 as of June 30, 2013 and

the current portfolio allocation is no more than 2.0% less than or greater than the investment policy asset

allocation and lost 1 .S1o/o versus the earned 0. 1 8 blended benchmaik for the quarter and earned 10.95o/o

versus 13.43o/o for the blended benchmark for the rolling one year mainly due to the underperformance

of the global equities (First Eagle fund manager), lnternational and Emerging Market Equities (Dupont

Emerging Markets and Harbor International Equity) offset by the fixed income portfolio's performance by

all the managers except for PIMCO Total Return. See asset allocation and performance report for further

details.

LIFE INCOME TRUST PORTFOLIO

The Life Income Trust Portfolio has a new Trust and now consists of six charitable remainder trusts with

a current market value of $1,692,026', all the trusts reported negative earnings for the quarter ended

except for one and positive earnings for the year ended.

Recommended Action: The Foundation's Endowment and General Investment Policies 130 and131

requires a comprehensive quarterly report of the investment portfolios performance be provided to the

lnvestment Committee and Board of Directors at a regularly scheduled meeting. Foundation

management believes that the quarterly investment reports are in compliance with the investment
policies, and recommends the quarterly investment reports be accepted by the Board of Directors.

pAssED AND ADOPTED rHlS 26thpAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:

.4 \-,//f///t tLdz4-4_rg* n Vu31

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
INVESTMENT SUMMARY AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

Policy Range Policy Range
Asset Class Minimum Maximum Policy Target Portfolio Allocation Portfolio Amount

Common Fund 
     Multi-Strategy Equity Fund 10% 65% 20% 24% 9,087,773                  
Mutual Funds-Equity 10% 65% 0% 0% -                             
Fixed Income
     (Domestic and International) 40% 85% 60% 69% 26,122,598                
Mutual Funds-Debt 40% 85% 0% 0%
Cash Equivalents 0% 20% 5% 0% 69                              
Common Fund 
     Real Estate 0% 10% 5% 0% 41,420                       
Alternative Investments
     Innovation Way Road 0% 25% 10% 7% 2,589,088                  

100% 100% 37,840,948                

Current Calendar One Three

Performance (net of fees) Quarter YTD Year(rolling)
Year Calendar 
(Annualized)

Common Fund 
     Multi-Strategy Equity Fund 1.97% 12.30% 21.51% 14.64%
     S & P 500 Index 2.91% 13.82% 20.60% 18.45%

Fixed Income
     (Domestic and International) -1.80% -1.31% -0.92% N/A
     Barclays Intermediate US Government Credit In -1.70% -1.45% 0.29% 3.14%
Mutual Funds-Debt
Cash Equivalents 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Common Fund 
     Private Capital 4.72% 4.72% 11.51% 10.27%
     Real Estate 0.00% N/A N/A -100.00%
     Targeted Long Term Return 11-15% 11-15%

43



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
INVESTMENTS AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

GENERAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

SECURITY MARKET DIVIDEND
TYPE Allocation VALUE YIELD % Asset Class
Cash
Morgan Stanley Bank 0.00% 69 0%
Mutual Funds
Doubleline Total Return 7.93% 2,072,188 5.48% Mortgage Backed Securities
JP Morgan Strategic Income Opportunities 6.01% 1,568,969 3.28% Global Unconstrained Credit
Legg Mason Brandy Wine Global Opportunistic 3.98% 1,040,954 4.71% Global Fixed Income
Nuveen Symphony Credit Opportunity Fund 1.98% 517,698 6.40% Global High Yield/Floating Rate
PIMCO Low Duration Fixed Income 80.09% 20,922,789 2.26% Short Duration Fixed Income
Fixed income portfolio managed by Graystone Consulting 26,122,667       

EQUITIES, ALTERNATIVE INVESTMENTS, PRIVATE CAPITAL & REAL ESTATE Value Date
Common Fund Multi-Strategy Equity Fund ** 8,401,486         
Alternative Investment - Innovation Village Infrastructure ** 2,589,088         
Common Fund Private Capital (valued as of prior quarter) ** & *** 686,287            3/31/2013
Common Fund Real Estate (valued as of the prior quarter) ** & *** 41,420              3/31/2013
Total Portfolio 37,840,948$     
** Excluded from the quarterly return of the portfolio
***Market Value as of prior quarter Prior Year Current Year Current Year Current Year Annual 

FOURTH QTR THIRD QTR SECOND QTR FIRST QTR Net Yield

Quarter Average-Annualized  - General Investment Portfolio 1.37% 2.46% 0.55% 1.37% 5.87%
Quarter Average - Annualized Fixed Income Portfolio (see ** of investments excluded from returns) 0.11% 0.03% 0.02% 0.02% 0.17%

LIFE INCOME TRUST PORTFOLIO
Prior Year Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year

CURRENT MARKET VALUE NET OF MANAGEMENT FEES FOURTH QTR THIRD QTR SECOND QTR FIRST QTR Annual
MARKET VALUE CORP/TREAS MONEY TOTAL NET EARNINGS NET EARNINGS NET EARNINGS NET EARNINGS NET EARNINGS

Custodian & name of CRT 10/1/2012 BONDS MARKET EQUITIES 12/31/2012 RATE RATE RATE RATE RATE

Clifford Swan -Jewett 399,211             61,809                  177,819 164,618          404,246          1.62% 3.79% 0.27% 1.80% 7.66%
Clifford Swan -Lane 41,149               13,642                  1,854                23,869.00 39,365            -0.19% 7.03% 0.30% 4.84% 12.33%
Clifford Swan -Scroggs 22,046               10,061                  447                   11,539            22,047            -0.09% 5.64% 0.33% 3.18% 9.26%
Morgan Stanley - Janesh 371,525             131,637                -                    229,327          360,964          -1.39% 4.96% 2.09% 4.76% 10.70%
Morgan Stanley - Marraccino 617,040             191,907                9,481                387,335          588,723          -2.12% 1.67% 0.00% 0.00% N/A
Ameriprise - Brisco 281,620             184,087                5,132                87,256            276,475          -0.61% 3.08% -0.52% 2.63% 4.60%
Wells Fargo - Gregoire 206                   206                 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Total Portfolio 1,732,591$        593,143$              194,939$          903,944$        1,692,026$     
  % of Total 35.1% 11.5% 53.4% 100.0%

Note - the quarterly and annual returns exclude the distributions to the beneficiaries when calculating the returns.

44



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation 
Short Term Portfolio 

Investment Results 
as of June 30, 2013

Graystone Consulting

Andrew Price, CIMA®
Executive Director
Institutional Consulting Director

Todd Au, CIMA®
Second Vice President
Senior Investment Management Consultant

Tim Skelly, CIMA®
Senior Vice President
Institutional Consulting Director

J.P. Szabo
Consulting Group Analyst 

Address:
10960 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 2000
Los Angeles, CA 90024

Phones:
Main Line 310-443-0530
Toll-Free 800-648-3833
Fax 310-443-0566

E-Mail:
andrew.price@morganstanleygraystone.com
todd.au@morganstanleygraystone.com
tim.skelly@morganstanleygraystone.com
jp.szabo@morganstanleygraystone.com

45

sf
Text Box



 
Total Fund

($) (%)

Short Duration Fixed Income $20,922,789 80.1%
PIMCO Low Duration $20,922,789 80.1%

Global Uncontrained Credit $1,568,969 6.0%
JP Morgan Strategic Income Credit Opp. $1,568,969 6.0%

Mortgage Backed Securities $2,072,188 7.9%
DoubleLine Total Return $2,072,188 7.9%

Global Fixed Income $1,040,954 4.0%
Brandywine Global Opportunistic $1,040,954 4.0%

Global High Yield / Floating Rate $517,698 2.0%
Nuveen Symphony Cred Opportunity $517,698 2.0%

Cash & Equivalents $69 0.0%

Total Short Term Portfolio $26,122,666 100.0%
Market Current
Value Allocation
($000) (%)

   Short Duration Fixed Income $20,922,789.00 80.1%
   Global Uncontrained Credit $1,568,969.00 6.0%
   Mortgage Backed Securities $2,072,188.00 7.9%
   Global Fixed Income $1,040,954.00 4.0%
   Global High Yield / Floating Rate $517,697.50 2.0%
   Cash & Equivalents $68.50 0.0%

Asset Allocation

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
Short Term Portfolio

Balances and Asset Allocation
June 30, 2013

The information contained herein was prepared by the undersigned for informational purposes only and does not represent an official statement of your account at the Firm.  Please refer to your monthly statements for a complete record of your 
transactions, holdings and balances. Graystone Consulting is a business of Morgan Stanley Smith Barney. 

e

June 30, 2013: $26,122,666

46



Performance Summary

Gain/Loss Summary

Allocation

Market
Value

($)

Performance(%)

Quarter
To

Date
YTD

1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

Since
Inception

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Inception

Date

Short-Term Portfolio Strategy 26,122,666 -1.80 N/A N/A N/A N/A -0.97 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 03/07/2013

BC Int Gov/Credit -1.70 -1.45 0.29 3.14 4.58 -1.56 3.90 5.80 5.89 5.24 5.07

Difference -0.10 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0.59 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Quarter
To

Date
YTD

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Short-Term Portfolio Strategy 03/07/2013

   Beginning Market Value 24,506,769 - 24,301,287

   Net Contributions 2,155,539 - 2,155,539

   Fees/Expenses -13,720 - -17,069

   Income 166,115 - 315,146

   Gain/Loss -692,037 - -632,237

   Ending Market Value 26,122,666 - 26,122,666

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

Report Summary
As of June 30, 2013

47



Portfolio Summary

Asset Class Investment Manager Allocation Values as of 
6/30/13

Average 
Credit 

Quality

Duration 
(Years) Yield

Short Duration Fixed Income PIMCO Low Duration Fixed Income 80.00% 20,922,789  AA- 3.50 1.88%
Global Unconstrained Credit JP Morgan Strategic Income Opportunities 6.00% 1,568,969    BBB 1.02 2.05%
Mortgage Backed Securities Doubleline Total Return 8.00% 2,072,188    A 3.52 4.83%
Global Fixed Income Brandywine Global Opportunistic Fixed Income 4.00% 1,040,954    A 4.42 3.89%
Global High Yield / Floating Rate Nuveen Symphony Credit Opportunity Fund 2.00% 517,698       BB 3.60 6.40%
Totals* 100.00% 26,122,666  AA- 3.39 2.30%

Barclays US 1-3 Year Treasury Index 1.90 0.34%
Barclays Intermediate Government/Credit Index 3.79 1.77%

*Account contained a cash balance of $68.85
Yield and duration totals are weighted averages. 
Source: Investment Managers
Data as of 6/30/13

Global High Yield / Floating 
Rate
2%

Global Fixed Income
4%

Mortgage Backed Securities
8%

Global Unconstrained Credit
6%

Short Duration Fixed Income
80%

48



ENDOWMENT FUNDS
General Fund

Capital Partners IV 1.43 5.95 7.91 10.77 0.27 N/A -3.68 10/31/070.00
Private Equity Partners VII 2.71 7.66 9.10 11.22 1.22 N/A -2.32 10/31/070.00

Private Capital 2.34 7.16 8.76 11.11 0.91 N/ATotal -2.81 12/31/070.00
Realty Investors 2004-12 (Tranche) N/A N/A N/A 0.00 -100.00 N/A -100.00 10/31/050.00

Real Estate N/A N/A N/A 0.00 -100.00 N/ATotal -100.00 09/30/050.00

General Fund 2.34 6.46 7.82 11.40 -12.30 N/A -1.37 09/30/03Total 0.00

ENDOWMENT FUNDS 2.34 6.46 7.82 11.40 -12.30 N/ATOTAL 2.17 01/31/960.00

OPERATING FUNDS
General Fund

Multi-Strategy Equity Fund 1.97 12.30 21.51 14.64 5.25 N/A 7.77 09/30/03-2.09
S&P 500 Index 2.91 13.82 20.60 18.45 7.01 N/A 7.20-1.34

Equity 1.97 12.30 21.51 N/A N/A N/ATotal 8.96 06/30/11-2.09

General Fund 1.89 12.00 21.07 N/A N/A N/A 8.93 06/30/11Total -2.09

OPERATING FUNDS 1.89 12.00 21.07 N/A N/A N/ATOTAL 7.60 02/29/96-2.09

TOTAL  INSTITUTION 1.90 11.43 19.71 10.92 -12.53 N/A 2.15 01/31/96-1.94

Detailed Consolidated Investment Performance Report
For All Selected Accounts

As Of 06/30/2013
Time Weighted Returns After Fees

 CUR
QTD

CALENDAR
YTD

  1
YEAR

  3
YEAR

  5
YEAR

  10
YEAR

SINCE
INCEPTION

PERF.
INCEPTION

CUR
MONTH

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
107/10/13 5:15:31 PM
83482

49



r()1[1[11(1r1 r Li

Market Value

06/01/13
Beginning

Transactions
Net*

Withdrawn
Participant fees

Appreciation
Unrealized **

Market Value

06/30/13
Ending

Investment Fund
OPERATING FUND
General Fund-06

$9,602,019.52Multi-Strategy Equity Fund ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)
$9,602,019.52Total Equity ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)

$0.00Multi-Strategy Bond Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00
$0.00Total Fixed Income $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00

$9,602,019.52Total General Fund-06 ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)
$9,602,019.52TOTAL OPERATING FUND ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)

$9,602,019.52 ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)
Institution Totals

Total Marketable Investments
Total Operating Fund

Total Endowment
Total Equity

Total Fixed Income

$9,602,019.52 ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00

$9,602,019.52 ($2,729.81) ($231,701.38) $8,401,485.97($966,102.36)
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00$0.00

Marketable Investments Account Summary
For Date Range 06/01/13 - 06/30/13
For All Accounts

* Net Transactions includes all contributions, withdrawals, and reinvestments.
** Unrealized Appreciation does not include income distributed.  See Income Summary for details.

 Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
07/10/13 04:48:43 PM 1

50



Vintage
Year

Capital
Committed Capital Called Capital

Distributions Capital Balance
Overall
Return

Multiple
Remaining

Capital to be
Called Value DateIRR

General Fund-06
Private Capital

Multi Asset
CCP IV 250,000 190,625 23,800 200,64359,375 1.18 03/31/132007

Total Multi Asset 250,000 190,625 23,800 200,64359,375 1.18
U. S. Private Equity

CEP VII 750,000 510,750 112,242 485,644239,250 1.17 03/31/132007
Total U. S. Private Equity 750,000 510,750 112,242 485,644239,250 1.17

Total Private Capital 1,000,000 701,375 136,042 686,287298,625 1.17
Real Estate

RI200412 1,500,000 1,500,000 244,744 41,4200 0.19 03/31/132005
Total Real Estate 1,500,000 1,500,000 244,744 41,4200 0.19

2,500,000 2,201,375 380,786 727,707Grand Total 0.50298,625

Non-Marketable Investments Account Summary
Inception Through June 30, 2013
For All Accounts

CCP IV - Capital Partners IV CEP VII - Private Equity Partners VII RI200412 - Realty Investors 2004-12 (Tranche)

08/15/13 11:25:16 AM 1
 Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

51



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation 
Investment Results 
as of June 30, 2013

Graystone Consulting

Andrew Price, CIMA®
Executive Director
Institutional Consulting Director

Todd Au, CIMA®
Second Vice President
Senior Investment Management Consultant

Tim Skelly, CIMA®
Senior Vice President
Institutional Consulting Director

J.P. Szabo
Consulting Group Analyst 

Address:
10960 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 2000
Los Angeles, CA 90024

Phones:
Main Line 310-443-0530
Toll-Free 800-648-3833
Fax 310-443-0566

E-Mail:
andrew.price@morganstanleygraystone.com
todd.au@morganstanleygraystone.com
tim.skelly@morganstanleygraystone.com
jp.szabo@morganstanleygraystone.com

52

sf
Text Box



June 30, 2013 : $69,290,107

Market Value
($)

Allocation
(%)

¢£ Domestic Equities 22,148,380 31.96

¢£ Global Equities 7,052,011 10.18

¢£ International and EM Equities 16,630,492 24.00

¢£ Fixed Income 19,882,874 28.70

¢£ Real Assets 3,246,826 4.69

¢£ Cash & Equivalents 329,525 0.48

Total Fund

($) %

All/Large Cap Equities 16,531,461 23.86

Granite Large Cap Growth* 4,229,414 6.10

BlackRock Equity Dividend* 4,289,347 6.19

Touchstone Westfield All Cap Growth 4,177,052 6.03

Aristotle Large Cap Value 3,835,648 5.54

Small/Mid Cap Equities 5,616,919 8.11

Keeley SMID Value* 2,925,892 4.22

Apex SMID Cap Growth* 2,691,027 3.88

International and EM Equities 16,630,492 24.00

William Blair International Growth 6,326,841 9.13

Harbor International Equity 6,215,654 8.97

Dupont Emerging Markets 4,087,997 5.90

Global Equities 7,052,011 10.18

First Eagle 7,052,011 10.18

Total Public Equities 45,830,882 66.14

Domestic Fixed Income 15,927,766 22.99

PIMCO Total Return* 4,945,751 7.14

Met West Total Return 5,019,817 7.24

JP Morgan Strategic Income 3,352,117 4.84

Doubleline Total Return 2,610,080 3.77

Global Fixed Income 3,955,108 5.71

Brandywine Global Fixed Income 1,943,494 2.80

Templeton Global Bond Fund 2,011,614 2.90

Total Fixed Income 19,882,874 28.70

Real Assets 3,246,826 4.69

PIMCO AAAA 3,246,826 4.69

Cash & Equivalents 329,525 0.48

Cash Holding Account 329,525 0.48

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Total Fund 69,290,107 100.00

June 30, 2013

Allocation Differences

0.0% 0.5% 1.0% 1.5% 2.0% 2.5%-0.5 %-1.0 %-1.5 %

Cash & Equivalents

Real Assets

Fixed Income

Global Equities

International Equities

Domestic Equities

0.5%

-0.3 %

-1.3 %

0.2%

-1.0 %

2.0%

June 30, 2013

Market Value
($)

Allocation
(%)

Target
(%)

Domestic Equities 22,148,380 31.96 30.00

International Equities 16,630,492 24.00 25.00

Global Equities 7,052,011 10.18 10.00

Fixed Income 19,882,874 28.70 30.00

Real Assets 3,246,826 4.69 5.00

Cash & Equivalents 329,525 0.48 0.00

Total Fund 69,290,107 100.00 100.00

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
Balances and Asset Allocation

June 30, 2013

*Value includes dividend accruals not shown on statement
53



Allocation

Market
Value

($)
%

Performance(%)

Quarter
To

Date
YTD

1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

Since
Inception

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Inception

Date

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Total Fund 69,290,107100.00 -1.51 2.37 10.95 10.70 N/A 7.24 14.26 -1.69 15.82 26.76 N/A 10/01/2008

Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark 0.18 5.93 13.43 11.57 N/A 7.30 13.01 -0.51 11.58 21.70 N/A

Difference -1.69 -3.56 -2.48 -0.87 N/A -0.06 1.25 -1.18 4.24 5.06 N/A

70% S&P 500 / 30% BC Aggregate 1.34 8.83 13.96 14.15 N/A 8.85 12.54 4.33 12.98 20.49 N/A 10/01/2008

Public Equities 45,830,882 66.14 -0.83 4.78 15.49 13.46 N/A 7.17 16.40 -5.39 18.50 33.87 N/A 10/01/2008

MSCI AC World Net -0.41 6.06 16.58 12.36 2.30 6.42 16.13 -7.36 12.67 34.63 -42.21

Difference -0.42 -1.28 -1.09 1.10 N/A 0.75 0.27 1.97 5.83 -0.76 N/A

Domestic Equities 22,148,380 31.96 1.47 11.36 20.83 17.61 N/A 8.87 15.78 -0.32 18.78 28.56 N/A 10/01/2008

Russ 3000 Index 2.69 14.07 21.49 18.64 7.25 9.74 16.43 1.02 16.93 28.34 -37.31

Difference -1.22 -2.71 -0.66 -1.03 N/A -0.87 -0.65 -1.34 1.85 0.22 N/A

Granite Large Cap Growth 4,229,414 6.10 0.45 7.95 12.73 15.34 N/A 7.56 16.78 -5.81 19.84 29.01 N/A 10/01/2008

Russ 1000 Growth 2.06 11.80 17.05 18.67 7.47 10.91 15.25 2.64 16.71 37.21 -38.44

Difference -1.61 -3.85 -4.32 -3.33 N/A -3.35 1.53 -8.45 3.13 -8.20 N/A

BlackRock Equity Dividend 4,289,347 6.19 1.21 9.93 15.76 N/A N/A 9.55 12.31 N/A N/A N/A N/A 04/01/2011

Russ 1000 Value 3.20 15.91 25.32 18.51 6.67 11.76 17.50 0.39 15.51 19.69 -36.85

Difference -1.99 -5.98 -9.56 N/A N/A -2.21 -5.19 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Touchstone Westfield All Cap Growth 4,177,052 6.03 1.32 12.55 24.92 N/A N/A 11.29 21.47 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

Russ 3000 Growth 2.20 12.24 17.58 18.78 7.59 12.38 15.22 2.18 17.64 37.01 -38.44

Difference -0.88 0.31 7.34 N/A N/A -1.09 6.25 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Aristotle Large Cap Value 3,835,648 5.54 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A -2.13 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 06/01/2013

S&P 500 Index 2.92 13.84 20.60 18.45 7.01 -1.34 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00

Difference N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A -0.79 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Keeley SMID Value 2,925,892 4.22 0.31 17.29 36.08 N/A N/A 17.46 28.37 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

Russ 2500 Value 1.54 15.09 26.87 18.91 9.42 14.59 19.22 -3.36 24.82 27.68 -31.99

Difference -1.23 2.20 9.21 N/A N/A 2.87 9.15 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

Asset Allocation & Performance

As of June 30, 2013

*Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark consists of 40% S&P 500/30% EAFE/30% BC Aggregate

54



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

Asset Allocation & Performance

As of June 30, 2013
Allocation

Market
Value

($)
%

Performance(%)

Quarter
To

Date
YTD

1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

Since
Inception

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Inception

Date

Apex SMID Cap Growth 2,691,027 3.88 3.09 13.64 25.33 N/A N/A 13.87 22.21 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

Russ 2500 Growth 3.22 15.81 24.02 20.22 8.94 12.31 16.13 -1.57 28.86 41.65 -41.50

Difference -0.13 -2.17 1.31 N/A N/A 1.56 6.08 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Global Equities 7,052,011 10.18 -0.65 4.44 12.09 N/A N/A 6.23 12.76 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

MSCI AC World Net -0.41 6.06 16.58 12.36 2.30 5.51 16.13 -7.36 12.67 34.63 -42.21

Difference -0.24 -1.62 -4.49 N/A N/A 0.72 -3.37 N/A N/A N/A N/A

First Eagle 7,052,011 10.18 -0.65 4.44 12.08 N/A N/A 6.23 12.77 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

MSCI AC World Net -0.41 6.06 16.58 12.36 2.30 5.51 16.13 -7.36 12.67 34.63 -42.21

Difference -0.24 -1.62 -4.50 N/A N/A 0.72 -3.36 N/A N/A N/A N/A

International and EM Equities 16,630,492 24.00 -3.84 -2.76 10.83 7.71 N/A 5.28 19.00 -14.52 17.70 46.11 N/A 10/01/2008

MSCI AC Wd xUS (Net) -3.11 -0.04 13.65 8.00 -0.80 4.46 16.84 -13.71 11.15 41.45 -45.53

Difference -0.73 -2.72 -2.82 -0.29 N/A 0.82 2.16 -0.81 6.55 4.66 N/A

William Blair International Growth 6,326,841 9.13 -1.99 2.09 17.33 10.84 N/A 7.01 24.33 -14.32 20.14 40.23 N/A 10/01/2008

MSCI EAFE (net) -0.97 4.10 18.63 10.04 -0.63 4.27 17.32 -12.14 7.75 31.78 -43.38

Difference -1.02 -2.01 -1.30 0.80 N/A 2.74 7.01 -2.18 12.39 8.45 N/A

Harbor International Equity 6,215,654 8.97 -1.71 0.32 14.10 10.99 N/A 5.80 21.16 -11.14 11.64 38.44 N/A 10/01/2008

MSCI EAFE (net) -0.97 4.10 18.63 10.04 -0.63 4.27 17.32 -12.14 7.75 31.78 -43.38

Difference -0.74 -3.78 -4.53 0.95 N/A 1.53 3.84 1.00 3.89 6.66 N/A

Dupont Emerging Markets 4,087,997 5.90 -9.46 -15.24 -3.37 N/A N/A -8.23 20.03 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

MSCI EM (net) -8.09 -9.58 2.85 3.38 -0.43 -7.10 18.22 -18.42 18.88 78.51 -53.33

Difference -1.37 -5.66 -6.22 N/A N/A -1.13 1.81 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Fixed Income 19,882,874 28.70 -2.33 -1.52 3.43 4.84 N/A 7.99 9.98 4.07 9.44 14.88 N/A 10/01/2008

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 5.58 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Difference -0.01 0.92 4.12 1.33 N/A 2.41 5.76 -3.77 2.90 8.95 N/A

*Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark consists of 40% S&P 500/30% EAFE/30% BC Aggregate

55



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

Asset Allocation & Performance

As of June 30, 2013
Allocation

Market
Value

($)
%

Performance(%)

Quarter
To

Date
YTD

1
Year

3
Years

5
Years

Since
Inception

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Inception

Date

PIMCO Total Return 4,945,751 7.14 -3.77 -3.64 -1.19 3.36 N/A 6.95 7.15 4.74 7.66 14.38 N/A 10/01/2008

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 5.58 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Difference -1.45 -1.20 -0.50 -0.15 N/A 1.37 2.93 -3.10 1.12 8.45 N/A

Met West Total Return 5,019,817 7.24 -2.29 -1.27 4.76 N/A N/A 5.64 11.17 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 2.61 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Difference 0.03 1.17 5.45 N/A N/A 3.03 6.95 N/A N/A N/A N/A

JP Morgan Strategic Income 3,352,117 4.84 0.01 1.62 5.68 N/A N/A 4.20 7.77 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 2.61 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Difference 2.33 4.06 6.37 N/A N/A 1.59 3.55 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Doubleline Total Return 2,610,080 3.77 -1.63 -0.30 3.96 N/A N/A 6.61 9.39 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 2.61 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24

Difference 0.69 2.14 4.65 N/A N/A 4.00 5.17 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Brandywine Global Fixed Income 1,943,494 2.80 -3.18 -3.59 3.80 N/A N/A 4.94 13.11 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

Citigrp Wl Govt Bd UH -2.97 -5.66 -4.50 2.72 3.04 -2.19 1.65 6.35 5.17 2.55 10.89

Difference -0.21 2.07 8.30 N/A N/A 7.13 11.46 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Templeton Global Bond Fund 2,011,614 2.90 -2.75 -1.40 7.84 N/A N/A 3.01 16.48 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

Citigrp Wl Govt Bd UH -2.97 -5.66 -4.50 2.72 3.04 -2.19 1.65 6.35 5.17 2.55 10.89

Difference 0.22 4.26 12.34 N/A N/A 5.20 14.83 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Real Assets 3,246,826 4.69 -5.79 -5.60 3.29 N/A N/A 3.51 16.92 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

PIMCO AAAA 3,246,826 4.69 -5.79 -5.60 3.29 N/A N/A 3.66 16.94 N/A N/A N/A N/A 08/01/2011

S&P 500 Index 2.92 13.84 20.60 18.45 7.01 N/A 16.00 2.11 15.06 26.46 -37.00 01/01/1961

BC Agg Bond Index -2.32 -2.44 -0.69 3.51 5.19 8.01 4.22 7.84 6.54 5.93 5.24 01/01/1976

HFRI Fund of Funds -0.04 3.28 7.17 2.97 -0.63 7.27 4.77 -5.72 5.70 11.47 -21.37 01/01/1990

*Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark consists of 40% S&P 500/30% EAFE/30% BC Aggregate

56



Asset Allocation Over Time

Current
Quarter

YTD 2012 2011
Oct 2008

To
Dec 2008

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Total Fund 10/01/2008

   Beginning Market Value 70,046,419 66,795,296 44,214,515 47,238,634 31,161,294 31,161,294

   Net Contributions 311,635 925,282 14,860,807 -2,158,972 -475,941 21,951,380

   Fees/Expenses -28,260 -64,464 -108,831 -161,649 -51,340 -627,595

   Income 261,008 556,156 2,126,251 1,393,140 630,728 6,847,359

   Gain/Loss -1,300,696 1,077,836 5,702,554 -2,096,636 -5,921,902 9,957,669

   Ending Market Value 69,290,107 69,290,107 66,795,296 44,214,515 25,342,839 69,290,107

Current
Quarter

YTD 2012 2011
Oct 2008

To
Dec 2008

Since
Inception

Inception
Date

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation Total Fund -1.51 2.37 14.26 -1.69 -17.44 7.24 10/01/2008

Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark 0.18 5.93 13.01 -0.51 -13.59 7.30 10/01/2008

70% S&P 500 / 30% BC Aggregate 1.34 8.83 12.54 4.33 -13.99 8.85 10/01/2008

US REIT (Real-Estate Funds) US Mixed Assets US Fixed Income US Equity

International-Emerging Equity International Equity Hedge Fund Global Mixed Assets

Global Fixed Income Global Equity Cash

0.0

20.0

40.0

60.0

80.0

100.0

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

 (
%

)

9/08 12/08 3/09 6/09 9/09 12/09 3/10 6/10 9/10 12/10 3/11 6/11 9/11 12/11 3/12 6/12 9/12 12/12 3/13 6/13

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
Performance and Asset Allocation History

June 30, 2013

*Cal Poly Pomona Blended Benchmark consists of 40% S&P/30% EAFE/30% BC Aggregate

57



Ael,,
ve"

Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

Memorandum   
 
Date:  September 26, 2013 
 
To:  Board of Directors          
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From:  David F. Prenovost, 
  Senior Managing Director/CFO 
 
Subject: FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS – FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2012-13 
 
Following are the year-to-date financial statement Surplus/(Deficit) amounts: 
 

  Budget  Forecast Actual
Administration (818,402)$        (998,769)$       (1,015,393)$  
Real Estate 305,988           271,234          330,390         
Investments 610,539           1,180,023       1,049,413      
Bookstore 307,034           302,914          279,661         
Dining Services 422,334           303,546          636,706         
Kellogg West Conference Center 25,366             40,549            (38,710)         
University Village 1,148,434        1,744,591       1,046,578      
Designated Gifts (1,273,096)       (1,266,501)      (1,007,532)    
Research Office 45,156             45,602            45,152           
Agriculture 104,032           60,438            16,320           
Continuing Education 451,676           689,952          1,032,100      
Foundation Programs/Scholarships -                   -                  (88,011)         
Foundation Total 1,329,061$      2,373,579$     2,286,674$     
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 revenues of $52.0 million were 2.7% or $1.4 million 
greater than budget due to Continuing Education, Dining Services, Agricultural programs and 
Investments and exceeded forecast by $479,140 or 1.0%.  Expenditures of $49.7 million were 
1.0% or $439,500 greater than budgeted mainly due to the previously mentioned activities and 
exceeded forecast by 1.2% or $572,926, see attached for further details.   
 
The audited surplus for the fiscal year ended of $1.3 million generates a debt coverage ratio of 
3.60 before the Designated Gift and 3.01 after the Designated Gift, see attached for further 
details.  In addition, all reserves were funded to at least the forecasted amount except for the 

 

58



Agricultural Program Reserve and Pine Tree Ranch Reserve which we decided would not be 
funded due to their year-end negative cash balance.  In addition, we did not forecast the Indirect 
cost disallowance charged to the Reserve, see attached for further details.   

59



Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

 

REVENUES EXPENSES SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)

FY 11-12 FY  12-13 YTD FY 11-12 FY  12-13 YTD FY 11-12 FY  12-13 YTD FY 12-13 FY 12-13 Forecast YTD Budget

Description YTD Actual Budget Actual YTD Actual Budget Actual YTD Actual Budget Actual Forecast Budget (Not) Realized (Not) Realized

  General Activities:
    Administration 3,937,967 4,007,365 3,868,179 4,722,376 4,825,767 4,883,572 (784,409) (818,402) (1,015,393) (998,769) (818,402) (16,624) (196,991)

    Real Estate 2,071,580 2,036,422 2,165,389 1,827,893 1,857,910 1,989,828 243,687 178,512 175,561 134,712 178,512 40,849 (2,951)

    Investments (5,984) 632,828 1,089,862  23,074 22,289 40,449 (29,058) 610,539 1,049,413 1,180,023 610,539 (130,610) 438,874

    Building Rentals 746,860 765,072 764,999 631,553 637,596 610,170 115,307 127,476 154,829 136,522 127,476 18,307 27,353

    TOTAL GENERAL 6,750,423 7,441,687 7,888,429 7,204,896 7,343,562 7,524,019 (454,473) 98,125 364,410 452,488 98,125 (88,078) 266,285

  Enterprises:    
    Bookstores 11,219,917 10,241,960 10,272,415 10,790,771 9,934,926 9,992,754 429,146 307,034 279,661 302,914 307,034 (23,253) (27,373)

    Carl' s/ Salad Bar/Taco Bell 866,971 842,622 802,195 732,665 699,470 679,835 134,306 143,152 122,360 138,499 159,773 (16,139) (37,413)

    Panda Express 124,489 127,700 121,963 9,787 12,228 8,423 114,702 115,472 113,540 113,720 115,472 (180) (1,932)

    C-Store's(incl. Starbucks,sce,Einstein,cba,poly trolle  2,222,538 3,536,714 3,676,492 1,987,149 3,179,040 3,185,956 235,389 357,674 490,536 335,573 357,674 154,963 132,862

    Vending &  Carts 125,543 125,400 88,834 78,611 103,414 63,556 46,932 21,986 25,278 (7,920) 21,986 33,198 3,292

    Los Olivos 5,425,233 4,422,498 4,600,825  4,564,231 4,050,525 3,994,628 861,002 371,973 606,197 502,512 327,748 103,685 278,449

    Vista Café 1,267,716 1,222,038 1,427,955 1,237,062 1,199,105 1,318,995 30,654 22,933 108,960 25,606 22,933 83,354 86,027

    Vista Diner-Denny's 925,058 900,388 810,748 963,302 853,289 853,494 (38,244) 47,099 (42,746) (52,841) 47,099 10,095 (89,845)

    Geneva Café 48,694 0 0 61,042 0 1,987 (12,348) 0 (1,987) 0 0 (1,987) (1,987)

    Bronco Student Center 1,594,049 1,721,609 2,031,700 1,309,661 1,407,756 1,710,693 284,388 313,853 321,007 376,687 313,853 (55,680) 7,154

    FS Mgt/Overhead (42) 0 46,249 883,742 860,984 962,489 (883,784) (860,984) (916,240) (921,661) (860,984) 5,421 (55,256)

Total Dining Services 12,600,249 12,898,969 13,606,961 11,827,252 12,365,811 12,780,056 772,997 533,158 826,905 510,175 505,554 316,730 321,351

    Catering/Conference Foods 1,723,324 1,811,267 1,663,936 1,902,425 1,846,112 1,793,847 (179,101) (34,845) (129,911) (159,460) (34,845) 29,549 (95,066)

    K.W  Conference Cntr. 1,364,529 1,431,126 1,315,977 1,342,383 1,405,760 1,354,687 22,146 25,366 (38,710) 40,549 25,366 (79,259) (64,076)

    University Village 7,934,536 8,126,675 8,344,009 6,681,407 6,978,241 7,297,431 1,253,129 1,148,434 1,046,578 1,744,591 1,148,434 (698,013) (101,856)

TOTAL ENTERPRISE 34,842,555 34,509,997 35,203,298 32,544,238 32,530,850 33,218,775 2,298,317 1,979,147 1,984,523 2,438,769 1,951,543 (454,246) 32,980

TOTAL GEN &  ENTERPRISE  41,592,978 41,951,684 43,091,727 39,749,134 39,874,412 40,742,794 1,843,844 2,077,272 2,348,933 2,891,257 2,049,668 (542,324) 299,265
 

Uses of Designated Funds:
    Development   41 0 0 48,529 57,500 54,589 (48,488) (57,500) (54,589)
    Alumni Affairs 3,253 0 2,135 62,253 60,500 62,596 (59,000) (60,500) (60,461)
    Public Relations 35,732 0 3,787 411,171 573,250 352,295 (375,439) (573,250) (348,508)
    Publications 7,891 0 446 159,258 174,975 166,317 (151,367) (174,975) (165,871)
    Athletics 0 0 0 55,000 55,000 55,000 (55,000) (55,000) (55,000)
    Other  17,912 0 16,504 798,683 335,250 339,607 (780,771) (335,250) (323,103)
TOTAL DESIGNATED USES 64,829 0 22,872 1,534,894 1,256,475 1,030,404 (1,470,065) (1,256,475) (1,007,532) (1,266,501) (1,273,096) 258,969 265,564

Other Activities:  
    Research Office 1,385,202 1,600,000 1,288,608 1,340,050 1,554,844 1,243,456 45,152 45,156 45,152 45,602        45,156 (450) (4)

    Agriculture 3,119,127 3,129,118 3,084,371 2,920,902 3,025,086 3,068,051 198,225 104,032 16,320 60,438 104,032 (44,118) (87,712)

    Continuing Education 3,271,963     2,965,070    3,904,899 2,406,661         2,513,394     2,872,799 865,302        451,676           1,032,100 689,952 451,676      342,148 580,424

Fdn. Program-Unrestricted 520,056        1,017,696    635,892        659,603            1,017,696     723,903       (139,547)      -                  (88,011)         0 (88,011) (88,011)

    TOTAL OTHER 8,296,348 8,711,884 8,913,770 7,327,216 8,111,020 7,908,209 969,132 600,864 1,005,561 795,992 600,864 209,569 404,697

TOTAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 49,954,155 50,663,568 52,028,369 48,611,244 49,241,907 49,681,407  1,342,911 1,421,661 2,346,962 2,420,748 1,377,436 (73,786) 969,526

LO Surplus 1% (54,252)        (44,225)           (60,288) (47,169) (48,375) (13,119) (11,913)

TOTAL FOUNDATION Net 14,192,499 50,663,568 52,028,369 48,611,244 49,241,907 49,681,407 1,288,659 1,377,436 2,286,674 2,373,579 1,329,061 (86,905) 957,613

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
Statement of Activities

For period ending June 30, 2013 and 2012

60



                                                                             Debt Service Coverage
                                                                         (Fiscal Year Ended June 30)

Proposed
Revised Budget Forecast Actual Budget

Description 2012-13 2012-13 2012-13 2013-14

Change in unrestricted net assets 1,329,061$          2,373,579$           2,286,674$            1,486,778$            

Add Back:
Transfer of Fixed Assets to University -                      -                        -                         -                         
University Designated Expenses 1,273,096            1,266,501             1,007,532              1,626,664              

Surplus (Deficit) before Designated Expenses - see Note 2,602,157$          3,640,080$           3,294,206$            3,113,442$            

Add Back:
Depreciation and amortization 3,786,795            3,788,607             3,780,173              3,996,802              
Interest (see detail below) 1,403,350            1,403,350             1,403,350              1,369,183              

Available for Debt Service 7,792,302$          8,832,037$           8,477,729$            8,479,427$            

Maximum Annual Debt Service *
2005 Series Bonds 1,830,625            1,830,625             1,830,625              1,830,625              
2007 Series Bonds 332,750               332,750                332,750                 332,750                 

Total Debt Service 2,163,375$          2,163,375$           2,163,375$            2,163,375$            

Total Debt Service before Designated Expenses - see Note 3.60                     4.08                      3.92                       3.92                       

Total Debt Service after Designated Expenses 3.01                     3.50                      3.45                       3.17                       

Note: The CSU requires for additional bond issuance the Foundation demonstrate a debt service coverage ratio of 1.25 
 for both the proposed project and Foundation's debt program. 

* Maximum annual debt service is reported as the total amount of scheduled debt service during the year in which 
the debt service is scheduled to be highest during the life of the Bonds

Interest Detail
2005 Series Bonds - Interest 1,256,250            1,256,250             1,256,250              1,229,417              
2007 Series Bonds - Interest 147,100               147,100                147,100                 139,767                 

Total Interest Expense 1,403,350$          1,403,350$           1,403,350$            1,369,183$            
61



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
Analysis of Reserves

Revised Projected
Balance Budget Forecast Actual Balance Balance
Jun-12 Fiscal 12/13 Fiscal 12/13 Fiscal 12/13 Jun-13 Jun-14 Goal

(1) (2) (3) (4) (1+4)=5 (6) (7)
Board Designated Reserves

Agriculture Program Reserve 75,000                54,181                24,855                (43,033)              31,967                131,400              75,000               
Cafeteria State Share Reserve 182,062              -                     182,062              182,062              
Capital Reserve 3,014,905           868,803              753,135              777,118              3,792,023           3,230,854           6,000,000          
Emergency Reserve 120,152              -                     120,152              120,152              
Indirect Cost Dissallowance Reserve 404,656              (58,250)              346,406              404,656              492,195             
Innovation Village Demo Reserve 82,693                46,487                46,487                46,487                54,617                
Insurance Reserve 137,448              60,950                (119,050)            (36,686)              100,762              127,507              
Pine Tree Ranch Reserve 140,886              (74,663)              8,386                  -                     140,886              158,879              75,000               
Auxiliaries Multiple Employer VEBA Trust 1,000,000           1,000,000           1,000,000           1,000,000           1,000,000           
Research & Sponsored Programs 74,521                20,000                20,000                20,000                94,521                114,521              
Residential Board Meal Program Surplus Res 1,159,764           (22,602)              126,163              293,141              1,452,905           1,167,580           
Venture Capital/Real Estate Reserve 477,007              21,451                430,363              444,067              921,074              1,348,407           6,000,000          

62



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Memorandum

September 26, 2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation,Inc.

41->-4-01-exZDavid F. Prenovoit
Chief Financial Officer

Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy 123

Adej
Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

Foundation management is requesting the Finance Committee's consideration and review of the suggested
changes to the Foundation's Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy.

Policy 123 - Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy

Recommended Action: The Board of Directors approves the suggested changes to the Foundation's Real
Estate Acquisition and Development Policy # 123.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy # 123.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:
Rachel Dominguez, Secretary
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Memorandum

September 26,2013

Board of Directors

d
hlPdt Puf,n

tounililim

Date:

To:

From:

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation,Jnc.

)A44**h
David F. Prenovodt'
Chief Financial Officer

Subject: Real Estate Acquisition and Development policy 123

Foundation management is requesting the Finance Committee's consideration and review of the suggested
changes to the Foundation's Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy.

Policy 123 - Real Estate Acquisition and Development policy

Recommended Action: The Board of Directors approves the suggested changes to the Foundation's Real
Estate Acquisition and Development policy # 123.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Real Estate Acquisition and Deveropment policy # 123.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:
Rachel Dominguez, Secretary
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, lnc.



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDUES 
 
 
 

 
Subject: 

 
REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION 

 
Policy No. 

 
123 

 AND DEVELOPMENT Date: 11/18/02 
  Revision:  
Reference: 310-II-C   

 
PURPOSE 

 
Frameworks within which the Foundation may acquire, sell, trade, exchange and develop real property 
in support of the University’s mission. 

 
I. BACKGROUND 

 
A. Title 5, California Code of Regulations, section 42500(a), lists essential functions the 

Trustees have determined are appropriate for auxiliary organizations. Subsection 12 
lists: 

 
Acquisition, development, sale and transfer of real and personal 
Property including financing transactions related to these activities. 

 
B. In order for the Foundation to perform the Section 42500(a)(12) function, an 

Appropriate operating agreement with the University covering this function 
shall be in effect. At the time that this Policy Statement is adopted, the 
University and the Foundation have in effect a Master Operating Agreement 
(MOA) that includes “acquisition and development of real property.” 

 
C. Executive Order No. 676 provides limited authority to a campus president to accept gifts 

of interest in real property within specific criteria. 
 

D. Executive Order No. 703 (superseded by Executive Order 876) sets forth a comprehensive 
procedural framework in 

connection with auxiliary organization financing activities that may involve a real property 
interest. 

 
E. Executive Order No. 747 established policies and procedures for projects involving real 

property development. 
 

F. California Corporations Code Section 5230 et seq. sets certain standards of conduct of 
the Foundation Board of Directors, its officers and management in the performance of 
duties and transactions, including those involving real property, requiring good faith, in a 
manner believed to be in the best interest of the corporation, and with such care, 
including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinary prudent person in a like position under 
similar circumstances. 

 
G. California Corporations Code Section 5240(b) generally requires management of 

Foundation invested assets (including reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging 
and selling) to a standard that avoids speculation, looking instead to the permanent 

64



Policy No. 123 
Subject: REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION & DEVELOPMENT 
Page No.  2 

 
disposition of assets, considering probable income, as well as the probable safety of its 
capital. 

 
II. POLICY 

 
A. Real Estate Transaction Purposes 

 
This policy statement is intended to apply to the following broad real property 
transaction purposes by the Foundation: 

 
1. Meeting University facility and programmatic needs; and 
2. Supporting the University’s faculty, staff and student housing 

programs. 
 

B. Real Estate Acquisition Funding Mechanism Established 
 

To fund real property acquisitions for the Foundation through this policy statement, the 
Executive Director may establish appropriate written asset transfer procedures using 
generally accepted accounting principles and practices. 

 
C. Funding Sources 

 
Real property transactions involving restricted assets (such as donated property) shall 
respect the terms and conditions of the restrictions upon the asset. Unrestricted funds 
may be utilized to acquire real property. 

 
D. Real Property Transaction Criteria 

 
The Executive Director or designee is delegated authority to transact real property (or 
any interest therein) by purchase, sale, trade, lease, or by internal asset exchange, 
upon written approval by the Finance/Investment Committee such that following 
applicable criteria have been met: 

 
1. The transaction has been preceded by an appropriate and documented “due 

diligence” review that includes, but is not limited to, an appraisal or other 
valuation, and legal, financial, environmental (if applicable), land-use, return on 
investment, and transaction purpose considerations. 

 
2. The proposed real property transaction and its intended purpose and result shall 

be consistent with laws, regulations, policy and procedures applicable to the 
transaction. 

 
3. The University President has formally approved the proposed real property 

transaction with a finding that such transaction is in support of the University’s 
mission. 

 
4. The proposed transaction is consistent with any applicable gift or sponsor 

instrument restricting transfer. 
 

5. The proposed transaction is on “arms length” and equitable basis, particularly 
with the regard to internal asset exchanges or transfers to another campus 
auxiliary organization. 

 
 

65



Policy No. 123 
Subject: REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION & DEVELOPMENT 
Page No.  3 

The Executive Director or designee is delegated authority, per the terms and conditions of guaranteed 
re-purchase agreements, in accordance with the faculty/staff housing program, to re-purchase 
residences under the housing buyback provisions and corresponding sales and leases to 
faculty, staff or allowable buyer without the written approval by the Finance Committee.  

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

66



Policy No. 123 
Subject: REAL ESTATE ACQUISITION & DEVELOPMENT 
Page No.  4 

 
 
III. REPORTS TO THE BOARD 

 
The Executive Director shall periodically report to the Board on significant real property 
transactions subject to this policy statement. 

 

 
 
IV. IMPLEMENTING GUIDELINES 

 
The Executive Director is authorized to establish written management guidelines consistent with 
and in implementation of this policy statement. 

67



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Memorandum

Date: September 26, 2013

To: Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation.Inc.

From: David F. Prenovot
Chief Financial Officer

Subject: FOUNDATION MINIMUM AUTHORIZED SIGNATURES POLICY 122

Adel
Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

Foundation management is requesting the Finance Committee's consideration and review of the suggested
changes to the Foundation's Budget Process Policy.

Policy 122 - Minimum Authorized Signatures Policy

Recommended Action: The members of the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Minimum Authorized Signatures Policy # 122.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Minimum Authorized Signatures Policy # 122.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:

Rachel Dominguez, Secretary
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Memorandum

September 26,2013

Board of Directors
hrh[ffi
Fundilim

Date:

To:

From:

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation,Jnc.
)"*g44^*A

David F. Prenovo6tl
Chief Financial Officer

Subject: FoUNDATIoN MtNtMUM AUTHoRtzED StcNATURES poLtcy 122

Foundation management is reQuesting the Finance Committee's consideration and review of the suggested
changes to the Foundation's Budget process policy.

Policy 122 - Minimum Authorized Signatures policy

Recommended Action: The members of the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Minimum Authorized Signatures policy # 122.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approve the suggested changes to the
Foundation's Minimum Authorized Signatures policy # 122.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:
Rachel Dominguez, Secretary
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 
 
 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
Minimum Authorized Signatures 

 
Policy No. 

 
122 

  Date: 06/04/02 
Reference: 308-II-A, 324-III-B, 329-III-C, 332-III-H Revision: 02/16/06; 02/22/07 
 342-III- B, 344-III-J, 347-III-E  9/27/07; 5/29/08, 
   2/16/10, 09/28/10, 
   05/24/11 

 
PURPOSE: 

 
To designate the minimum authorized signatures on documents for Foundation transactions. 

 
BACKGROUND: 

 
A. The Foundation is engaged in diverse transactions which require prudent control over the 

authorization to execute documents which obligate the Foundation or which otherwise confirm 
transactions. 

 
This statement lists the document types and one of the corresponding signatories required 
thereon to authorize the transaction associated with each type of document except as noted. 

 
POLICY: 

 
The following is a description of documents and corresponding authorized signatures which 
require at least the authorization of the Executive Director or the Senior Managing 
Director/Chief Financial Officer for those transactions greater than $200,000., except as 
otherwise stated in the following sections. 

 
Transaction Type/Document Authorization 

 
ACCOUNT TRANSACTIONS: 

 
Bank Account Transfers Executive Director,  Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, Financial 
Systems ManagerAnalyst, Director of 
Enterprise Accounting, Manager of 
Grants and Contracts 

 
Letter Of Credit Transactions Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, Director of 
Enterprise Accounting, Manager of Grants 
and Contracts 

69



Policy No. 
Subject: 
Page 2 

122 
Minimum Authorized Signatures 

 

 
 
CONTRACTUAL DOCUMENTS: 

 
Agreements, Leases, MOU’s and Licenses Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial 
Officer, Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary- 
Treasurer, Director of Enterprise 
Accounting, Director ofChief Employment 
Services
Officer 

 
Externally Sponsored Project Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Agreements and Awards Director/Chief Financial Officer,  Chair, 

Vice Chair, Secretary-Treasurer. Director 
of Enterprise Accounting, Director ofChief 
Employment ServicesOfficer 

 
Externally Sponsored Project Proposals Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, 
Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary-Treasurer, 
Director of Enterprise Accounting, Director 
of Chief Employment ServicesOfficer 

 

 
 
EXPENDITURE REQUEST/AUTHORIZATION: 

 
Disbursement Voucher/Interdepartmental 
Transfers Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, General 
Business Manager, Manager of Grants 
and Contracts or their designee, Director 
of Enterprise Accounting and Account 
Authorized Signers (Restricted campus 
Foundation programs and scholarship 
programs 
require two signatures for Interdepartment 
Transfers; one from the authorized signers 
or supervisor or their designee and one 
from the Foundation Internal Manager for 
amounts in excess of $3,000) 

 
Purchase Orders Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, General 
Business Manager, Manager of Grants 
and Contracts or their designee and 
Director of Enterprise Accounting 

70



Policy No. 
Subject: 
Page 3 

122 
Minimum Authorized Signatures 

 

 
 
NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS: 

 
Commercial Checks/Electronic Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Transfers (i.e., wires, automatic Director/Chief Financial Officer, Director 
Clearing house) of Chief Employment ServicesOfficer, 
Director of 
Dining Services, Director of Enterprise 

Accounting, Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary- 
Treasurer (Two signatures required for all 
checks of $10,000 or more.) 

 
 
 
 

Payroll Checks Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Director/Chief Financial Officer, Director of 
Chief Employment ServicesOfficer, 
Director of Dining Services, Director of 
Enterprise Accounting, Chair, Vice Chair, 
Secretary- Treasurer. (Two signatures 
required for all checks of $10,000 or 
more.) 

 
OTHER: 

 
Applications for Foundation Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Sponsored Agreements Director/Chief Financial Officer, Chair, 

Vice Chair, Secretary-Treasurer, Director 
of Enterprise Accounting, Director of 
Chief Employment ServicesOfficer 

 

 
 

Foundation Program / Scholarship Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Agreements Director/Chief Financial Officer, University 

Chief Financial Officer, Dean or Vice 
President (3 Signatures) 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.29", First
line:  0", Right:  0.27", Line spacing:  single,
Tab stops:  3.57", Left

71



Policy No. 
Subject: 
Page 4 

122 
Minimum Authorized Signatures 

 

 
 

Certifications and Assurances Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Relating to Sponsored Project Director/Chief Financial Officer, 
Proposals Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary-Treasurer, 

Director of Enterprise Accounting, Director 
of Chief Employment ServicesOfficer 

 
Federal Voucher Certifications Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, Manager 
of, Grants and Contracts 

 
Financial Reports to Granting Agencies Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial 
Officer, Manager of Grants and Contracts 

 
Personnel Forms Executive Director, Senior Managing 

Director/Chief Financial Officer, Director of 
Chief Employment ServicesOfficer, 
Manager of Grants and Contracts, or their 
designee, Authorized Account Signers (2 
Signatures) 

 
Real Property Conveyance Chair, Executive Director, Senior 
Instruments Managing Director/Chief Financial 

Officer 
 

Tax Returns Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Director/Chief Financial 
Officer, Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary- 
Treasurer (2 Signatures) 

 
Time Cards Employee and Authorized Account Signer 

or their designee (2 Signatures) 
 

Travel Authorization Executive Director, Senior Managing 
Director/Chief Financial Officer, Manager 
of Grants and Contracts, General 
Business Manager or their designee, and 
Account Authorized Signers (2 Signatures) 

 
Journal Entries Signatures by the approver and preparer 

are required for each journal entry 
transaction. The approver shall be one of 
the following: The Executive Director, 
Senior Managing Director/Chief Financial 
Officer, General Business Manager, 
Manager of Grants and Contracts, 
Associate Director Employment Services, 
Director of Enterprise Accounting, 
Financial Systems Manager Analyst or 
their designee. 

72



Memorandum

Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

September 26, 2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

David vrenovost
Senior Managing Director/CFO

Alel"°fr

CM Poly Pomona

Foundation

2012-13 EXTERNAL AUDIT AND SINGLE AUDIT REPORTS

Vicenti Lloyd & Stutzman has completed the financial and single audits of Cal Poly Pomona
Foundation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The Foundation is expected to receive an
unqualified financial statement opinion with no management letter comments, no material
weaknesses, no reportable conditions and no compliance issues noted proposed and/or
discussed with management.

Vicenti Lloyd and Stutzman will now present the following draft reports to the Audit Committee
along with their required disclosures:

Independent Auditors' Report and Financial Statements

Single Audit Reports

PROPOSED ACTION:

WHEREAS, The Foundation is requesting the Board of Directors accepts Vicenti Lloyd &
Stutzman's unqualified opinion upon the Foundation's Financial and Single Audit Reports for the
fiscal year ended June 30. 2013.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc., Board of
Directors accepts the Vicenti Lloyd & Stutzman's unqualified opinion upon the Foundation's
Financial and Single Audit Reports.

Passed and adopted this 26th day of September 2013.

By: / /1-24-te

Rachel Dominguez, Secretary 0
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

7

Memorandum

Date:

To:

From:

September 26,2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

David f/#"#

HlPllPomm
Founilation

Senior Managing Director/CFO

Subject: 2012-13 EXTERNAL AUDIT AND SINGLE AUDTT REPORTS

Vicenti Lloyd & Stutzman has completed the financial and single audits of Cal Poly Pomona
Foundation for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The Foundation is expected to receive an
unqualified financial statement opinion with no management letter comments, no material
weaknesses, no reportable conditions and no compliance issues noted proposed and/or
discussed with management.

Vicenti Lloyd and Stutzman will now present the following draft reports to the Audit Committee
along with their required disclosures:

. Independent Auditors' Report and Financial Statements

o Single Audit Reports

PROPOSED ACTION:

WHEREAS, The Foundation is requesting the Board of Directors accepts Vicenti Lloyd &
Stutzman's unqualified opinion upon the Foundation's Financial and Single Audit Reports for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE lT RESOLVED that the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc., Board of
Directors accepts the Vicenti Lloyd & Stutzman's unqualified opinion upon the Foundation's
Financial and Single Audit Reports.

Passed and adopted this 26th day of September 20i3.

By:

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.



_-_---------:=-7--=== VICENTI LLOYD STUTZMAN LLPWBUSINESS CONSULTANTS AND CPAs

September 12, 2013

To the Audit Committee
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc

Dear Audit Committee:

This letter is intended to inform the Audit Committee about significant matters related to the
conduct of the annual audit to appropriately discharge its oversight responsibility and so that we
comply with our professional responsibilities to the Audit Committee.

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities of Cal Poly Pomona
Foundation for the year ended June 30, 2013. Professional standards require that we provide you
with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A-133, as well as certain information related
to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our
letter to you dated April 8, 2013. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you
the following information related to our audit.

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies used by
the Foundation. The significant accounting policies used by the Foundation are described in Note
2 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during 2012-13 fiscal year. We noted no transactions entered
into by the foundation during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

As discussed in Note 17, in 2013 the Foundation adopted new accounting guidance, GASB
Statement No 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM

     DRAFT for Discussion Purposes Only 
 

 

74



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
September 12, 2013
Page 2

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices (continued)

Estimates significant to the financial statements include such items as estimated useful
lives of depreciable assets, fair value of investments, assets held for sale, unitrust
liabilities and liabilities for postemployment benefits. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the accounting estimates in determining that it is reasonable
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

We believe management's estimates are reasonable, based on our audit. However,
estimates are subject to change because of future events, and the ultimate amounts
realized may differ from those provided.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

There were no difficulties encountered in dealing with management relating to the performance
of the audit.

Audit Adjustments

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level
of management. There were no audit adjustments to the original trial balance presented to us.

Uncorrected Misstatements

We accumulated uncorrected misstatements which were discussed with management and were
determined by management to be immaterial to the basic financial statements. Therefore,
correcting adjustments were not made to the June 30, 2013 financial statements. These
uncorrected amounts are summarized in the accompanying schedule (See Attachment A).

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting,
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements
arose during the course of our audit.

     DRAFT for Discussion Purposes Only 
 

 

75



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
September 12, 2013
Page 3

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management including but not limited to the fair
presentation of the financial statements, application of generally accepted accounting principles
and management's responsibility for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls.
These as well as other representations are included in the management representation letter dated
September 12, 2013.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the Foundation's financial
statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. We are not aware of any consultations
management had with other accountants regarding accounting or auditing matters.

Significant Issues Discussed with Management

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the Foundation's auditors.
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and
our responses were not a condition to our retention.

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

With respect to the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the
prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves.

We are not aware of other documents that contain the audited financial statements; if such
documents are to be published, such as an Annual Report, we have a responsibility to determine
that such financial information is materially consistent with the audited statements of the
Foundation.

     DRAFT for Discussion Purposes Only 
 

 

76



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
September 12, 2013
Page 4

Other Reports

A separate Single Audit Report dated September 12, 2013 is prepared and will be submitted to
the Federal Clearinghouse along with the Data Collection Form.

Closing

We will be pleased to respond to any questions you have about the foregoing. We appreciate the
opportunity to continue to be of service to the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and
management of the foundation, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone
other than these specified parties.

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAN LLP

     DRAFT for Discussion Purposes Only 
 

 

77



Cal Poly Pomona Foundation
Proposed Adjusting Journal Entries

6/30/2013
Exhibit A

Account Effect on Net

Fund Number Account Description Debit Credit Assets

Proposed Adjusting Journal Entry # 1
To reclass credit memos for financial statement

presentation.
04 1128 Accrued Income $ 684,488 $

04 2020 Accrued Expense 684,488

Proposed Adjusting Journal Entry # 2
To adjust OPEB liability per actuarial report

01 1501 Post Retired Medical accrual 54,107

01 7312 Staff Benefit/Post Retiree Medical Expense 54,107 54,107

Net decrease in ending balance $54,107

     DRAFT for Discussion Purposes Only 
 

 

78



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules

June 30, 2013 and 2012

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)

CAL POLY POMONA FOIJN1)ATION, INC. 

Financial Statements and Supplementary Schedules 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon) 

79



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

AUDIT REPORT
For the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) i-xviii

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statement of Net Position 1

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 2
Statements of Cash Flows 3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4-26

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Post-Employment Health Care Benefits Funding Progress 27

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Net Position 28
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 29
Other Information 30-37
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 38-39

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

AUDIT REPORT 
For the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) ........................................i-xviii 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Statementof Net Position ................................................................................................ 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position ..................................... 2 
Statementsof Cash Flows ................................................................................................. 3 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ....................................................................... 4-26 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedule of Post-Employment Health Care Benefits Funding Progress .......................... 27 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Scheduleof Net Position................................................................................................... 28 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position....................................... 29 
OtherInformation.............................................................................................................. 30-3 7 
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and 

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ............. 3 8-39 

80



.=----S--=-X VICENTI LLOYD STUTZMAN LLPBUSINESS CONSULTANTS AND CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. (a
California State University Auxiliary Organization) (the Foundation) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the
related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In maldng
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM

__ VICENTI. LLOYD. STUTZMAN 
B U S I N E SS CONSULTANTS AND CPAs 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

I'he Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, inc. (a 
California State University Auxiliaiy Organization) (the Foundation) as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the 
related notes to the financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740 
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VISILI'.COM 81



The Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements listed in the aforementioned table of contents present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of
its operations, changes in net position and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 17 to the basic financial statements, in 2013 the Foundation adopted new accounting
guidance, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and schedule of finding progress be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

The Hoard of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements listed in the aforementioned table of contents present fairly, iii all 
material respects, the financial position of the Foundation as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of 
its operations, changes in net position and cash flows for the fiscal years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted iii the United States of America. 

Chan2e in Accountin! Principle 

As discussed in Note 17 to the basic financial statements, in 2013 the Foundation adopted new accounting 
guidance, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources and Net Position and GASH Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Asscs 
and Liabilities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to these matters. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and schedule of finding progress he presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We 
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

82



The Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Foundation financial statements as a
whole. The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 12,
2013 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

\iv:mit/CI "Pict -14-3-4,to ,Lia°

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMAVLLP
Glendora, CA
September 12, 2013

The Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 

Other Information 

Oitr audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the Foundation financial statements as a 
whole. The supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required pan of the basic financial statements. 

The supplementary section is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directLy to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion. the inforniation is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Reuuircd by Government Auditin! Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 12, 
2013 on our consideration of the Foundation's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. Ihe purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Foundation's internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

\Lont1c, 
VICENTI. LLOYD & STT.JTZMA LU' 
Glendora, CA 
September 12, 2013 

83



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Introduction

The Foundation is a nonprofit organization formed to support and advance the mission of
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (the University). To fulfill this mission, the
Foundation pursues a wide range of opportunities in the areas of the development and
administration of research and educational grants and contracts; conducting enterprise activities
including, dining services, bookstores, conference center lodge, apartment style housing,
continuing education and agricultural aid to instruction; the accumulation and management of
Foundation program and student scholarship finds on behalf of the University; and the
development and administration of faculty staff housing and a research park, special programs,
and other activities.

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and
activities of the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation (the Foundation) for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012. The discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto, which follow this section.

Introduction to the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements prepared in accordance with the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles. One of the most important
questions asked about the Foundation's finances is whether the Foundation is better or worse off
as a result of these year's activities. The keys to understanding this question are the Statement of
Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement
of Cash Flows.

The Foundation's net position (the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources
and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources), which is reported in the Statement of Net
Position, is one indicator of the Foundation's financial health. Over time, increases or decreases
in net position are one indicator of the improvement or erosion of the Foundation's financial
condition when considered in combination with other non-financial information.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Introduction 

The Foundation is a nonprofit organization formed to support and advance the mission of 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (the University). To fulfill this mission, the 
Foundation pursues a wide range of opportunities in the areas of the development and 
administration of research and educational grants and contracts; conducting enterprise activities 
inclilding, dining services, bookstores, conference center lodge, apartment style housing, 
continuing education and agricultural aid to instruction; the accumulation and management of 
Foundation program and student scholarship funds on behalf of the University; and the 
development and administration of faculty staff housing and a research park, special programs. 
and other activities. 

The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial position and 
activities of the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation (the Foundation) for the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012. The discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto, which follow this section. 

Introduction to the Financial Statements 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements prepared in accordance with the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) principles. One of the most important 
questions asked about the Foundation's fmances is whether the Foundation is better or worse off 
as a result of these year's activities. The keys to understanding this question are the Statement of 
Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and the Statement 
of Cash Flows. 

The Foundations net position (the difference between assets plus deferred outflows of resources 
and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources), which is reported in the Statement of Net 
Position, is one indicator of the Foundation's financial health. Overtime, increases or decreases 
in net position are one indicator of the improvement or erosion of the Foundation's financial 
condition when considered in combination with other non-financial inibrmation. 

-I- 

84



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents revenues earned and
expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating;
with the above mentioned activities reported as operating revenues and expenses and gifts and
investment results reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. This statement is prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and receivables are recognized when the
service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when incurred, regardless of when
cash is exchanged.

Another way to assess the financial health of the Foundation is to review the Statement of Cash
Flows. Its primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the sources and uses of cash
of an entity during a given period. The information provided in this statement should help
financial report users assess the Foundation's ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability
to meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing. It also provides
insight into the reasons for differences between operating income and associated cash receipts
and payments; and the effects on Foundation's financial position of its cash and its noncash
investing, capital, and related financing transactions during the year.

These statements are supported by notes to the basic financial statements, required
supplementary information, as appropriate, and this section. All sections must be considered
together to obtain a complete understanding of the financial picture of the Foundation.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents revenues earned and 
expenses incurred during the year. Activities are reported as either operating or non-operating; 
with the above mentioned activities reported as operatthg revellues and expenses and gifts and 
investment results reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. This statement is prepared 
using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and receivables arc recognized when the 
service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when incurred, regardless of when 
cash is exchanged. 

Another way to assess the financial health of the Foundation is to review the Statement of Cash 
Flows. Its primary purpose is to provide relevant information about the sources and uses of cash 
of an entity during a given period. The information provided in this statement should help 
financial report users assess the Foundation's ability to generate future net cash flows, its ability 
to meet its obligations as they come due, and its need for external financing. It also provides 
insight into the reasons for differences between operating income and associated cash receipts 
ajd payments; and the effects on Foundation's financial position of its cash and its noncash 
investing, capital, and related financing transactions during the year. 

These statements are supported by notes to the basic financial statements, required 
supplementary information, as appropriate, and this section. All sections must be considered 
together to obtain a complete understanding of the financial picture of thc Foundation. 

-Li- 

85



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Statement of Net Position

The statement of net p o sit i o n presents the financial position of the Foundation at the end
of the fiscal year and includes all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources of the Foundation. The difference between total assets plus deferred
outflows of resources and total liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources - net position - is
one indicator of the current financial condition of the Foundation, while the change in net
position is an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened
during the year. Assets and liabilities are generally measured using current values. One notable
exception is capital assets, which are stated at historical costs less an allowance for depreciation.
For the purpose of distinguishing between current and noncurrent assets and liabilities, current
assets and liabilities are those that can be reasonably expected to either generate or use cash, as
part of normal business operations, within one year of the financial statement date. A summary
of the Foundation's assets, liabilities, and net position is as follows:

Assets:
(in thousands)

2013

(in thousands)

2012
Current assets $ 53,900 $ 40,900
Noncurrent assets:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,200 1,000
Pledges receivable, net 5,100 6,700
Endowment investments 68,000 54,600
Other long-term investments 700 7,800
Capital assets, net 56,000 57,700

Total noncurrent assets 131,000 127,800

Total assets 184,900 168,700

Liabilities:

Current liabilities 10,200 9,400
Noncurrent liabilities 30,700 31,900

Total liabilities 40,900 41,300

Net position:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 27,000 27,900
Restricted:

Nonexpendable 69,300 51,100
Expendable 35,600 38,300

Unrestricted 12,100 10,100

Total net position $ 144,000 $ 127,400

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS Mfl&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Statement of Net Position 

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the Foundation at the end 
of the fiscal year and includes all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources of the Foundation. The difference between total assets plus deferred 
outflows of resources and total liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources--net position - is 
one indicator of the current financial condition of the Foundation, while the change in net 
position is an indicator of whether the overall financial condition has improved or worsened 
during the year. Assets and liabilities are generally measured using current values. One notable 
exception is capital assets, which are stated at historical costs less an allowance for depreciation. 
For the purpose of distinguishing between current and noncurrent assets and liabilities, current 
assets and liabilities are those that can be reasonably expected to either generate or use cash, as 
part of noimal business operations, within one year of the financial statement date. A summary 
of the Foundation's assets, liabilities, and net position is as follows: 

(hitFwaisands) (frnthousmtjs) 
2013 2012 

S 53900 $ 40,900 

1,200 1 000 
5,100 6,700 

68,000 54600 
700 7,800 

56000 57,700 

131,000 27,800 

84900 68700 

10.200 9,400 
30700 31900 

40,900 41.300 

27,000 27.900 

69,300 51,104) 
35,600 38,300 
12,100 10,100 

$ 144,000 S 127,400 

Msets: 
Cunent assets 
Noncuncnt assets: 

Rsldcted cash and cash equivnlents 
PJvs receivable, net 
EMoment investments 
Other ng-term iwsunenIs 
Capital assets, net 

Total 'oncurrent ossets 

Total assets 

UabillSs: 
Current IiahiIies 
Noncuaeni Uabfles 

Total bllkks 

Net position: 
In'tsS hi capital assets, net ofrelated debt 
Restricted: 

Nor.xpendab1c 
Expendable 

LTnrestrkted 

Total net posion 

-Ill- 

86



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Total assets are $185 and $169 million for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. The
increase between 2013 and 2012 of 9.5% is mainly attributable to investment earnings and
endowment donations. The 2012 year reported an increase over the previous year of
approximately 50% is attributable to the dissolution, wind-up and transfer of net assets of $54.8
from the Cal Poly Pomona University Educational Trust (UET).

Total Assets and Liabilities

200,000,000 V
150,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000

2009 2010 2011

&I Total Liabilities ii Total Assets

2012 2013

Total liabilities are $40.9 million and $41.3 for the fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively.
There was no significant change in liabilities between 2013 and 2012 though the decrease in
2012 over the prior year was mainly due to the adjustment of $10.3 million to other
postemployment benefits obligations (OPEB) as a result of converting from Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) to GASB reporting.

The Foundation participates in the Auxiliaries Multiple Employer VEBA (Voluntary Employees'
Beneficiary Association), a separate 501(c)(9) organization to assist in funding postemployment
benefits for recognized auxiliaries of the California State University System. As of July 1, 2011
(the most recent actuarial report) the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $10,536,352 and
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $9,496,173 and the plan's market value of
assets was $1,040,179 or 9.9% funded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $8,093,038, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
117.3%. The Foundation's current plan is to fund the OPEB obligation up to the retirees' and
surviving spouse actuarial obligation.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Total assets are $185 and $169 million for fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. The 
increase between 2013 and 2012 of 9.5% is mainly attributable to investment earnings and 
endowment donations. The 2012 year reported an increase over the previous year of 
approximately 50% is attributable to the dissolution, wind-up and transfer of net assets of $54.8 
from the Cal Poly Pomona University Educational Irust (VET). 

Total Assets and Liabilities 

200,000,000 

150,000,000 

100,000,000 

50,000,000 

Total liabilities are $40.9 million and $41.3 for the fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. 
There was no significant change in liabilities between 201 3 and 2012 though the decrease in 
2012 over the prior year was mainly due to the adjustment of $10.3 million to other 
postemployment benefits obligations (OPEB) as a result of converting from Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) to GASB reporting. 

The Foundation participates in the Auxiliaries Multiple Employer VEBA (Voluntary Employees' 
Beneliciary Association), a separate 501 (c)(9) organization to assist in funding postemployrnent 
benefits for recognized auxiliaries of the California State University System. As of July 1, 2011 
(the most recent actuarial report) the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $10,536.352 and 
the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $9,496,173 and the pian's market value of 
assets was $1,040,179 or 9.9% funded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was S8,093,038, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 
117.3%. The Foundation's current plan is to fund the OPEB obligation up to the retirees' and 
surviving spouse actuarial obligation. 

-iv- 

87



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

The Foundation participates in a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan through the
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) which covers substantially all
regular hill-time employees of the Foundation. CalPERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities with the state of California and reports
information to the Foundation in accordance with reporting standards established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The plan provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and
beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended,
within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive
annual financial report that includes required supplementary information. Copies of the
CalPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P
Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

The Foundation's policy is to fund pension costs as incurred and contributed $742,507 and
$762,234 in fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. As of June 30, 2011 (the most recent
actuarial report) the entry age normal accrued liability is $35,336,788 and the plan's market
value of assets of $31,397,951 or 88.9% funded. The contribution rate for the fiscal year 2012-13
was 9.44% and 2011-12 was 9.42%. The contribution rate is 10.052% for fiscal year 2013-14
and is projected to be 10.8% for fiscal year 2014-15, which includes agencies that have elected
the 2% at 55 risk pool plan. During fiscal year 2010-11, the Foundation approved and elected a
change in benefits formula from 2% at 55 to 2% at 60 years of age for newly hired employees
after July 1, 2011 and accordingly the contribution rate for those employees was 7.85% for fiscal
year 2012-13 and 7.73% for fiscal year 2011-12. During fiscal year 2012-13, the Foundation
approved and elected a change in benefits formula to 2% at 62 years of age for newly hired
employees after December 31, 2012 and accordingly the contribution rate for those employees
was 6.25% for 2012-13.

-v-

CAL POLl POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended Jtrne 30, 2013 and 2012 

The Foundation participates in a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan through the 
California Public Employees' Retirement System (Ca1PERS) which covers substantially all 
regular full-time employees of the Foundation. CaIPERS acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities with the state of Calitbrnia and reports 
information to the Foundation in accordance with reporting standards established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The plan provides retirement and 
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and 
beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, 
within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. Call'ERS issues a separate comprehensive 
annual financial report that includes required supplementary infoimation.  Copies of the 
Ca1PERS annuaL financial report may be obtained from the CaIPERS Executive Office, 400 P 
Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

The Foundation's policy is to fund pension costs as incurred and contributed $742,507 and 
$762,234 in fiscal years 2013 and 2012 respectively. As of June 30, 2011 (the most recent 
actuarial report) the entry age normal accrued liability is $35,336,788 and the plan's market 
value of assets of $31,397,951 or 88.9% funded. The contribution rate for the fiscal year 2012-13 
was 9.44% and 2011-12 was 942%. The contribution rate is 10.052% for fiscal year 2013-14 
and is projected to be 10.8% for fiscal year 2014-15, which includes agencies that have elected 
the 2% at 55 risk pool plan. During fiscal year 2010-Il, the Foundation approved and elected a 
change in benefits formula from 2% at 55 to 2% at 60 years of age for newly hired employees 
after July 1, 2011 and accordingly the contribution rate for those employees was 7.85% for fiscal 
year 2012-13 and 7.73% for fiscal year 2011-12. During fiscal year 2012-13, the Foundation 
approved and elected a change in benefits formula to 2% at 62 years of age tbr newly hired 
employees alter December 31, 2012 and accordingly the contribution rate for those employees 
was 6.25% for 2012-13. 

88



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Endowment Donations and Investments

Endowment Donations

10,000,000 -V
8,000,000

6,000,000 -Z
4,000,000

2,000,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

During fiscal year 2012-13, endowment portfolio increased by $13.7 million, or 24.5%, from
$54.6 million at June 30, 2012 to $68.0 million at June 30, 2013, mainly due to contributions of
$8.9 million and total return on investments of $6.7 million or 10.95% (net of fees), less
endowment earnings distributions of $1.9 million. Total return on investments (net of fees),
consists of a change in the fair market value of endowment investments, including interest,
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses. The Foundation's endowment
investment policy is designed to obtain the highest return available while investments meet the
criteria established for safety (preservation of capital), return and liquidity.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Endowment Donations and Investments 

Endowment Donations 

10,000,000 

8,000,000 

6,000,000 

4,000,000 

L 00TE 
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

During fiscal year 2012-13, endowment portfolio increased by S13.7 million, or 24.5%, from 
$54.6 million at June 30, 2012 to $68.0 million at June 30, 2013, mainly due to contihutions of 
$8.9 million and total return on investments of $6.7 million or 10.95% (net of lees), less 
endowment earnings distributions of $1.9 million. Total return on investments (net of fees). 
consists of a change in the fair market value of endowment investments, including interest, 
dividends, and realized and unrealized gains and losses. The Foundation's endowment 
investment policy is designed to obtain the highest return available while investments meet the 
criteria established for safety' (preservation of capital), return and liquidity. 

-vi- 

89



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Endowment Investments

70,000,000

60,000,000 -Z
50,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

20,000,000

10,000,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Permanent endowments are funds received from donors with the stipulation that the principal
remains intact and invested in perpetuity to produce income that will be distributed and
expended for purposes specified by the donor.

General investments consist of expendable funds that have been invested in the Foundation's
general investment portfolio. The Foundation's general investment policy is designed to obtain
the highest yield available, while investments meet the criteria established for safety
(preservation of capital), liquidity and yield. During fiscal year 2012-13, general investments
increased by $5.8 million, or 18.5%, mainly due to contributions and returns on investments of
$1.0 million or 3.70% (net of fees). Investment returns, net of fees, consists of a change in the
fair market value of general investments, including interest, dividends, and realized and
unrealized gains and losses.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Endowment Investments 

Permanent endowments are funds received from donors with the stipulation that the principal 
remains intact and invested in perpetuity to produce income that will be distributed and 
expended for purposes specified by the donor. 

General investments consist of expendable finds that have been invested in thc Foundation's 
gencral investment portlblio. The Foundation's genera! investment policy is designed to obtain 
the highest yield available, while investments meet the criteria established for safety 
(preservation of capital), liquidity and yield. During fiscal year 2012-I 3, general investments 
increased by $5.8 million, or 18.5%, mainly clue to contributions and returns on investments of 
$1.0 million or 3.70% (net of fees). Investment returns, net of fees, consists of a change in the 
fair market value of general investments, including interest, dividends, and realized and 
unrealized gains and losses. 

-vi'- 

90



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

40,000,000

35,000,000

30,000,000

25,000,000

20,000,000

15,000,000

10,000,000

5,000,000

General Investments

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

Net Position

Net position represents the residual interest in the Foundation's assets after liabilities are
deducted. The Foundation's net position is as follows:

(in thousands)

2013

(in thousands)

2012
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 27,000 $ 27,900
Restricted:

Nonexpendable - endowments 69,300 51,100
Expendable 35,600 38,300

Unrestricted 12,100 10,100

Net position $ 144,000 $ 127,400

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANACUEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
FQr the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

General Investments 

40,000,000 

35,000,000 

30,000,000 

25,000,000 

20,000,000 

15,000,000 

10,000,000 

5,000,000 

 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

Net Position 

Net position represents the residual interest in the Foundation's assets after liabilities arc 
deducted. The Foundation's net position is as follows: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted: 

Nonexpetidable - cndownnts 
Expendable 

Unrestricted 

Net positn 

(in thousands) 
2013 

$ 27,000 

69,300 
35,600 
12,100 

$ 144,000 

(in thousands) 
2012 

$ 27,900 

51,100 
38,300 
10,100 

$ 127,400 

-vii'- 

91



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Net position increased 13 % o r $16.6 million primarily due to endowment donations and
investment earnings. The increase in net position of $69.4 million in fiscal year 2011-12 is
primarily due to the wind up, dissolution and transfer of University Educational Trust net
assets. Restricted nonexpendable net position includes the permanent endowment funds and
restricted expendable net position includes activities and program funds designated to support
scholarships and fellowships, research, and other program activities. Unrestricted net position
includes the enterprise or entrepreneurial activities of the Foundation.

Net Position

160,000,000 /
140,000,000

120,000,000 7
100,000,000 -Z

80,000,000 /
60,000,000 Z
40,000,000

20,000,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 20132009 2010 2011 2012 2013 

160,000,000 

140,000,000 

120,000,000 

100,000,000 

80,000,000 

60,000,000 

40,000,000 

20,000,000 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANI) ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Net position increased 1 3 % or $ 16.6 million primarily due to endowment donations and 
investment earnings. Ihe increase in net position of $69.4 million in fiscal year 2011-12 is 
primarily due to the wind up, dissolution and transfer of University Educational Trust net 
assets. Restricted nonexpendable net position includes the permanent endowment funds and 
restricted expendable net position includes activities and program ftinds designated to support 
scholarships and fellowships, research, and other program activities. Unrestricted net position 
includes the enterprise or entrepreneurial activities of the Foundation. 

Net Position 

-ix- 

92



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Capital Assets, Capitalized Lease Obligations and Net Investment

The Foundation's investment in capital assets, net of related debt decreased $950 thousand or
3.4% for fiscal year 2012-13. Depreciation and amortization charges for the years ended June 30,
2013 and 2012 totaled $3.8 and $3.7 million respectively. A summary of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and capitalized lease obligations is as follows:

(in thousands)

2013
(in thousands)

2012
Building and improvements $ 67,000 $ 67,000
EquPment, furniture and fixtures 14,700 12,500
Construction work in progress 1,400 2,900
Land 6,500 6,200
Infrastructure 8,600 8,500
Orchards 100 100

98,300 97,200
Less: accumulated depreciation

and amortization (42,300) (39,500)

56,000 57,700

Less: capitalized lease obligations (28,900) (29,800)

Invested in capital assets $ 27,100 $ 27,900

Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, represent the Foundation's capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable
to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets. Capitalized lease obligations
consist of system revenue bonds of $28.9 million. The majority of this obligation $25.8
million was incurred in 2003-04 fiscal year with respect to the construction of the University
Village Phase III student housing complex; the balance of this obligation $3.1 million was
incurred for the construction of a continuing education complex and a portion of those bonds
were advance refunded and defeased in 2006-07 fiscal year.

-x-

(in thousands) 
2013 

$ 67,000 
14,700 

1,400 
6,500 
8,600 

100 

98,300 

(in thousaths) 
2012 

$ 67,000 
12,500 
2,900 
6,200 
8,500 

100 

97,200 

(42,300) (39,500) 

56,000 57,700 

(28,900) (29,800) 

$ 27,100 $ 27,900 

CAL I'OLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCIJSSION AM) ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Capital Assets, Capitalized Lease Obligations and Net Investment 

The Foundation's investment in capital assets, net of related debt decreased $950 thousand or 
3.4% for fiscal year 2012-13. Depreciation and amortization charges for the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012 totaled $3.8 and $3.7 million rcspcctivcly. A summary of capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation and capitalized lease obligations is as follows: 

Building and inprovenents 
Equipnnt, furniture and fixtures 
Construction work in progress 
thnd 
lnl±astructLwe 
Orchards 

Less: accumulated depreciation 
and aimrtization 

Less: capitali d lease obligations 

Invested in capital assets 

Net position invested in capital assets, net of related debt, represent the Foundation's capital 
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets. Capitalized lease obligations 
consist of system revenue bonds of $28.9 million. The majority of this obligation $25.8 
million was incurred in 2003-04 fiscal year with respect to the construction of the University 
Village Phase Ill student housing complex; the balance of this obligation $3.1 million was 
incurred for the construction of a continuing education complex and a portion of those bonds 
were advance refunded and defeased in 2006-07 fiscal year. 

93



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the Foundation's
results of operations. A summary of the Foundation's revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position is as follows:

(in thousands) (in thousands)
Operating revenues: 2013 2012

Educational activities 6,800 8,600
Enterprise activities 39,200 38,200
Grants and contracts 12,200 13,400
Real estate activities 2,900 2,800

Total operating revenues 61,100 63,000
Operating expenses 62,800 62,300

Operating income (1,700) 700

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Gifts, noncapital 15,600 8,600
Investment income, net 1,300 100

Endowment income, net 6,700 300
Interest expenses (1,600) (1,400)
Transfer to the University (3,700) (4,000)

Total nonoperating revenues, net 18,300 3,600

Special item:

Transthr of net assets of University Educational Trust 54,800

Increase in net position 16,600 59,100

Net position:

Net position at beginning of year 127,400 58,000

Restatements 10,300

Net position at end of year 144,000 127,400

During fiscal year 2013, total operating income decreased $2.4 million due to educational
activities and non-operating revenues, net increased $14.7 million due to gifts and investment
income.

(in tlrnands) 
2013 

S 6,800 
39200 
12,200 
2,900 

61,100 
62,800 

(in thousands) 
2012 

8,600 
38,200 
13,400 
2,800 

63,000 
62,300 

(1,700) 700 

15,600 8,600 
1,300 100 
6,700 300 

(1,600) (1,400) 
(3,700) (4,000) 
18,300 3,600 

- 54,800 

16,600 59,100 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the Foundation's 
results of operations. A summary of the Foundation's revenues, expenses. and changes in net 
position is as follows: 

Operating revenues: 
F4tratonaI activities 
Enterprise actMties 
Gmtils and contracts 
Real estate activities 

Total operating ttwnues 
Operating expe es 

Operating iwome 

Nomperating revenues (expenses): 
Gifis, noncapital 
Investment income, net 
Fudownient income, net 
Interest expenses 
TrarIr to the tiniwrsity 

Total nonopemting revenncs, net 

Special item: 
Itansfër of net assets of University Edtrational Trust 

Increase in net posilinn 

Net position: 
Net position at beginning of year 
Restateinenis 
Net position at end ofyear 

127,400 58,000 
- 10,300 

$ 144,000 $ 27,400 

During fiscal year 2013, total operating income decreased $2.4 million due to educational 
activities and non-operating revenues, net increased $14.7 million due to gifts and investment 
income. 

-xi- 

94



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

The operating income is affected by two factors. First, although gift revenues are treated as
non-operating revenues, corresponding gift expenditures (i.e., student grants and scholarships)
are treated as operating expenditures. Second, restricted net position reports the activities of
the grants, contracts and Foundation programs where the use of funds is restricted for specific
purposes. Since Foundation program activities are allowed to use balances from prior years,
expenditures in the current year may be more or less than revenues recorded during the same
year.

Grants an ontracts
20%

Operating Revenues

Educational
activities

11%

Real estate __

activities
5%

--_ Enterprise activities
64%

CAL POLY POMOINA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

The operating inconic is affected by two factors. First, although gift revenues are treated as 
non-operating revenues, corresponding gift expenditures (i.e., student grants and scholarships) 
arc treated as operating expenditures. Second, restricted net position reports the activities of 
the grants, contracts and Foundation programs where the use of funds is restricted for specific 
purposes. Since Foundation program activities are allowed to use balances from prior years, 
expenditures in the current year may be more or less than revenues recorded during the same 
year. 

Operating Revenues 
Grants ancicontracts 

Educational 

11% 

Real estate 
activities 

5% 

-xii- 

95



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Auxiliary enterprise operating revenues consist of the following programs:

Student Housing
Services

21%

Enterprise Revenues
Bookstore

26%

Continuing
Education

10%

Dining Services
39%

ellogg West Hotel
& Conference

Center
4%

In August 2000 the Foundation entered into a twenty-five year master operating agreement and
various supplemental operating agreements with the Trustees of the California State University
on behalf of the California State Polytechnic University Pomona (University) which allows the
Foundation to operate various activities including the above enterprise activities. All the
activities of the Foundation support the students, faculty and staff and provide convenient and
appropriate goods and services at reasonable prices for the development of additional resources
for the University.

Depreciation and
amortization,

3,800,000

Operating Expenses

Expenditures,
23,400,000 Salaries and

fringe benefits,
21,600,000

Cost of goods
sold, 14,000,000

Continuing 
Education 

10% 

Il ogg West Hotel 
& Conference 

Center 
4% Dining Services 

39% 

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Auxiliary emerprise operating revenues consist of the following programs: 

Student Housing 
 Enterprise Revenues 

Services Bookstore 

21% 26% 

Ependi t u res, 
23,400,000 

Depreciation arid 

amortiz 
3,800. 

In August 2000 the Foundation entered into a twenty-five year master operating agreement and 
various supplemental operating agreements with the Trustees of the Calilbmia State University 
on behalf of the California State Polytechnic University Pomona (University) which allows the 
Foundation to operate various activities including the above enterprise activities. All the 
activities of the Foundation support the students, faculty and staff and provide convenient and 
appropriate goods and services at reasonable prices for the development of additional resources 
for the University. 

Operating Expenses 

)IgOOdS 
,00o,00o 

les and 
fringe benefits, 

21,600,000 

-xl"- 

96



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

In 2013, operating expenses consist of cost of goods sold of $14 million, salaries and fringe
benefits of $21.6 million, expenditures of $23.4 million, and depreciation and amortization of
$3.8 million.

In addition to their natural classifications, it is also informative to review operating expenses by
function. A summary of the Foundation's expenses by functional classification for the fiscal
years ended is as follows:

(in thousands) (in thousands)
Operating: 2013 2012

Instruction $ 9,100 $ 10,000
Research 4,800 4,800
Public service 400 350
Academic support 4,200 4,400
Student services 750 650
Institutional support 2,350 2,300
Operation and maintenance of plant 225 50
Student grants and scholarships 1,200 1,100
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 36,000 34,950
Depreciation and amortization 3,775 3,700

Total operating expenses $ 62,800 $ 62,300

During fiscal year 2013, total operating expenses increased $500 thousands mainly due to
Auxiliary enterprise expenses.

-xiv-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

In 2013, operating expenses consist of cost of goods sold of $14 million, salaries and fringe 
benefits of $21.6 million, expenditures of $23.4 million, and depreciation and amortization of 
$3.8 million. 

In addition to their natural classifications, it is also informative to review operating expenses by 
function. A summary of the Foundations expenses by functional classification for the fiscal 
years ended is as follows: 

Operating: 
Ins tniction 
Research 
Public service 
Academic support 
Student services 
Institutional support 
Operation and imintenance of plant 
Student grants and scholarships 
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating expcnses 

(in thotEands) 
2013 

$ 9,100 
4,800 

400 
4,200 

750 
2,350 

225 
1,200 

36,000 
3,775 

$ 62,800 

(in thousands) 
2012 

$ 10,000 
4.800 

350 
4,400 

650 
2,300 

50 
1,100 

34,950 
3,700 

$ 62,300 

During fiscaL year 2013, total operating expenses increased $500 thousands mainly due to 
Auxiliary enterprise expenses. 

-xiv- 

97



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

During 2013, grants and contracts revenues consist of federal grants and contracts of $7.8
million, state and local grants and contracts of $2.0 million, and non-governmental grants and
contracts of $2.3 million.

Federal grants and contracts revenue represents 64% of the sponsored program activity and
includes support from a variety of agencies including:

Federal Grant and Contract Revenue
United States

Department of Other Agencies 6%
Agriculture 7%

National Institute of
Health 21%

United States
Department of
Education 43%

CAL POLY POMONA FOIJNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

During 2013, grants and contracts revenues consist of federal grants and contracts of $7.8 
million, state and local grants arid contracts of $2.0 million, and non-governmental grants and 
contracts of S2.3 million. 

Federal grants and contracts revenue represents 64% of the sponsored program activity and 
includes support from a variety of agencies including: 

Federal Grant and Contract Revenue 
United States 

Department of 
AgricuItur 7°. 

Other Agencies 6% 

National Institute of 
Health 21% 

United States 
Department of 
Education 43% 

National Science 
Foundation 23% 

-xv- 

98



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

For the past four years, the effective rate of facilities and administration costs collected from
grant and contract accounts has increased due to improved negotiations with outside agencies.

12.50%

12.00%

11.50%

11.00%

10.50%

10.00%

9.50%

9.00%

Effective Rate of Indirect Cost Recovery

,

2010 2011 2012 2013

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

For the past Ibur years, the eflctive rate of facilities and administration costs collected from 
grant and contract accounts has increased due to improved negotiations with outside agencies. 

Effective Rate of Indirect Cost Recovery 

12.50% 

12.00% 

11.50% 

11.00% 

10.50% 

10.00% 

9.50% 

9.00% 
2010 2011 2012 2013 

-xv'- 

99



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Statement of Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows provides additional information on the Foundation's financial
results by reporting the major sources and uses of cash.
flows is as follows:

A summary of the statement of cash

(in thousands) (in thousands)

2013 2012

Cash received from operations $ 61,300 $ 68,100

Cash expended from operations (57,700) (59,300)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,600 8,800

Net cash provided by non-capital financing

activities (gifts and grants) 16,400 6,100

Net cash used in capital and related

financing activities (6,300) (10,000)

Net cash used in investing activities (14,600) (3,300)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (900) 1,600

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,900 4,300

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 5,000 $ 5,900

During fiscal year 2013, the cash position at end of year decreased $900,000, or 14%, due to
investing activities and noncapital financing activities.

-xvii-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Statement of Cash Flows 

The statement of cash flows provides additional infonnation on the Foundation's financial 
results by reporting the major sources and uses of cash. A summary of the statement of cash 
flows is as follows: 

Cash received from operations 
Cash expended from operations 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
Net cash provided by non-capital fiiancg 

activities (gifts and grants) 
Net cash used in capital and related 

financing activities 
Net cash used in investing activities 

(in thousands) (in thousands) 
2013 2012 

$ 61,300 $ 68,100 
(57,700) (59,300) 

3600 8800 

16,400 6.100 

(6,300) (10,000) 
(14,600) (3,300) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (900) 1,600 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear 5.900 4,300 

Cash and cash equiva!ents at end of year $ 5,000 $ 5,900 

During fiscal year 2013, the cash position at end of year decreased $900,000, or 14%, due to 
investing activities and noneapital financing activities. 

-xvii- 

100



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Factors Impacting Future Periods

The Foundation's 2013-14 proposed budgeted projections include the following Board
approved assumptions:

Allow for a 5% increase in the meal plans with the same number of residents on the
meal plans;
Allow for a 5% increase in license fee rates at University Village and assume
academic year and summer occupancy of 95% and 30% respectively;
Contribute 10.052% to the CALPERS 2% at 55 years of age retirement Risk Pool
for employees hired on or before June 26, 2011 (these employees will contribute
5%) and 8.049% to the CALPERS 2% at 60 retirement Risk Pool for employees
hired between June 27, 2011 and December 31, 2012, (these employees will
contribute 7%), and 6.25% to CALPERS at 62 retirement Risk Pool for employees
hired on or after January 1, 2013 (these employees will share half the total cost and
will contribute 6.25%) for a total of approximately $790,000;
No change to salary grades and a 3% or approximately $143,000 wage adjustment;
and;
Contribute $1.0 million to the VEBA Trust and assume 9% as the benefit cost for
the postretirement health care plan per actuarial studies.

The 2013-14 proposed surplus generates a debt service coverage of 3.92. The proposed
surplus meets (exceeds) the CSU requirements for additional bond issuance of 1.25 and the
Foundation currently does not have any proposed capital projects that require additional bond
financing.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 
For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Factors Impactine Future Periods 

The Foundation's 20 13-14 proposed budgeted projections include the following Board 
approved assumptions: 

Allow for a 5% increase in the meal plans with the same number of residents on the 
meal plans; 
Allow for a 5% increase in license fee rates at University Village and assume 
academic year and summer occupancy of 95% and 30% respectively; 
Contribute 10.052% to the CALPERS 2% at 55 years of age retirement Risk Pool 
for employees hired on or before June 26, 2011 (these employees will contribute 
5%) and 8.049% to the CALPERSI 2% at 60 retirement Risk Pool for employees 
hired between June 27, 2011 and December 31, 2012, (these employees will 
contribute 7%), and 625% to CALPERS at 62 retirement Risk Pool for employees 
hired on or after January 1, 2013 (these employees will share halt' the total cost and 
will contribute 6.25%) for a total of approximately $790000; 
No change to salary grades and a 3% or approximately $143,000 wage adjustment; 
and; 
Contribute $1.0 million to the VEBA Trust and assume 9% as the benefit cost for 
the postretirement health care plan per a tuarial studies. 

The 2013-14 proposed surplus generates a debt service coverage of 3.92. The proposed 
surplus meets (exceeds) the CLSU requirements for additional bond issuance of 1.25 and the 
Foundation currently does not have any proposed capital projects that require additional bond 
financing. 

-xviii- 

101



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013 and 2012

Assets: 2013 2012

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,702,161 $ 6,614,253
Short-term investments 36,240,855 23,346,172
Accounts receivable, net 5,089,407 4,918,509
Accounts receivable from the University 843,837 733,410
Inventories 1,844,311 1,978,683
Assets held for sale 712,500 691,217
Pledges receivable, net 3,241,916 2,464,843
Prepaid expenses 208,798 154,744

Total current assets 53,883,785 40,901,831

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,247,301 952,858
Pledges receivable, net 5,123,161 6,709,771
Endowment investments 68,024,560 54,618,000
Other long-term investments 707,955 7,822,562
Capital assets, net 55,981,138 57,738,880

Total noncurrent assets 131,084,115 127,842,071

Total assets 184,967,900 168,743,902

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Cash in bank overdraft 658,570 710,316
Accounts payable 1,773,980 1,477,090
Accounts payable to the University 850,473 767,058
Accrued salaries and benefits payable 544,147 636,126
Accrued compensated absences- current portion 435,491 445,646
Unearned revenue 1,209,234 1,101,951
Capitalized lease obligations - current portion 786,518 755,568
Other liabilities 4,008,562 3,509,947

Total current liabilities 10,266,975 9,403,702

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 265,532 227,911
Capitalized lease obligations, net of current portion 28,161,131 28,999,414
Other postemployment benefits obligation 1,230,456 1,847,759
Unitrust liability 1,001,426 874,354

Total noncurrent liabilities 30,658,545 31,949,438

Total liabilities 40,925,520 41,353,140

Net Position:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 27,033,489 27,983,898
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable - endowments 69,271,861 51,102,413
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships 3,238,679 7,463,673
Capital projects 5,805,577 1,742,964
Other 26,572,366 29,047,607

Unrestricted 12,120,408 10,050,207

Total net position $ 144,042,380 $ 127,390,762

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2013 arid 2012 

Assets: 2013 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,702,16! 
Short-term investments 36,240,855 
Accounts receivable, net 5,089,407 
Accounts receivable from the University 843,837 
Inventories 1,844,311 
Assets held for sale 712,500 
Pledges receivable, net 3241,916 
Prepaid expenses 208398 

Total current assets 53.883,785 

2012 

6,614,253 
23,346,172 

4,9 I 8,509 
733,410 

1,978,683 
691,217 

2,464,843 
154,744 

40,901,831 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Pledges receivable, net 
Endowment investments 
Other long-term investments 
Capital assets, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

C.tmrrenl liabilities: 
Cash in bank overdraft 
Accounts payable 
Accounts payable to the University 
Accrued salaries and benefits payable 
Accrued compensated absences— currcnt portion 
Unearned revenue 
Capitalized lease obligations - current porlion 
Other liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 
Capitalized lease obligations, net of current portion 
Other postemployinenl benefits obligation 
Unitrust liability 

total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabililies 

1,247,301 
5,123,161 

68,024,560 
707,955 

55,981,138 

131,084,115 

184,967,900 

658,570 
1,773,980 

850,473 
544,147 
435,491 

1,209.234 
786,518 

4,008,562 

10,266,975 

265,532 
28,161,131 

1,230,456 
1,001,426 

30,658,545 

40,925,520 

952, 85 S 
6,709,771 

54,618,000 
7,822,562 

57,738,880 

127,842,071 

168,743,902 

710,316 
1,477,090 

767,058 
636,126 
445,646 

1,11)1,951 
755,568 

3,509,947 

9,403,702 

227,911 
28,999.414 

1,847,759 
874.354 

31,949,438 

41,353,140 

Net Position: 
Invested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt 27,033,489 27,933,898 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable - endowments 69,271861 51,102,413 
Expendable; 

Scholarships and fellnwships 3238,679 7,463673 
Capital projects 5,805,577 1,742,964 
Other 26,572366 29,047,607 

Unrestricted 12,120,408 10,050,207 

Total net position 44,042,380 127,390,762 

See the accompanying notes to the Financial statements. 

-I- 

102



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Revenues:

Operating revenues:

2013 2012

Educational activities $ 6,830,129 $ 8,645,835
Enterprise activities 39,259,283 38,238,333
Grants and contracts 12,174,130 13,395,539
Real estate activities 2,894,680 2,784,728

Total operating revenues 61,158,222 63,064,435

Expenses:

Operating expenses:
Educational activities 10,866,817 10,331,639
Enterprise activities 29,818,252 28,850,156
Grants and contracts 12,126,283 13,395,539
Real estate activities 6,215,564 6,098,776
Depreciation and amortization 3,780,173 3,669,045

Total operating expenses 62,807,089 62,345,155

Operating income (loss) (1,648,867) 719,280

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Gills, noncapital 15,619,093 8,607,410
Investment income, net 1,299,406 105,958
Endowment income, net 6,688,965 263,195
Interest expenses (1,644,187) (1,421,919)
Transfer to the University (3,662,792) (3,930,872)

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 18,300,485 3,623,772

Income before special item 16,651,618 4,343,052

Special item:
Transfer of net assets of University Educational Trust 54,801,078

Increase in net position 16,651,618 59,144,130
Net position:

Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported 127,390,762 57,995,032
Restatement 10,251,600

Net position at beginning of year, as restated 127,390,762 68,246,632

Net position at end of year $ 144,042,380 $ 127,390,762

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

-2-

10,866,817 
29,818,252 
12,126,283 
6,215,564 
3,780,173 

62,807,089 

(1,648,867) 

IS .6 19,093 
1 299,406 
6,688,965 

(1,644,187) 
(3,662,792) 

18,300,485 

16,651,618 

10,331,639 
28,850156 
13,395,539 
6,098,776 
3 .669,045 

62,345,155 

719,280 

8,607,410 
105,958 
263,195 

(1,421,919) 
(3,930,372) 

3,623,772 

4,343052 

- 54,801,078 

16,651,618 59,144,130 

27,390,762 57,995,032 
- 0,251,600 

127,390,762 68,246,632 

$ 144,042,380 $ 127,390,762 

(:AL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Statement ofRevenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Revenues: 

Operating revenues: 
Educational aclivities 
Enterpdse activities 
Grains and contracts 
Real estate activities 

Iota! operating revenues 

Expenses: 

Operating expenses: 
Educational activities 
Enterprise activities 
Grants and contracts 
Real estate activities 
Depreciation and amortization 

Iota! operating expenses 

Operating income (toss) 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): 
Gifts, noncapital 
Investment income, net 
Endoiuent inconle, net 
Interest expenses 
Transfer to the University 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income before special item 

Special item: 
Transfer ofnet assets oflJniversity Educational Trust 

Increase in net position 
Net position: 

Net position at beginning ofyear, as previously reported 
Restatement 

Net position at beginning ofyear, as restated 

Net position at end ofycar 

2013 2012 

$ 6,830,129 $ 8645,835 
39,259,283 3g238,333 
12,174,130 13,395,539 
2,894,680 2,784,728 

61158,222 63,064,435 

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

-2- 

103



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Federal grants and contracts $ 8,213,002 $ 8,523,510
Slate and local grants and contracts 2,022,426 3,477,578
Nongovernmental grants and contracts 2,432,618 2,267,890
Payments to suppliers (42,248,303) (44,664,930)
Payments to employees (11,903,249) (11,466,656)
Payments to students (3,534,015) (3,107,129)
Sales and services of educational activities 10,562,048 12,028,454
Sales and services of au>aliary enterprises 35,893,471 39,054,206
Other recrnats 2,163,046 2,715,262

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,601,044 8,828,185

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Gifts and grants received thr other than capital purposes 16,428,942 6,121,602

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 16,428,942 6,121,602

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisitiom of capital assets (2,567,637) (3,764,679)
Transfer of assets to University (1,276,603) (3,930,872)
Principal paid on capital debt and lease (756,018) (915,762)
Interest paid on capital debt and lease (1,648,887) (1,429,809)

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (6,249,145) (10,041,122)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 46,941,730 8,130,252
Purchases of investments (63,455,235) (11,158,809)
Contrthutbn to postemployment benefit obliption (1,000,000) (1,000,000)
Investrrent Incont 2,872,318 675,965

Net cash used by investing activities (14,641,187) (3,352,592)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (860,346) 1,556,073

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,903,937 4,347,864

Cash aod cash equivalents at end of year $ 5,043,591 $ 5,903,937

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss $ (1,648,867) $ 719,280
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash (usedyprovided by operating activities:

Depreciation 3,780,173 3,224,782
Loss on disposal of assets 545,206
Excess of OPEB mmense over pay as you go expense 416,616 474,422
Change in assets and kebabs:

Accounts receivable (368,877) 4,946,692
Inventories 134,372 (398,701)
Assets held for sale (21,283) 1,100,763

Prepay and other assets (54,054) 882,575
Accounts payable and amounts payable to the University 385,005 (2,027,642)
Accrued salaries and benefits (91,979) (81,863)
Accrued compensated absences 27,466 (10,278)
Unearned revenue 107,283 (106,292)
Other liabilities 389,983 104,447

Net cash provided by operating activities 3 601,044 $ 8,828,185

Breakdown of ending cash babnce:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,702,161 $ 6,614,253
Cash in bank overdraft (658,570) (710,316)

5,043,591 5,903,937

See the accompanying notes to the financial statements.

-3-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION 
SLuLemnls QfCh Flows 

Forte Years Ended June 30, 2013 aM 2012 

2I]I4 2012 
CASH FWW FROM OPERA'HNG 4C'fl%ITIES: 

Federal grants &d cnntncts 
State and )eI grants - conaets 
No' ve.'iriierital  aills arid cO,il racEs 
Payments  sLçpliers 
Prryriients to ttpbyees 
Payments to students 
Sas and servbes ote4Lwatlemal ac1tKs 
Saks a,,d cerices nfam'1jy erierpiises 
Othx reals 

'Eel eusi, provkiJ by opemtmg ucOvitrs 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAFITAL HIcANCING ACIIVITffS: 
Gifis and wants received thu other EMs califtal purposes 

Net cash prodcd by norapial ffi fr ac tes 

CASIIFW,3 FROM CArIIALAND RELATED HNANCINGACIIVITIFS: 
A Uk I n,e flies pü aSSe s 

Tramr of assets to U'*crsity 
Pniripnlrmsi on capital debt and tose 
Inierest pa on capfta]debt and lease 

Nd cash tcd by cpftai and rc]ated finmicñig acIiwes 

CASH FLOS%S FROM INVESTING AcrI%ITIFS 
Proot&ls IhimNiles awl sn'hthes offtiwstsrrt 
Ptrclses ofuwesmten 
Contithutun to  teilSimid berie ob]fln 
Investiafl IncGn 

Net cash ascd by ñwcsthg acdves 

Net irease/(dccrease) ñ cash ani cash equivakrts 

Cash ami cashequMleits atbagimthigofycar 

Cash and cash equivale 'its at end of yea 

Reconciliation ofoperating loss to net cash provided by orerating acib ties; 
Opt mling kiss 
Adjustornts to recotrile oerathig ss to t cash(asedyprnvied by o Ii'igacIivts 

lJep'ec.ilio ri 
loss on dposal ofassets 
['ceess ofOl'EB d''rLd otr pay as you 80 eapeme 
Change iji assets and hnbiIt 

Accounis receivable 
Invenlo s 
Assets he Ii sa 
Prepsii and other assets 
Accoirts poyab]e - ano,'ils payahhe to the Ir,i i 
Accrtcd sabrrs and beirfics 
Acer'S coraliensated abettes 
Unanxd revenue 
Other kiEinI,lts 

Net cash provided by operatmg act'4ies 

Brcakdo, o1cndi cash babirc: 
Cash ark] cash eqona '15 

Cash fti bth oyerdmft 

8213,002 $ 573,5 I 0 
2,022,425 3.477,578 
2A32.618 2.267890 

(42248,303) (44664,930) 

(11,903,249) (1,466,656) 
(3j34,OIS) (II07,l29 

l0562,048 2,028454 
3593,47 I 39,054206 
2163046 2,7]5,262 
3,601,044 8,828,185 

16,428,942 , 1 21,602 
16,428,942 6,121,602 

(2.567,637) (3,764,679) 
(I ,276,M)3) (3,930,72j 

(756,01 S1 (915.762) 
1,648,887) (1,429.U9) 

(6,249,145) (10,041,122) 

46,941,730 8,130,252 
163,4-3S235) (I l,1i8$09p 
(1,000,000) 1,000,000) 
2,872,3'S 675.965 

114,541,187) (3,352,592) 

(860,346) 1,556,073 

5,903,937 4,347,864 

5,94 359 I 5,903,937 

(1,648,867) 719,280 

3,780,173 3224,782 
545206 
416,616 474,422 

(368,E77) 4,946692 
134,372 (398,701) 
(21,283) 1,100,763 
(54.054) 882,575 
38fl05 (2,027,642) 

(91,979) (81,863) 
77,4M (IU,2S) 

07,283 (106,292) 
104,447 

3601,044 S 8,28 ? ]85 

5.702,161 S 6,614,253 
(658,570) (710316) 

5.04359! 5,903937 

See the accompanying notes to (lie financial statements. 

-3- 

104



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (1) Organization

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation) was organized as a nonprofit corporation and
auxiliary organization of California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (the University) in 1966.
The Foundation assists the University in several ways, including the development and
administration of research and educational grants and contracts; conducting enterprise activities
including, dining service, bookstores, conference center lodge, apartment style housing, continuing
education and agricultural aid to instruction; the accumulation and management of Foundation
program and student scholarship funds on behalf of the University; and the development and
administration of faculty staff housing and a research park, special programs, and other activities.

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Presentation

The Foundation records revenue in part from assisting the University in various activities as
described in Note 1 above and; accordingly, has chosen to present its basic financial statements
using the reporting model for special-purpose governments engaged only in business-type
activities. This model allows all financial information for the Foundation to be reported in a
single column in each of the basic financial statements. The effect of any internal activity
between funds or groups of funds has been eliminated from these basic financial statements.

(b) Basis of Accounting

The accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

(c) Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities

The Foundation considers assets to be current that can reasonably be expected, as part of its
normal business operations, to be converted to cash and be available for liquidation of current
liabilities within 12 months of the statement of net assets date. Liabilities that reasonably can be
expected, as part of normal Foundation business operations, to be liquidated within 12 months of
the statement of net assets date are considered to be current. All other assets and liabilities are
considered to be noncurrent.

(d) Federal Grants and Contracts

The Foundation serves as administrator for various grants and contracts awarded by governmental
and private institutions. Amounts administered by the Foundation are recorded as revenue and
expense in the accompanying basic financial statements.

-4-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (1) Organization 

Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, inc. (the Foundation) was organized as a nonprofit corporation and 
auxiliary organization of California State Polytechnic University, Pomona (the University) in 1966. 
The Foundation assists the University in several ways, including the development and 
administration of research and educational grants and coniracis; conducting enterprise activities 
including, dining service, bookstores, conference center lodge, apartment style housing, continuing 
education and agricultural aid to insfruction; the accumulation and management of Foundation 
program and student scholarship funds on behalf of the University; and the development arid 
administration of faculty staff housing and a research park, special programs, and other activities. 

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a)  Basis of Presentation 

The Foundation records revenue in part from assisting the University in various activities as 
described in Note I above and; accordingly, has chosen to present its basic financial statements 
using the reporting model for speeial-pmpose governments engaged only in business-type 
activities.  Ibis model allows all financial information for the Foundation to he reported in a 
single column in each of the basic financial statements. The effect of any internal activity 
between funds or groups of funds has been eliminated from these basic financial statements. 

(b  Basis ofAccounting 

Ihe accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources 
measurement focus mid the accmal basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are 
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of relaled cash flows. Grants and 
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. 

(cS)  Classification of Current and Noncurrent Assets and Liabilities 

The Foundation considers assets to be current that can reasonably be expected, as part of its 
normal business operations, to he converted to cash and be available thr liquidation of current 
liabilities within 12 months of die statement of net assets date. Liabilities that reasonably can be 
expected, as part of normal Foundation business operations, to be liquidated within 12 months of 
the statement of net assets date are considered to be current. All other assets and liabilities are 
considered to he noncurrent. 

(d)  Federal Grants and Contracts 

The Foundation serves as administrator for various grants and contracts awarded by governmental 
and private institutions, Amounts administered by the Foundation are recorded as revenue and 
expense in the accompanying basic financial statements. 

-4- 

105



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

00 Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable include receivables due from federal, state and local governments for
contract and grant reimbursements. Accounts receivables also include receivables from
enterprise sales and services and for real estate rents and leases.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on an average basis and are expensed
when used. Inventory consists of textbooks held for resale in the bookstore and ancillary
instructional, apparel and other supplies held for educational purposes.

(h) Pledges Receivable

Pledges receivable expected to be received beyond one year are recorded at the net present value
of anticipated future cash flows. The discount rates used during the years ended June 30, 2013
and 2012 were 0.95% and 1.07% respectively.

(0 Investments and Endowment Investments

Investments are reflected at fair value using quoted market prices. Gains and losses are included
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as investment income (loss),
net.

The Foundation's general investment policy authorizes the investment of excess funds in a
range of investments to seek an average total annual return of 2.0% plus the percentage change in
the greater Higher Education Index (HEPI). The Foundation's endowment investment policy
authorizes the investment of endowment funds in a range of investments to seek an average total
annual return of 5.0% plus the percentage change in the greater Los Angeles area consumer price
index.

These investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit
risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably
possible that changes in the values of investment securities may occur in the near term and that
such change could materially affect the financial statements.

Marketable equity and debt securities and other short-term and long-term investments are carried
at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, and is determined from published data provided by
the exchanges, computerized pricing sources, the National Association of Securities Dealers'
National Market System, securities custodians and other authoritative sources.

-5-

CAL POI4Y POMONA FOUNDATION, 1C. 

Notes to Fthancial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(4  Cash and Casi, Eqidvulents 

The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments with all origillal maturity date of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

W Accounts Receivables 

Accounts receivahle include receivables due from federal, state and local governments for 
contract and grant reimbursements.  Accounts receivables also include reivab1es from 
enterprise sales and services and for real estate rents and leases. 

(g)  Inventories 

Inventories are presented at the lower of cost or market on an average basis and are expensed 
when used. Inventory consists of texthooks held for resale in the bookstore and ancillary 
instructional, apparel and other supplies held for educational purposes. 

(h)  P1edgc Reeeivable 

Pledges receivable expected to be received beyond one year are recorded at the net present value 
of anticipated future cash flows, The discount rates used during the years ended June 30, 2013 
and 20! 2 were 0.95% and 1.07% respectively. 

(v9  Investments and Endowment Investments 

Investments are reflected at fair value using quoted market prices. Gains and losses are included 
in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as investment income (loss), 
net. 

The Foundation's general investment policy authorizes the investment of excess funds in a 
range of investments to seek an average total annual return of 2,0% plus the percentage change in 
the  eater Higher Education Index (HEPI). 1 he Foundation's endowment investlllent policy 
authorizes the investment of endowment funds in a range of investments to seek an average total 
annual return 015.0% pIUS the peitentage change in the greater Los Angeles area consumer price 
index. 

These investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit 
risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably 
possible that changes in the values of investment securities may occur in the near term and that 
such change could materially affect the financial statements. 

Marketable equity and debt securities and other slrnrt-terni and long-term investments are carried 
at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged ill a 
current transaction between willing panics, and is determined from published data provided by 
tile exchanges, computerized pricing sources, the National Association of Securities Dealers 
National Market System, securities custodians and other authoritative sources. 

-5- 

106



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(1) Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or if donated, at estimated
fair value at date of donation. Capital assets with a value of less than $5,000 are not capitalized.
Title to all assets, whether purchased, constructed, or donated, is held by the Foundation or
transferred to the University. Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method over the
estimated lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized
using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the term of the
lease. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend its life are not capitalized.

(k) Accounts Payable

Accounts payable consists of amounts due to vendors for goods and services received prior to
June 30.

(I) Compensated Absences

Foundation employees accrue annual leave at rates based on length of service and job
classification.

(in) Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists primarily of unearned revenue related to federal grants and contracts,
enterprise activities and continuing education.

(n) Other Liabilities

Other liabilities include funds held in custody of others and receipts in excess of expenditures for
sponsored program activities.

(o) Capitalized Lease Obligations

Capitalized lease obligations include the original issue discount or premium from the
corresponding debt.

(p) Unitrust Liability

The Foundation administers irrevocable charitable remainder trusts and gift annuities that provide
for the payment of lifetime distributions to the trustors or other designated beneficiaries. Upon
the demise of the lifetime beneficiary, the trusts and gift annuities provide for the distribution of
assets to the Foundation for the benefit of campus organizations. Remainder trust and gift
annuity funds designated to the campus organizations are recorded as donations in the
accompanying financial statements in the years received The fair value of the trusts' assets has
been included in the accompanying statement of net position and a corresponding liability has
been recorded to reflect the present value of required lifetime payments to the named
beneficiaries.

-6-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATTON, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accottntin Policies (continued) 

CO  Cap italAssets 

Capital assets are stated at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or if donated, at estimated 
fair value at date of donation. Capital assets with a value of less than $5,000 are not capitalized. 
Title to all assets, whether purchased, consucted, or donated, is held by the Foundation or 
transfened to the University. Depreciation is determined using the straight-line method over the 
estimated lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 40 years. Leasehold improvements are amortized 
using the straight-line method over the shorter of their estimated usetlil lives or the term of the 
lease. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or 
materially extend its life are not capitalized. 

(Ac)  Accounts Payable 

Accounts payable consists of amounts due to vendors for goods and services received prior to 
June 30. 

(1.)  Compensatee! Absences 

Foundation employees accrue annual leave at rates based on length of service and job 
classification. 

(in.)  Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue consists primarily of unearned revenue related to federal vants and contracts, 
enterprise activities and continuing education. 

(n.)  Other Liabilities 

Other liabilities include funds held in custody of others and receipts in excess of expenditures for 
sponsored program activities. 

(o)  Capitalized Lease Obligations 

Capitalized lease obligations include the original issue discount or premium from the 
corresponding debt. 

p)  Un i/i ust Liability 

The Foundation administers irrevocable charitable remainder trusts and gift annuities that provide 
for the payment of lifetime distributions to the trustors or other designated beneficiaries. Upon 
the demise of the lifetime beneficiary, the trusts and gift annuities provide for the distribution of 
assets to the Foundation for the benefit of campus organizations. Remainder trust and gift 
annuity funds designated to the campus organizations are recorded as donations in the 
accompanying financial statements in the years received. The fair value of the trusts' assets has 
been included in the accompanying statement of net position and a corresponding liability has 
been recorded to reflect the present value of required lifetime payments to the named 
beneficiaries. 

-6- 

107



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a) Net Position

The Foundation's net position is classified into the following categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
amortization, and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted - nonexpendable: Amounts subject to externally imposed conditions that the
Foundation retains in perpetuity.

Restricted - expendable: Amounts subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled
by the actions of the Foundation or by the passage of time. When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the Foundation's policy to use unrestricted resources first,
then restricted resources as they are needed.

Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. In addition, unrestricted net position may be
designated for use by management of the Foundation.

(r) Classification of Revenues and Expenses

The Foundation considers operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position to be those revenues and expenses that result from exchange
transactions or from other activities that are connected directly to the Foundation's primary
ffinctions. Exchange transactions include charges for services rendered and the acquisition of
goods and services. Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating revenues and
expenses in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33. These non-operating activities include the
Foundation's net investment and endowment income, gifts, interest expense and transfer of assets
to the University.

-7-

CAL I'OLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to rinancial Statements 
Junc 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (2) .Su'nmary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

4,) Net Poyithrn 

The Foundation's net position is classified into the following categories: 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt: Capita! assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
amortization, and outstanding principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of those assels. 

Restricted - nonexpendable: Amounts subject to externally imposed conditions that the 
Foundation retains in perpetuity. 

Restricted - expendable: Amounts subject to externally imposed conditions that can be fulfilled 
by the actions of the Foundalion or by the passage of time. When both restricted and unrestricted 
resources are available for use, it is the Foundation's policy to use unrestricted resources first, 
then restricted resources as they are needed. 

Unrestricted: All other categories of net position. In addition, unrestricted net position nmy be 
designated for use by management of the Foundation. 

fr)  Classification of Revenues and Eqenves 

The Foundation considers operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position to be those revenues and expenses thai result from exchange 
transactions or from other activities that are connected directly to the Foundation's primary 
thnotions. Exchange transactions include charges for senices rendered and the acquisition of 
goods and services. Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses iii accordance with GASB Statement No. 33. These non-operating activities include the 
Foundation's net investment and endowment income, gifts. interesi expense and transfer of assets 
to the University. 

-7- 

108



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(s) Income Taxes

The Foundation is organized under the nonprofit public benefit laws of California and is
recognized as an exempt organization for both federal and California purposes under Section
501(c) (3) and 23701(d), respectively.

The Foundation has evaluated its tax positions and the certainty as to whether those tax positions
will be sustained in the event of an audit by taxing authorities at the federal and state levels. The
primary tax positions evaluated are related to the Foundation's continued qualification as a tax-
exempt organization and whether there is unrelated business income activities conducted that
would be taxable. Management has determined that all income tax positions are more likely than
not of being sustained upon potential audit or examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain
income tax positions are required.

The Foundation files informational tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdictions and the state of
California. With few exceptions, the statute of limitations for federal and California state
purposes is generally three and four years, respectively.

(1) Estimates

The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues, and expenses in
the accompanying basic financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

-8-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(3)  Income Taxes 

The Foundation is organized under the nonprofit public benefit laws of California and is 
recoized as an exempt organization for both federal and California purposes under Section 
5Ol(e) (3) and 23701(d), respectively. 

The Foundation has evaluated its tax pusilions and the certainty as to whether those tax positions 
will be sustained in the event of an audit by taxing authorities at the federal and state levels. The 
primary tax positions evaluated are related to the Foundalion's continued qualification as a tax-
exempt organization and whether there is unrelated business income activities conducted that 
would be taxable. Management has determined that all income tax positions are more likely than 
not of being sustained upon potential audit or examination; therefore, no disclosures of uncertain 
income tax positions are required. 

The Foundation files infomrntional tax returns in the u s, federal jurisdictions and the state of 
California. With few exceptions, the statute of limitations for federal and California state 
purposes is generally three and four years, respectively. 

(/ Es/images 

The preparation of basic financial slatements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues, and expenses in 
the accompanying basic financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

-8- 

109



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The deposits and investments held are as follows:

2013 2012

Deposits:
Demand deposits $ 5,320,960 $ 3,004,399
Cash equivalents-Cash Reserve Trust Fund 381,133 336,381

5,702,093 3,340,780
Investments:

Local Agency Investment Fund 24,460 5,166,570
Money Market Funds 1,247,369 4,226,331
Equities 75,955,563 60,250,593
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income Securities 26,122,598
Federal Agencies 1,300,089 8,590,600
U.S. Treasuries 1 570 660 11,778,971

106 220 739 90,013,065

Total deposits and investments SI 11.922.832 $93 353,145

Reconciliation to statement of net assets
Current:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,702,161 $ 6,614,253
Investments 36,240,855 23,346,172

Noncurrent:
Cash equivalents 1,247,301 952,858
Investments - Endowment 68,024,560 54,618,000
Investments - Other long term 707,955 7,822,562

$93 353,845

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Foundation's
deposits may not be returned. The California Government Code requires that a financial
institution secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an
undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated under state law. The market value of the
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by
the public agencies.

The deposits of the Foundation are maintained at financial institutions and are fully insured or
collateralized up to $250,000 per financial institution. As of June 30, 2013, $3,833,250 of the
Foundation's bank balance of $4,228,145 was exposed to credit risk as category three, uninsured
and uncollateralized.

-9-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

The deposits and investments held arc as follows: 

Total deposits and investments 

2013 2012 

$ 5320,960 $3,004,399 
381,133 336,381 

5,702,093 3,340,780 

24,460 5,166,570 
1,247,369 4226,331 

75,955,563 60250,593 
26,122,59K 

1,300,089 8.590,600 
1.570.660 11.778.971 

106,220.739 90,013.065 

SI! 1.922.832 S93.353.849 

Deposits: 
Demand deposits 
Cash equivalents-Cash Reserve Trust Fund 

Investments: 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
Money Market Funds 
Equities 
Mutual Funds - Fixed Income Securities 
Federal Agencies 
U.S. Treasuries 

Reconciliation to statement of net assets 
Current: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Noncurrent: 
Cash equivalents 
Investments - Endowment 
Investments - Other long term 

$ 5,702,161 S 6,614,253 
36,240.855 23,346,172 

1,247.301 952,858 
68,024,560 54,618,000 

707355 L822i62 

SI 11.922.832 S93.353.845 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Foundation's 
deposits may not be returned.  The California Government Cede requires that a financial 
institution secure deposits made by state or local govenunenlal units by pledging securilies in an 
undivided collateral pool held hy a depositoty regulated under state law. The market value of the 
pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by 
the public agencies. 

The deposits of (Ftc Foundalion are maintained at financial institutions and are fully insured or 
collateralized up to $250,000 per financial instimtion. As of June 30, 2013, $3,833,250 of the 
Foundation's bank balance of $4,228,145 was exposed to credit risk as category three, uninsured 
and uncollateralized. 

-9- 

110



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Custodial Credit Risk (continued)

The Foundation maintains investments with the State of California Local Agency Investment
Fund (LA1F) which pools these funds with other governmental agencies and invests in various
investment vehicles. These pooled funds approximate fair value. Regulatory oversight is
provided by the State Pooled Money Investment Board and the Local Investment Advisory
Board. LA1F is not subject to categorization as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 3 as amended
by GASB Statement No. 40 to indicate the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the
Foundation at year end.

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the Foundation will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in
the possession of the counterparty. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012, all investments are in the
name of the Foundation, and the Foundation is not exposed to custodial credit risk associated
with its investments.

Interest Rate Risk

This is the risk of loss due to the fair value of an investment falling due to rising interest rates.
As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses from rising interest rates, short-term
investments are limited to relatively liquid instruments such as certificates of deposit, savings
accounts, Federally guaranteed notes and bills, money market mutual funds or investment in the
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Interest rate risk is further mitigated
by ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet cash flow needs and only then investing in longer-term
securities. There is no interest rate risk for money market mutual funds as they are available on
demand.

As of June 30, 2013, the Foundation had the following debt investments subject to interest rate
risk:

2013 Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less Than I 1-5 More Than 5

PIMCO Low Duratbn Fixed Income $ 20,922,789 $ 5,021,469 $ 11,925,990 $ 3,975,330
JP Morgan Strategic Income Opportunities 1,568,969 922,554 381,259 265,156
Double Line Total Return 2,072,188 337,767 667,245 1,067,176
Brandywine Global Opportunistic Fixed Income 1,040,954 325,819 266,484 448,651
Nuwen Symphony Credit Opportunity Fund 517,698 4,245 95,619 417,834

-10-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statemeiits 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued) 

CLts*odi1l Credit Risk (continued) 

The Foundation maintains investments with the State of California Local Agency Investment 
Fund (LAIF) which pools these funds with other governmental agencies and invests in various 
investment vehicles. These pooled funds approximate fair value, Regulatory oversight is 
provided by the StaLe Pooled Money Investment Board and the Local Investment Advisory 
Board. I AIF is not subject to categorization as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 3 as amended 
by (IASB Statement No. 40 to indicate the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the 
Foundation at year end. 

For investments, euslodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
eountcrparty, the Foundation will not be able to recover the value of' its invesiments that are in 
the possession of the counterparty. As of June 30, 2013 and 2012. all investments are in the 
name of the Foundation, and the Foundation is not exposed to custodial credit risk associated 
with its investments. 

Interest Rate Risk 

This is the risk of loss due to the fair value of an investment falling due to rising interes! raLes. 
As a neans of limiting its exposure to fair value losses from rising interest rates, short-term 
investments are limited to relatively liquid instruments such as certificates of deposit, savings 
accounts, Federally guaranteed notes and bills, money market mutual funds or investment in the 
State of Calitbrnia local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). Interest rate risk is furiher mitigated 
by ensuring sufficient liquidi to meet cash flow needs and only then investing in longer-term 
securities. There is no interest rate risk for money market mutual funds as they are available on 
demand, 

As of .lune 30, 2013, the Foundation had the following deht investments subject to interest rate 
risk: 

2013 IrIvL tnLI]t Matwtb 

luvesinient Type Fair VaIt,e Less Than 1 1-5 More Thazi 5 

PIMCO I,w Duratn Fkd I.nirre S 20922,789 $ 5,021,469 11,925,990 S 3,975,330 
JI' Morgan Sfrategic ltwojm Oprmffimfts I,56I,969 922.554 3111,259 265,156 
lioubleLinc local Return 2,072,188 337.767 667.245 1,067,176 
Dnxly.th Cbbu]OppurLtmiLic FixcJ lncony .040,954 325,8(9 266,484 448,651 
Nneri SyiiIiny Credit Oppoiluzuky FwvJ 517,698 4,145 95619 417,834 

10- 

111



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2012, the Foundation had the following debt investments subject to interest rate
risk:

Investment Type Fair Value

2012 Investment Maturities (in Years)

Tess Than I 1-5 More Than 5

Federal Home than Bank $ 999,520 $ $ 999,520 $

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 2,815,381 2,640,095 175,286
Federal National Mortgage Association 4,775,699 1,702,607 2,165,271 907,821
US Treasury Notes/Bonds 11,778,971 9,630,439 1,708,891 439,641

Credit Risk

This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to a debt instrument will not fulfill its
obligations. This is measured by the assignment of ratings by nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations. Specifically, the Foundation's investment policy requires that corporate
debt must carry an investment grade rating by at least two of three rating agencies at the time of
purchase.

Following is a list of acceptable instruments to invest in as ofJune 30, 2013 and 2012:

General Endowment

Description Portfolio Portfolio

Money Market Funds X X

Certificate of Deposits X X

US Government or Agency Obligations X X

Common and Preferred Stocks X

Mortgage Backed Securities X X

Corporate Debt X X

Repurchase Agreements X X

Mutual Funds (Debt or Equity) X X

Common Funds (Debt, Equity and Real Estate) X

Real Estate Investment Trusts X

Real Estate X

Alternative Investments X

Hedge Funds X

CAL P012V POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statcments 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and investments (continued) 

As of June 30, 2012, the Foundation had the following debt investments subject to interest rate 
risk: 

InwsLnei Type 

Federal Hone Loan Bank 
Federal Hont Loan Monga Corpo'aS,i 
FederaINatnalMongage Asociathn 
US Treasuty Notes/Bonds 

Credit Risk 

2012 !nvestnnl K4aturfties (in Years) 

Fafr VaK Less Ibmi I I-S More Than 5 

$ 999,520 S S 999,520 $ 
2,815,381 2,640.095 I75,216 
4,775,699 1,702,607 2,165,271 907,82] 

11,778,971 9,630,439 1,703,89! 43964! 

This is the risk that an issuer or other eounterparty to a debt instrument will not fulfill its 
obligations. lius is measured by the assignment of ratings by nationally recognized statistical 
rating organizations. Specifically, the Foundation's investment policy requires that corporate 
debt must carry an investment grade rating by at least two of three rating agencies at the time of 
purchase. 

Following is a list of acceptable instruments to invest in as oliune 30, 2013 and 2012: 

Money Market Funds 

Certificate of Deposits 

US Government or Agency Obligations 

Common and Preferred Stocks 

Mortgage Backed Securities 

Corporate Debt 

Repurchase Agreements 

Mutual Funds (Debt or Equity) 

Common Funds (Debt, Equity and Real Estate) 

Reul Estate Investment Trusts 

Real Estate 

Ate rirnttve Investments 

Iledge Finds  

General Endowment 

Portfolio Portfolio 

x x 
x x 
x x 

x 
x x 
x x 
x x 
x x 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 

-11- 
112



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Foundation's general and endowment investment policies allow for no more than 5% of
the asset class to be invested in any single equity or fixed income issuer, with the exception
of U.S. Treasury and Agency securities and exposure to any industry sector is generally
limited to 20% of the asset class. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
entity's investment in a single issuer. In order to maximize the rate of return in the
Foundation's investment portfolio while preserving capital, the Foundation's investment policies
dictate a range and target weighted asset allocation as follows:

Target Asset Mix Table

General Investments

Target Asset Mix Table

Endowment Investments

Asset Class Range Target Weight Range Target Weight

Common Fund Equities 10-65% 20% N/A N/A

Domestic Equities N/A N/A 20-50% 35%

International Equities N/A N/A 15-35% 30%

Fixed Income 40-85% 60% 20-50% 30%

Mutual Funds-Debt 40-85% 0% N/A N/A

Cash Equivalents 0-20% 5% 0-20% 0%

Real Estate 0-10% 5% 0-10% 0%

Real Assets N/A N/A 0-10% 5%

Alternative Investments 0-25% 10% N/A N/A

Hedge Funds N/A N/A 0-20% 0%

As of June 30, 2013 the Foundation had the following investments subject to credit and
concentration of credit risk:

Investment Type Rating (S&P/Moodls) Fair Value Percentage

PIMCO Low Dumtbn Fbced Income AA- $ 20,922,789 80.09%
JP Morgan Strategic Income Opportunities BBB 1,568,969 6.01%
Double Line Total Return A 2,072,188 7.93%

Brairtywine Global Opportunistic Fixed Income A 1,040,954 3.98%

Nuveen Symphony Credit Opportunity Fund BB 517,698 1.98%

-12-

CAL FOLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (3) Cash, Cash Fquivalent and Investments (continued) 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Foundation's general and endowment investment policies allow for no more than 5% of 
the asset class to he invested in any single equity or fixed income issuer, with the exception 
of US. Ireasury and Agency securities and exposure to any industry sector is generally 
limited to 20% of the asset class. This is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an 
entity's investment in a single issuer.  In order to maximize the rate of return in the 
Foundation's investment portlblio while preserving capital, the Foundation's investment policies 
dictate a ninge and target weighted asset allocation as follows: 

Asset Class 

Common Fund Equities 

Domestic Equities 

International Equities 

Fixed Income 

Mutual Funds-Debt 

Cash Equivalents 

Real Estate 

Real Assets 

Alternative Investments 

Hedge Funds 

Target Asset Mix Table 

General Investments 

Range Target Weight 

10-65% 20% 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

40-85% 60% 

40-85% 0% 

0-20% 5% 

0-10% 5% 

N/A N/A 

0-25% 10% 

N/A N/A  

Target Asset Mix Table 

Endowment Investments 

Range  Target Weit 

N/A N/A 

20-50% 35% 

15-35% 30% 

20-50% 30% 

N/A N/A 

0-20% O% 

0-10% 0% 

0-10% 5% 

N/A N/A 

0-20% 

As of June 30, 2013 the Foundation had the following investments subject to credit and 
concentration of credit risk: 

lnstsflnciit Type Rntftig (S&I'/Moodys) Fai Vak PitenLage 

PIMC() rn' Dmatn Fb<ed Iiicom 
JI' Morgan Strategic Inom OppwtuniI 
DubkLie Total RetLim 
Bmixlywine Global Oppoiwa* Fxed liieonr 

Nutezi SyziipI ny Credh Opponw Fund 

A)- $ 20.922,789 8009% 
BBB l.5 8,969 6.01% 

A 2.072,188 7.93% 

A 11)1(1,954 3.93% 
RB 517,698 L93% 

-12- 

113



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments (continued)

As of June 30, 2012 the Foundation had the following investments subject to credit and
concentration of credit risk:

Investment Type Rating (S&P/Moody's) Fair Vakie Percentage

Federal Home Loan Bank AA+/Aaa $ 999,520 3.358%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation AA+/Aaa 2,815,381 9.459%
Federal National Mortgage Association AA+/Aaa 4,775,699 16.046%
US Treasury Notes/Bonds AA+/Aaa 11,778,971 39.577%
1-lighmark U.S. Government Money Market Not Rated/Aaa-mf 3,273,473 10.999%
Local Agency Investment Fund Note Rated 5,166,570 17.359%
Morgan Stanley AA Calif Tax Free Trust AA 952,858 3.202%

Investment Earnings
Net investment earnings were $7,988,371 and $369,153 for the year ended June 30, 2013 and
2012, and is comprised of interest, dividends, realized gains and losses, and unrealized gains and
losses due to changes in the fair value of investments held at year-end, net of investment fees.

Note (4) Cash in Bank Overdraft

The Foundation has two bank accounts, a payroll account and a general checking
account. Transfers from the general checking account cover the zero balance payroll
account. The general checking account is used to process accounts payable checks, wires and
Automatic Clearing House (ACFI) transactions. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the balances of both
accounts were overdrawn on the books and records of the Foundation due to outstanding checks
that were issued but had not cleared the bank.

-13-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (3) Cash, Cash EquivHIeDts and Investments (continued) 

As of June 30, 2012 the Foundation had the following invcstrnenLs subject to credit and 
concentration of credit risk: 

Inwslinej't Ty Patftig (S&I'/Mood/s) Fak Vak Percentage 

Federal Hon U,anBnk AA+IAaa 
Federal I lnn I ian Mortgage Corporatnn AA+/Aaa 
Federal Nathial Mortgage AssociaSn AA*/Aaa 
US tcasuiyNot&Bonds AA+/Aaa 
Highrark LT.S. (,ovcrrmient Money Market Not RatediAia-mf 
LouulAgenvy Inv(aont Fund Note Rated 
Mrn8aii SIsiy isA Ciilif Tax Free Trust AA 

$ 999520 3.358% 
2,815,381 9.459% 
4,775,699 16.046% 

11778,971 39.577% 
3.273,473 10999% 
5.166,570 17.359% 

952,858 3202% 

Investment Earnings 
Net investment earnings were $7,988,371 and $369,153 for the year ended June 30, 2013 and 
2012, and is comprised of interest, dividends, realized gains and losses, and unrealized gains and 
losses due to changes in the lair value of invesiments held at year-end, net of investment fees. 

Note (4) Cash in Bank Overdraft 

The Foundation has two bank accounts, a payToll account and a general checking 
account. Transfers from Ihe genera! checking account cover the zero balance payroll 
account. The general checking account is used to process accounts payable checks, wires and 
Automatic Clearing Rouse (ACH) transactions. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the balances of both 
accounts were overdrawn on the books and records of the Foundation due to outstanding checks 
that were issued but had not cleared the bank. 

-13- 

114



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (5) Accounts and Pledges Receivable

Receivables consisted of the following:

Pledges receivable: 2013 2012
Within one year $ 3,307,865 $ 2,525,033
Within two to five years 5,293,049 6,984,167
Less allowance for uncollectible pledges (65,949) (60,190)
Less discount to reflect pledges receivable at present value (169,888) (274,396)

Pledges receivable, net 8,365,077 9,174,614

Other activities:

Real Estate 1,825,311 1,973,494
Enterprise Activities 854,349 998,898
Grants and Contracts 1,754,816 1,858,749
Educational Activities 811,924 235,395
Less allowance for uncollectible contributions (156,993) (148,027)

Subtotal accounts receivable 5,089,407 4,918,509
Due from University 843,837 733,410

Total receivables, net 5,933,244 5,651,919

Total accounts and pledges receivable $14,298,321 $14,826,533

Note (6) Endowments

Endowments are administered in an investment pool using the dollar weighted daily average
methodology. Contributions to an individual endowment increases the percentage of the
endowment's dollar weighted daily average thus increasing the endowments share of investment
returns for the month. It is the goal of the Foundation that the total return from endowment
investments should be adequate to meet the following objectives:

Preserve investment capital and its purchasing power;
Generate sufficient resources to meet spending needs (distributions); and
Attain reasonable capital appreciation through prudent acceptance of risk to enhance the
future purchasing power of the investment capital.

-14-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION. INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Notc (5) Accounts and Pledges Receivable 

Receivables consisted of the following: 

Pledges receivable: 2013 2012 
Within one year $ 3,307,865 $ 2,525,033 
Withintwo to five years 5,293,049 6,984,167 
Ltss allowance for incollectible pledges (65,949) (60,190) 
Less discount to reflect pledges receivable at present value (169,888) (274,396) 

Pledges receivable, net 8,365,077 9,174,614 

Other aetMties: 
Real Estate 
Enterprise Aetivitles 
Grants and Contracts 
Educatbnal Aetiviths 

Less allowance thr uncollectible contributions 

Subtotal accounts receivable 

Due from UniveSy 

Total receivables, net 

Total accounts and pledges receivable 

Note (6) Endownients 

1,825,311 1.973,494 
854,349 998,898 

1.754,816 1.858,749 
811,924 235,395 

(156,993) (148,027) 

5,089,407 4,918,509 

843,837 733,410 

5,933,244 5,651,919 

$14,298,321 $14,826,533 

Endowments are administered in an investment pool using the dollar weighted daily average 
methodology. Contributions to an individual endowment increases the percentage of the 
endowment's dollar weighted daily average thus increasing the endowments share of investment 
returns for the month. It is the goal of the Foundation that the total return from endowment 
investments should be adequate to meet the following objectives: 

•  Preserve investment capital and its purchasing power; 
•  Generate sufficient resources lo meet spending needs (distributions); and 
•  Attain reasonable capital appreciation through prudent acceptance of risk to enhance the 

future purchasing power of the investment capital. 

-14- 

115



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (6) Endowments (continued)

The Foundation follows the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
("UPMIFA") adopted by the Board of Directors in November 2008. UPMIFA does not set
specific expenditure limits; instead, a charity can spend the amount the charity deems prudent
after considering the donor's intent that the endowment continue permanently, the purpose of the
fund, and relevant economic factors. The Foundation's administration of endowment funds
policy provides the guidance for the distribution of the net appreciation of restricted endowments.
It is the Foundation's goal to distribute annually a minimum net return of 5% of endowment value
as established on June 30th. Earnings for the fiscal year in excess of the Consumer Price Index
(CPI) for the Los Angeles area, as reported in July for the prior 12 months, and in excess of 5%
endowment value, may also be distributed. Endowment earnings shall generally be available for
distribution from those endowments invested for no less than three (3) consecutive months.
Exceptions may be authorized per approval by the Executive Director or his/her designee and the
Board of Directors. Endowment earning distribution will occur in the first quarter of each fiscal
year based upon the percentage of the endowment value and or an amount as approved by the
Board. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the net amount of appreciation available for authorization and
distribution is $3.4 million and $1.9 million respectively.

-15-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (6) Endowments (continued) 

The Foundation follows the Uniform Prudent Management of Enstitutional Funds Act 
("UPMIIFA") adopted by the Board of Directors in November 2008. UPMIFA does not set 
specific expenditure limits; instead, a charity can spend the amount the charity deems prudent 
after consideHng the donor's intent that the endowment continue peimanently, the purpose of the 
fund, and relevant economic factors. The Foundation's administration of endowment fluids 
policy provides the guidance for the distribution of the net appreciation of restricted endowments. 
It is the Foundation's goal to distribute annually a minimum net return of 5% of endowment value 
as established on June 30th. Earnings for the fiscal year in excess of the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) for the Los Angeles area, as reported iii July for the prior 12 months, and in excess of 5% 
endowment value, may also be distributed. Endowment earnings shall generally he available for 
distribution from those endowments invested for no less than three (3) consecutive months. 
Exceptions may he authorized per approval by the Executive Director or his/her designee and the 
Board of Directors. Endowment earning distribution will occur in the first quarter of each fiscal 
year based upon the percentage of the endowment value and or an amount as approved by the 
Board. At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the net amount of appreciation available for authorization and 
distribution is $3.4 million and $1.9 million respectively. 

15- 

116



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (7) Capital Assets

The following provides a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Balance

July I, 2012 Additions Retirements

Balance

June 30, 2013

Land $ 6,230,699 $ 240,844 $ $ 6,471,543
Construction work in progress (CWIP) 2,844,944 2,179,240 3,591,390 1,432,794

Total capital assets not being depreciated 9,075,643 2,420,084 3,591,390 7,904,337

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and buildings improvements 66,996,834 2,298,133 928,151 68,366,816
Improvements, other than buildings 131,863 131,863

Infrastmcture 8,494,060 106,392 1,704 8,598,748
Equipment 12,520,830 1,334,418 543,631 13,311,617

Total capital assets being depreciated 88,143,587 3,738,943 1,473,486 90,409,044

Total capital assets 97,219,230 6,159,027 5,064,876 98,313,381

Less accumulated depreciation thr:

Buildings and building improvements 28,162,647 2,917,176 397,004 30,682,819
Improvements, other than buildings 128,616 128,616

Infrastmcture 837,836 220,732 1,058,568

Equipment 10,351,251 642,265 531,276 10,462,240

Total accumulated depreciation 39,480,350 3,780,173 928,280 42,332,243

Depreciable assets, net 48,663,237 (41,230) 545,206 48,076,801

Total capital assets, net $57,738,880 $ 2,378,854 $ 4,136,596 $55,981,138

-16-

CAL PIThY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (7) Capital Assets 

The following provides a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30,2013: 

Babie Balne 
Jti  I 2012 Additions Retfremcnts Juit 30, 20!) 

CpitaI assets not behi depreciated; 

Land 
Coiistructbn ork in progjtss (CW!P) 

Total capital assets xt being depreciated 

Caphal assets being depreebted: 

BuiLdings and bulldkigt ftnprommerils 
Improvements, other thou buildings 
I nfrastmctwe 
Eq uipme ill 

Total capital assets beftig depreciated 

Total capitalassets 

Less acctpmuhted depreciation tbr: 
BuiLdings and building impruv mcnEs 
Improtnients, other than buildings 
I ifrastrnctuie 
Fquiprncnt 

Tutu! uceLunilUted depreciation 

Depreciable assets, net 

Total capital assets, net  

$ 6,2)0,699 240,844 S $ 6.471,54) 
2,844,944 2,179,240 3591,390 1,432,794 

9,075,643 2,420,084 3,591,390 7,904337 

66,996834 2,298,133 928,151 68,366,816 
131,863 131,863 

8,494,060 106,392 1,704 8,598,748 
12,520,830 1,334,418 543,631 13311,617 

88,143,587 3,733,943 I 473,486 90,409,044 

97,219,230 6,159,027 5,064,876 98,313,381 

28,162,647 2917.176 397,004 30.682,819 
128,616 128,616 
837,836 220.732 058,568 

10351251 642.265 531,276 10,462,240 

39,480,350 3,780,173 928,280 42332.243 

43,663,237 (41,230) 545.206 48,076.80! 

$57,738,880 $ 2,378,854 4,136.596 $55981138 

16- 

117



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (8) Leasing Commitments

Operating Leases as Lessee

The Foundation has a dining service agreement with the Trustees of the California State
University. The agreement is renegotiated annually and requires that the Foundation pay for the
use of Los Olivos Commons and Vista Cafe based on 6% of gross annual sales of the residence
hall dining service facility. For the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 the amount totaled
$410,373 and $457,080 respectively, which was included in rent expense.

Land and certain facilities used in the Foundation operations are leased from the University. As
consideration, the Foundation operates such land and certain facilities at no cost to the University
and annually the Foundation provides specified funds as designated by the President of the
University, subject to bond debt service requirements. The leases are in effect with various
termination dates between 2013 and 2035.

The Foundation has various non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office and conference
space and office equipment, with terms of 48-60 months.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements at June 30, 2013 are
as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2014 $19,233
2015 17,114
2016 12,857
2017 7,257
2018 2 311
Total $58,772

Capital Leases As Lessee

The Foundation has various non-cancelable capital lease agreements for office equipment with
terms of 60 months and interest ranging from 6.6% to 10.5%.

During the 2006-07 fiscal year, the Foundation entered into a ground and facilities lease
agreement (Capital Lease) with the State of California, acting through the Board of Trustees of
the California State University (Board) to refund and defease a portion of the 2000 Series Bonds.
The Board assisted the Foundation by issuing its System Revenue Bonds in 2006-07 and applied
the proceeds totaling $3,749,783 of such Bonds to redeem the 2000 series bonds maturing on and
after 2013 through 2025 callable on February 1, 2011. The Board leased the Project to the
Foundation pursuant to the Capital Lease, subject to the following general terms and conditions:
(i) the maximum annual debt service under the Capital Lease is $332,750 and the scheduled term
of the Capital Lease is 18 years from March 2007 through May 2025.

-17-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATiON, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (8) Leasing Commitments 

Operating Leases as Lessee 

The Foundation has a dining service aeemen1 with the Trustees of the California State 
University. 'the agreement is renegotiated annually and requires that the Foundation pay for the 
use of Los Olives Commons and Vista Cafe based on 6% of gross annual sales of the residence 
hail dining service facility. For the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 the anmunt totaled 
$410,373 and $457,080 respectively, which was included in rent expense. 

Land and certain fhcilities used in the Foundation operations are leased from the University. As 
consideration, the Foundation operates such land and certain facilities at no cost to the University 
and annually the Foundation provides specified funds as designated by the President of the 
University, subject to bond debt service requirements. The leases are in effect with various 
termination dates between 2013 and 2035. 

Ihe Foundation has various ion-cancelable operating lease agreements for office and conference 
space and office equipment, with terms of 48-60 months. 

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements at June 30, 2013 am 
is follows: 

Year ending June 30: 

2014 $19,233 
2015 17,114 
2016 12,857 
2017 7,257 
2018 2.311 
Total tSR 772 

Capital Leases As Lessee 

the Foundation ins various non-cancelable capital lease agreements for office equipment with 
temis of 60 months and interest ranging from 6.6% to 105%. 

During the 2006-07 fiscal year, the Foundation entered into a ground and facilities lease 
agreement (Capital Lease) with the State of California, acting through the Board of Trustees of 
the California State University (Board) to refund and defease a portion of the 2000 Series Bonds. 
The Board assisted the Foundation by issuing its System Revenue Bonds in 2006-07 and applied 
the proceeds totaling $3,749,783 of such Bonds to redeem the 2000 series bonds maturing on and 
alter 2013 through 2025 callable on February 1, 2011. The Board leased the Project to the 
Foundation pursuant to the Capital Lease, subject to the following general terms and conditions: 
(i) the maximum annual debt senice under the Capital lease is $332,750 and the scheduled term 
of the Capital Lease is 18 years from March 2007 through May 2025. 

-17- 

118



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (8) Leasing Commitments

Capital Leases As Lessee (continued)

During the 2003-04 fiscal year, the Foundation entered into a ground and facilities lease
agreement (Capital Lease) with the State of California, acting through the Board of Trustees of
the California State University (Board) and agreed to undertake the financing of certain capital
costs with respect to the University Village Phase III construction by the Board of an additional
466 bed-spaces (the "Project") at the University Village student housing complex located at
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona. The Board assisted the Foundation by issuing
its System Revenue Bonds series 2005A and applied the proceeds totaling $29,866,650 of such
Bonds to the construction and acquisition of the Project by the Board; and leasing the Project to
the Foundation pursuant to the Capital Lease, subject to the following general terms and
conditions: (i) the maximum annual debt service under the Capital Lease is $1,830,625 and the
scheduled term of the Capital Lease is 31 years from completion of the construction of the Project
in September 2005. See subsequent event note for further information on partial refunding of the
2005A series bonds.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable capital lease agreements at June 30, 2013 are as
follows:

Year ending June 30:

2014 $ 2,214,991
2015 2,214,530
2016 2,212,718
2017 2,211,016
2018 2,211,938
2019-2023 11,036,692
2024-2028 10,000,165
2029-2033 9,326,735
2034-2037 5,554,186
Total 46,982,971

Less amount representing
interest (18,035,322)

Present value of net
Minimum lease payments 128 947,649

-18-

CAL POLY POMONA FOIJNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (8) Leasing Commitments 

Capital Leases As Lessee (continued) 

During the 2003-04 fiscal year, the Foundation entered into a ground and facilities 'case 
agreement (Capital Lease) with the State of California, acting through the Board of Trustees of 
the California State University (Board) and agreed to undertake the financing of certain capital 
costs with respect to the University Village Phase Ill construction by the Board of an additional 
466 bed-spaces (the "Project") at the University Village student housing complex located at 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona. The Board assisted the Foundation by issuing 
its System Revenue Bonds series 2005A and applied the proceeds totaling $29,866,650 of such 
Bonds to the construction and acquisition of the Project by the Board; and leasing the Project to 
he Foundation pursuant to the Capital Lease, subject to the following general terms and 

conditions: (i) the maxinnirn annual debt service under the Capital lease is $1,830,625 and the 
scheduled term of the Capital Lease is 31 years from completion of the construction of the Project 
in September 2005. See subsequent event note for further information on partial refunding of the 
2005A series bonds. 

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable capital lease agreements at June 30, 2013 are as 
follows: 

Year ending June 30: 

2014 2,214,99! 
2015 2,214,53(1 
2016 2,212,718 
2017 2,211,016 
2018 2,211,938 
2019-2023 11,036,692 
2024-202 8 10,000,165 
20292033 9,326,735 
2034-203 7 5,5 54 86 
Total 46,982,971 

Less amount representing 
interest (1&03 5,3 22) 

Present value of net 
Minimum lease payments S 28.947.649 

-18- 

119



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (8) Leasing Commitments (continued)

Operating Leases As Lessor

Land, office and certain facilities are leased to the American National Red Cross, Southern
California Edison, State of California and the University. Some of the leases are all-inclusive
while other leases require the tenants to pay a pro-rata share of common area maintenance and are
in effect with various termination dates between 2013 and 2084.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements at June 30, 2013 are
as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2014 $ 1,991,097
2015 1,919,914
2016 1,934,111
2017 928,824
2018 933,255
2019-2023 4,689,955
2024-2028 5,163,226
2029-2033 5,690,317
2034-2038 6,271,238
2039-2043 6,911,488
2044-2048 7,617,129
2049-2053 8,394,842
2054-2058 9,086,299
2059-2063 4,919,566
2064-2068 5,411,522
2069-2073 5,952,675
2074-2078 6,547,942
2079-2083 6,875,221
2084 1,134,849

Total

-19-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (8) Leasing Commitments (continued) 

Operating Leases As Lessor 

Land, office and certain facilities are leased to the American National Red Cross, Southern 
California Edison, State of California and the University. Some of the leases are all-inclusive 
while other leases require the tenants to pay a pro-rata share of common area maintenance and are 
in effect with various termination dates between 2013 and 2084. 

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating lease agreements at Pane 30, 2013 are 
as follows: 

Year ending June 30: 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 
2019 -2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 
203 4-203 8 
203 9-2043 
2044-2 048 
2049-2 053 
2054-2 05 8 
2059-2 063 
2064-2068 
2069-2073 
2074-2078 
2079-2083 
2084 

Total 

S 1. 991,097 
1,919,914 
1,934,111 

928,824 
933,255 

4,689,955 
5,163,226 
5,690,317 
6,271,238 
6,911,488 
7,617,129 
8,394,842 
9,086,299 
4,919,566 
5411,522 
5,952675 
6,547,942 
6,875,221 
1.134. 849 

S92373.47() 

19- 

120



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (9) Long-Term Debt

A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2013 is shown below:

Bahnce

7/1/2012 Additions Reductions

Balance Amount due in

06/30/2013 ore year

Capital lease obligations $ 29,754,982 $ 807,333 $ 28,947,649 $ 786,518
Compensated absences 673,557 462,957 435,491 701,023 435,491
Other postretirement benefits 1,847,759 617,303 1,230,456

Totals $ 32,276,298 $ 462,957 $ 1,860,127 $ 30,879,128 $ 1,222,009

Note (10) Transactions with the University and University Educational Trust

The Foundation and the University provide various services on each other's behalf. Such
services are appropriately billed. At June 30, 2013 and 2012 respectively, receivables from other
activities and due from the University are $843,837 and $733,410. Accounts payable include
$850,473 and $767,058 due to the University at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Amounts paid by the Foundation for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $10,657,142
and $12,033,263, respectively. Amounts paid to the Foundation for the year ended June 30, 2013
and 2012 respectively totaled $11,623,476 and $16,178,127.

During the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Foundation transferred fixed assets totaling
$3,662,792 and $3,930,872, comprised of equipment and renovations for various college
buildings at the University. The University assumed ownership and management of the
equipment and facilities.

The Foundation, at the request of and with the authorization of the University, provides
accounting, financial reporting and management information services support to the Cal Poly
Pomona University Educational Trust (UET), an auxiliary of the University. The UET paid the
Foundation $25,503 in exchange for these services during fiscal year 2011-12 until the UET was
dissolved and the assets were transferred to the Foundation on February 1, 2012. Prior to the
UET's wind up and dissolution, the UET's Board authorized an endowment earnings distribution
of $2,411,642 to the Foundation per the UET's endowment spending policy in fiscal year
2011-12.

-20-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (9) Long-Term Debt 

A schedule of chartgcs in long-temi debt for the year ended June 30, 2013 is shown below: 

Rhnee 
7/I'2012 

Capial tae obhztSs $ 29754,982 
Compenatcd absences 673,557 
OUtr pustxIfrcrnnEbvnefiLs 1,847,759 
ToIaI 32,276,298 

Additions Redixtkrns 

S $  g07,335 
462,957 435.49! 

__________ 617,303 
S 462,957 S 1,860,127 

Balamx AniDrnt due ii 
06.'30/2013 onc )tT 

S 2M,947,649 S  7S6,5I 8 
701,023 435,49! 

1230,456  __________ 
S 30,879,128 S L222,009 

Note (10) Transactions with the University and University Educational Trust 

The Foundation and the University provide various services On each other's behalf. Such 
services are appropriately billed. At June 30, 2013 and 2012 respectively, receivables from other 
activities and due from (he University art 5843,837 and $733,410. Accounts payable include 
$850,473 and $767,058 due to the University at June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Amounts paid by the Foundation for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 totaled $10,657,142 
and $12,033,263, respectively. Amounts paid to the Foundation for the year ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012 respectively totaled $11,623,476 and $16,178,127. 

During the year ended June30, 2013 and 2012, (he Foundation Iransfejred fixed assets totaling 
$3,662,792 and $3,930,872, comprised of equipment and renovations for various college 
buildings at the University.  The University assumed o ership and management of the 
equipment and facilities. 

The Foundalion, at the request of and with the authorization of the Universily, provides 
accounting, financial reporting and management information services support to the Cal Poly 
Pomona University Educational Trust (UEl), an auxiliary of the University. The liFT paid the 
Foundation $25,503 in exchange for these services during fiscal year 2011-12 until the UEI was 
dissolved and the assets were transfentd to the Foundation on Febniary 1, 2012. Prior to the 
UFT's wind up and dissolution, the UET's Board atithorized an endowment earnings distribution 
of $2,411,642 to the Foundation per the UhF's endo ment spending policy in fiscal year 
2011-12. 

-20- 

121



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (11) Pension Plan

The Foundation participates in a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan through the
California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) which covers substantially all
regular full-time employees of the Foundation. CalPERS acts as a common investment and
administrative agent for participating public entities with the State of California and reports
information to the Foundation in accordance with reporting standards established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The plan provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Public
Employees' Retirement Law. CalPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report
that includes required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.

The Foundation's policy is to fund pension costs as incurred. The contribution rate for fiscal
years 2012-13 and 2011-12 was 9.44% and 9.42% respectively. These rates are aggregated since
the Foundation had various plans with CalPERS. Due to pension reform regulations, during fiscal
year 2012-13, the Foundation was required to add a new plan in January 2013 (the 2% at 62
plan). For fiscal year 2012-13, the rates were 9.44% for the 2% at 55 plan, 7.846% for the 2% at
60 plan, and 6.25% for the newly added 2% at 62 plan. For fiscal year 2011-12 the rates were
9.42% for the 2% at 55 plan, and 7.773% for the 2% at 60 plan.

The Foundation contribution rate for the fiscal year 2013-14 is 10.052% for the 2% at 55 plan,
8.049% for the 2% at 60 plan, and 6.25% for the 2% at 62 plan. The employee rate is 5% for the
2% at 55 plan, 7% for the 2% at 60 plan, and 6.25% for the 2% at 62 plan.

The Foundation's contributions to PERS for each of the last three fiscal years is as follows:

PERS
Year Ended Required Percent

June 30, Contribution Contributed

2011 $ 668,468 100%
2012 762,234 100%
2013 742,507 100%

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits

The Foundation sponsors a single-employer defined benefit postretirement health care plan to pay
a portion of the retiree's insurance premiums. This plan allows the employee to qualify for a
larger percentage of the employer payment of the retiree's healthcare premiums and those levels
are based on an employees' hire and retirement dates. The Foundation sponsored plan also
covers dependents of the employee.

Full time employees qualify at 100% after five years of full time service and reaching the age of
50 when they retired before July 1, 2004.

-21-

CAL POLl POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June30. 2013 and 2012 

Note (11) Pension Plan 

The Foundation participates in a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan through the 
California Public Employees' Retirnment System (QiIPERS) which covers substantially all 
regular full-time employees of the Foundation. C&PERS acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities with the State of California and reports 
information to the Foundation in accordance with reporting standards established by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The plan provides retirement and disability 
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. 
Benefit provisions are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended, within the Ptiblic 
Employees' Retirement Law. CaIPERS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report 
that includes required supplementary information. Copies of the CaIPERS annual financial report 
maybe obtained from the CaIPERS Executive Office, 400 p Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 

The Foundation's policy is to fund pension costs as incun -ed. The contribution rate for fiscal 
years 2012-13 and 201 1-12 was 944% and 9.42% respectively. These rates are aggregated since 
the Foundation had various plans with CaIPERS. Due to pension reform regulations, during fiscal 
year 2012-13, the Foundation was required to add a new plan in January 2013 (the 2% at 62 
plan). For fiscal year 2012-13, the rates were 944% for the 2% at 55 plan, 7.846% for the 2% at 
60 plan, and 6.25% for the newly added 2% at 62 plan. For flseal year 2011-12 the rates were 
9.42% thr the 2% at 55 plan, and 7773% for the 2% at 60 plan. 

The Foundation contribution rate for the fiscal year 2013-14 is 10.052% for the 2% at 55 plan, 
8.049% for the 2% at 60 plan, and 6.25% for the 2% at 62 plan. The employee rate is 5% for the 
2% at 55 plan, 7% for the 2% at 60 plan, and 6.25% for the 2% at 62 plan. 

The Foundation's contributions to PERS for each of the last three fiscal years is as follows: 

PERS 
Year Ended Required Percent 

June 30. Contribution Coffiributed 

2011 $ 668,468 100% 
2012 762,234 100% 
2013 742,507 100% 

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits 

The Foundation sponsors a single-employer defined benefit postretirement health care plan to pay 
a portion of the retiree's insurance premiums. This plan allows the employee to qualil' thr a 
larger percentage of the employer payment of the retiree's healtheare premiums and those levels 
are based on an employees' hire and retirement dates. The Foundation sponsored plan also 
covers dependents of the employee. 

Full time employees quali' at 100% after five years of full time service and reaching the age of 
50 when they retired before July 1,2004. 

-2]- 

122



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

Full time employees hired before October 1, 2004, who have at least 10 years of full time service
and are at least 50 years of age qualify at 75% upon attaining 10 years of service, and earn an
additional 5% for each full year completed after 10 years of service. Employees reach 100%
once attaining 15 years of full time service. Additionally, employees who are at least 50 years of
age and have at least 10 years of service may add together their age and years of service, and
when that amount totals 70, the employee will be 100% qualified.

Full time employees hired on or after October 1, 2004 and before March 1, 2009, who have at
least 10 years of full time service and are at least 50 years of age become qualified at 50% upon
attaining 10 years of service, and earn an additional 5% for each full year completed after 10
years of service. Employees reach 100% once attaining 20 years of full time service.

Full time employees hired on or after March 1, 2009, are ineligible for benefits under the defined
benefit healthcare plan for retirees.

Beginning in the fiscal year ended June 2011 the Foundation participated in the Auxiliaries
Multiple Employer VEBA (Voluntary Employees' Beneficiary Association). The Auxiliaries
Multiple Employer VEBA is a separate 501(c)(9) organization established in August 2010 to
assist in funding post-retirement healthcare benefits for recognized auxiliaries of the California
State University System. The plan does not issue separate financial statements. During each of
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Foundation contributed $1.0 million. In
addition to the above contributions, the Foundation also paid $454,667 and $403,768 for retiree
benefit expenses in fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012.

In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the Foundation implemented GASB Statement No. 45
"Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions" on a retrospective basis and recorded the cost and obligation of these benefits in the
financial statements. The beginning Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) obligation was
established by rolling back the July 1, 2011 valuation to July 1, 2007, the year the Foundation
would have adopted the reporting provisions of GASB Statement No. 45. To comply with the
reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, the June 30, 2011 liability of $12,624,937
was reduced by $10,251,600, and the June 30, 2012 beginning net position was restated by this
amount.

-22-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 

Full time employees hired before October 1,2004, who have at least 10 years of thu time service 
and arc at least 50 years of age quaIi' at 75% upon attaining 10 years of service, and earn an 
additional 5% for each [hIl year completed afler 10 years of service. Employees reach 100% 
once attaining IS years of thU time service. Additionally, employees who arc at least 50 years of 
age and have at least 10 years of service may add together their age and years of service, and 
when that amount totals 70, the employee will be 100% qualified. 

Full time employees hired on or after October 1, 2004 and before March 1, 2009, who have at 
least 10 years of fUll time service and are at least 50 years of age become qualified al 50% upon 
attaining 10 years of service, and Cain an additional 5% for each full year completed after 10 
years of service. Employees reach 100% once attaining 20 years of full time service. 

Full time employees hired on or after March I, 2009, are ineligible for benefits under the defined 
benefit healthcare plan for retirees. 

Beginning in the fiscal year ended June 2011 the Foundation participaLed in the Auxiliaries 
Multiple Employer VEBA (Voluntaiy Employees' Beneficiary Association). The Auxiliaries 
Multiple Employer VEBA is a separate 501(e)(9) organization established in August 2010 to 
assist in funding post-retirement healthcare benefits for recognized auxiliaries of the California 
State University System. The plan does not issue separate financial statements, During each of 
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Foundation coniributed $1.0 million. In 
addition to the above contributions, the Foundation also paid $454,667 and $403,768 for retiree 
benefit expenses in fiscal years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012. 

In the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the Foundation implemented GASB Statement No. 45 
"Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions" on a retrospective basis and recorded the cost and obligation of these benefits in the 
financial statements. The beginning Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) obligation was 
established by rolling back the July 1, 2011 valuation to July I, 2007, the year the Foundation 
would have adopted the reporting provisions of GASH Statement No. 45. To comply with the 
reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 45, the June 30, 201! liability of S12,624,937 
was reduced by $10,251,600, and die June 30, 2012 beginning net position was restated by this 
amount. 

-22- 

123



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

The Foundation's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows
the components of the Foundation's annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually
contributed, and changes in the OPEB obligation:

2013 2012

Annual required contribution (ARC) $ 825,439 $ 859,289

Interest on net OPEB obligation 129,343 166,134

Adjustment to annual required contribution (117,418) (147,233)

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 837,364 878,190

Contributions made (1,454,667) (1,403,768)

Change in net OPEB obligation (617,303) (525,578)

Net OPEB asset - beginning of year 1,847,759 2,373,337

Net OPEB asset - end of year $ 1,230,456 $ 1,847,759

The Foundation's annual OPEB cost for the year, the percentage of annual OPEB cost
contributed, and the net OPEB obligation was as follows:

Percentage of
Fiscal Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB

Ended OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation

06/30/2011 $1,075,956 130% $2,373,337
06/30/2012 878,190 160% 1,847,759
06/30/2013 837,364 174% 1,230,456

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 9.9% funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $10,536,352 and the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability (UAAL) was $9,496,173. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $8,093,038, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was
117.3%.

As of June 30, 2013 and 2012 the market value of plan assets was $3,326,369 and $2,119,632
respectively. It is the Foundation's plan to continue funding this liability in the coming year.

-23-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATJON, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 

the Foundation's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required 
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the 
parameters of GASH Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an 
ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unftinded actuarial 
liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows 
the components of the Foundation's annual OPEB cost for the year, (lie amount actually 
contributed, and changes in the OPEB obligation: 

Annual required conflibution (ARC) 
Interest on net OPEB obligatkin 

Adjustment to annual required contribution 

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 
Contributions made 

Change in net OPEB obligation 

Net OPEB asset - beginning of year 

Net OPEB asset - end of year 

2013 

$  825,439 
129,343 

(117,418) 

837,364 

(1,454,667) 

(617,303) 
1,847,759 

$ 1,230,456 

2012 

$ 859,289 

166,134 
(147,233) 

878,190 
(1403.768) 

(525,578) 
2,373,337 

$ 1,847.759 

The Foundation's annual OPEB cost for the year, the percentage of annual OPEB cost 
contributed, and the net OPEB obligation was as follows: 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

06/30/2011 
06/3 0/20 12 
06/3 0/20 13 

Annual 
OPEB Cost 

$1,075,956 
878.190 
837.364 

Percentage of 
Annual OPEB Net OPEB 

CotCnntrihuted Obligation 

130% $2,373.337 
160% 1,847,759 
174% 1,230,456 

Funding Status and Funding Progress 

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 9.9% funded. The 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $10,536,352 and the unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability (UAAL) was $9.496,173. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) was $8,093,038, and the ratio of the IJAAL to the covered payroll was 
117,3%. 

As of Junc 30, 2013 and 2012 the market value of plan assets was $3,326,369 and $2,119,632 
respectively. It is the Foundation's plan to continue funding this liability in the coming year. 

-23- 

124



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued)

Funding Status and Funding Progress (continued)

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing benefit plan involve estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future.
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend.
Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress,
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements,
presents the first year of information for the actuarial value of plan assets. In subsequent years the
schedule of funding progress will provide information about whether the actuarial value of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for
benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan
as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, if any, consistent with the long-term perspective of the
calculations.

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a 7.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses) which is the current expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and the
Foundation's maximum annual healthcare cost trend rate of 5.0%. The UAAL is being amortized
on a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over 30 years as allowed under GASB
Statement No. 45. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2013, was 24 years.

Note (13) Risk Management

The Foundation is self-insured for various risks of loss related to torts; damage to, and destruction
of assets; employment practices; and natural disasters with deductibles coverage up to $100,000
for each employment practice liability claim and property damage claim.

During fiscal year 2011-12, the Foundation established a self-funded healthcare benefits plan
with stop loss insurance for eligible employees and retirees. Under this program, the Foundation
provides coverage for up to a maximum of $1,040,000 for medical claims for active employees
and retirees who are not enrolled in Medicare and for active employees, 100% for dental and
100% for vision. The Foundation purchases guaranteed insurance for claims in excess of the self-
funded healthcare benefits plan and deductibles and for all other risks of loss.

-24-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and 2012 

Note (12) Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 

Fuiiding Status and Funding Progress (continued) 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing benefit plan involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into die future. 
Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 
Amounts deterrriined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required conftibutions 
of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Ihe schedule of funding progress, 
presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents the first year of information for the actuarial value of plan assets. In subsequent years the 
schedule of fluiding progress will pmvide information aboul whether the actuarial value of plan 
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan 
as understood by the employer arid the plan members) and include the types of benefits provided 
at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the 
employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued 
liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, if any. consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was used. The 
actuarial assumptions included a 7.0 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative 
expenses) which is the current expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and the 
Foundation's maximum annual healthcarc east trend rate of 5.0%. The IJAAL is being amortized 
on a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis over 30 years as allowed under GASB 
Statement No. 45. The remaining amortization period at June 30, 2013, was 24 years. 

Note (13) Risk Management 

Ihe Foundation is self-insured thr various risks of loss related to torts; damage to, and destruction 
of assets; employment practices; and natural disasters with deductibles coverage up to El 00,000 
for each employment practice liability claim and property damage claim. 

During fiscal year 2011-12, the Foundation established a self-funded healthcare benefits plan 
with stop loss insurance for eligible employees and retirees. Under this program, the Foundation 
provides coverage for up to a maximum of $1,040,000 for medical claims for active employees 
and retirees who are not enrolled in Medicare and for active employees, l00% for dental and 
100% for vision. The Foundation purchases guaranteed insurance for claims in excess of the self-
thnded healtheare benefits plan arid deductibles and for all other risks of loss. 

-24- 

125



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (13) Risk Management (continued)

Eligible employees and retirees of the Foundation that participate in the self-funded healthcare
benefits plan make payments based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims
and stop loss insurance.

Note (14) Assets held for Sale

In fiscal year 2002-03, the Foundation started purchasing faculty/staff housing in support of the
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona's mission to develop affordable faculty staff
housing options to attract and retain employees for the University.

At June 30, 2013, total assets held for sale include two faculty/staff condominiums. At June 30,
2012, total assets held for sale include three faculty/staff houses, comprised of two condominiums
and one single family residence.

Fair values of assets measured on a nonrecurring basis held for sale at June 30, 2013 and 2012
were $712,500 and $691,217 respectively. Assets held for sale are recorded at cost which
approximates fair value. Cost to sell and unrealized losses are immaterial and will not be
recognized until the assets are sold.

Note (15) Transfer of Net Position

During fiscal year 2011-12 the Cal Poly Pomona University Educational Trust (Trust) took action
to dissolve and distribute the assets and liabilities of the Trust to the Foundation per the advice of
Trust's legal counsel. This action was determined to be the best option for the Trust as a result of
its failure to meet the public support test as a result of a disproportionately large size grant
received by the Trust as compared to other grants received as well as the integral part test. The
Trust served as the recipient for gifts and grants to permanent endowments on behalf of the
University. The Trust's net position of $54,801,078 was transferred to the Foundation on
February 1, 2012.

Note (16) Commitments

The Foundation offered a homeowner's buyback option as an incentive for faculty/staff to
purchase the Foundation's homes held for sale due to the current pricing instabilities in the
general residential marketplace. During fiscal year 2011-12, the Foundation entered into 4
buyback option agreements with faculty/staff homeowners. During fiscal year 2012-13, the
Foundation entered into 1 buyback option agreement with faculty/staff homeowners. The
buyback agreement is for one year from the date initially purchased with two, one year options to
extend the agreement. If certain conditions are met and the faculty/staff exercises their option,
the Foundation is required to repurchase the home at the initial purchase price.

During the fiscal year 2011-12 the Foundation bought back 4 homes under these agreements
respectively. Additionally 7 homeowners purchased additional one year options to the agreement
during the fiscal year 2011-12. During the fiscal year 2012-13 the Foundation bought back 5
homes under these agreements respectively. Additionally 4 homeowners purchased additional
one year options to the agreement during the fiscal year 2012-13.

-25-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 atid 2012 

Note (13) Risk Management (continued) 

Eligible employees and retirees of the Foundation that participale in the self-funded healthcare 
benefits plan make payments based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay claims 
and stop loss insurance. 

Note (14) Assets lieki for Sale 

In fiscal year 2002-03, the Foundation started purchasing fhculty/sIalT housing in support of the 
California State Polytechnic University, Pomona's mission to develop affordable faculty staff 
housing options to attract and retain employees for the University. 

At June 30, 2013, total assets held for sale include two faculty/staff condominiums. At June 30, 
2012, total assets held for sale include three Faculty/staff houses, comprised of two condominiums 
and one single family residence. 

Fair values of assets measured on a nonrecurring basis held for sale at June 30, 2013 and 2012 
were $712,500 and $691,217 respectively. Assets held for sale are recorded at cost which 
approximates lair value. Cost to se1i and unrealized losses are immaterial and will not be 
recognized until the assets are sold. 

Note (15) Transfer of Net Position 

During fiscal year 2011-12 the Cal Poly Pomona University Educational . 1 nist (trust) took action 
to dissolve and distribute the assets and liabilities of the Trust to the Foundation per the advice of 
Trust's legal counsel. This action was determined to be the best option for the Trust as a result of 
its failure to meet the public support test as a result of a disproportionately large size grant 
received by the Trust as compared to other grants received as well as the integral part test. The 
Trust served as the recipient for gifts and grants to permanent endowments on behalf of the 
University. The Trust's net position of $54,801,078 was transferred to the Foundation on 
February 1,2012. 

Note (16) Commitments 

The Foundation offered a homeowner's buyback option as an incentive for faculty/staff to 
purchase the Foundation's homes held for sale due to the current pricing instabilities in the 
general residential marketplace. During fiscal year 201 1-12, Ike Foundation entered into 4 
buyback option agreements with faculty/staff homeowners. During fiscal year 201 2-13 the 
Foundation entered into I buyback option agreement with faculty/staff homeowners. The 
buybaek agreement is for one year from the date initially purchased with two, one year options to 
extend the agreement. It certain conditions are met and the faculty/staff exercises their option, 
the Foundation is required to repurchase the home at the initial purchase price. 

During the fiscal year 2011-12 the Foundation bought back 4 homes under these agreements 
respectively. Additionally 7 homeowners purchased additional one year options to the agreement 
during the fiscal year 2011-12. During the flseal year 2012-13 the Foundation bought back 
homes under these agreements respectively. Additionally 4 homeowners purchased additional 
one year options to the agreement during the fiscal year 2W 2-13. 

-25- 

126



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Note (17) Change in Accounting Principles

There was no effect on beginning net position for the adoption of GASB Statement No. 63,

Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position.

The Foundation wrote off $255,247 of bond issue costs in accordance with the implementation
of GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These fees were
previously amortized over the life of the bond and are now required to be expensed in the period
incurred. Due to materiality, beginning net position was not restated.

Note (18) Subsequent Event

Subsequent to fiscal year end June 2013, the California State University issued a system wide revenue
bond series 2013A. The series was used to partially refund certain portions of series 2005A bonds related
to the Foundation's University Village Phase III student housing project. The partial refunding of the
Foundation's portion of the 2005A generated a net present value savings of $685,409, or 6.52% of the
$10,515,000 refunded bonds. Those principal payments that were subject to redemption included the
November 1, 2015 through November 1, 2026 maturities. The un-refunded portion of the 2005A (related
to the University Village III project) totals $14,470,000 and is inclusive of the November 1, 2013,
November 1, 2014 and November 1, 2027 through November 1, 2035 maturities. The all-inclusive
interest rate for the refunding bonds is 2.97%, inclusive of bond premium paid by investors and the bond
underwriter's discount and cost of issuance.

-26-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2013 and2Ol2 

Note (17) Change in Accounting Principles 

there was no effect on beginning net position for the adoption of OASIJ Statement No. 63, 
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows o/Resource Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net 
Position. 

The Foundation wrote off $255,247 of bond issue costs in accordance with the implementation 
of OASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These fees were 
previously amortized over the life of the bond and are now required to be expensed in the period 
incurred. Due to materiality, beginning net position was not restated. 

Note (IS) Subsequent Event 

Subsequent to fiscal year end June 2013, the California State tJniversi  issued a system wide revenue 
bond series 2013A. The series was used to partially refUnd certain portions of series 2005A bonds related 
to the Foundation's University Village Phase Ill student housing project. The partial reftmding of the 
Foundation's portion of the 2001k generalS a nel present value savings of $685,409, or 652% of the 
$10,515,000 refunded bonds, those principal payments that were subject lo redemption included the 
November 1,2015 through November 1, 2026 maturities. The un-refunded portion of the 20014 (related 
to the University Village III project) totals $14,470,000 and is inclusive of the November 1, 2013, 
November I, 2014 and November 1, 2027 through November 1, 2035 maturities. The all-inclusive 
interest rate for the reffiriding bonds is 2.97%, inclusive olbond premium paid by investors and the bond 
underwriter's discount and cost of issuance. 

-26- 

127



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

SCHEDULE OF POST-EMPLOYMENT HEALTH CARE BENEFITS FUNDING PROGRESS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Actuarial Accrued
Actuarial Value Liability

of (Entry Age normal Unfunded Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Assets Cost Method) Accrued Liability Funding Covered Percentage of

Valuation Date (AVA) (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

7/1/2011 1,040,179 10,536,352 9,496,173 9.9% 8,093,038 117.3%

Note: In 2012-13 and 2011-12 , the Foundation contributed an additional amount of $1.0 million to the Auxiliaries Multiple Employer VEBA Trust.
The fair market value of plan assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $3,326,369 and $2,119,632.

Because the Foundation implemented the reporting requirements of GASB 45 in fiscal year 2011-12, only one year of data is provided.
Additional reporting will be provided in future yems as actuarial reports become available.

See the accompanying independent auditor's report.

-27-

4* 

H
 

I 4, 

4
- 

0
 

4
- 

0
 

cl 

0
.
 0
' 

e
 

C
 

d
 

a
m

 
.1z 

C
 

C
 

4
-
 -

 

$
 

•0
 

C
 

V
 Q

J 

(-'I  C
 

-
 

—
 

N
 

C
-

0,
0, 

rfl 

.a 4) 

a) 

2 a 

-o
 

I- - 0
 

a) 

a) C
 

0
 

C
 

0
 

e
l 

c3
1) 

a) 

a 0
>

 

.t' C
 

-
f
 0

 
4) 

U
) 

(
.)

 °
 

4-  
C

 

H C
 

V
 

a
 

-w
 

4
)

t) 

o
  

.2 

-, 
0
0
 

o
 

C
 

4* 
, . 
ci -w

 

—
 

UI 
S

 

0
 

Jl
o 

V
 

'5
 

-
 

r
 

b 
C

 
-
 

I 

-
 

0
 

N
 

z
 

©
 

z
 

0
 

en 
0
 

0
 

I I 
0
 

0
- 

4* 
I-. 

S
 

-o
 C a) C a) 

0-

-
fl' 

JJ 

0- 
C C) 0 C

) 
=

 C
) 

a) 
U

) 

128



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Net Position

June 30,2013

(for inchision in the California State Uthersity)

Assets:

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents S 5,702,161
Short-term investments 36240,855
Accounts receivable, net 5,933,244
Leases receivable, current portion -
Notes receivable, current portion -
Pledges receivable, net 3,241,916
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,765,609

Total current assets 53,883,785

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1247,301
Accounts receivable, net -
Leases receivable, net of current portion -
Notes receivable, net of cunent portion -
Student loans receivable, net -
Pledges receivable, net 5,123,161
Endowment investments 68,024,560
Other long-term investments 707,955
Capital assets, net 55,981,138
Other assets

Total noncurtent assets 131,084,115

Total assets 184,967,900

Deferred outflows of resources
Unamortized loss on refundinds)

Total deferred outflows of resources

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 2,624,453
Accrued salaries and benefits payable 544,147
Accrued coinpensated absences- current portion 435,491
Unearned revenue 1209234
Capitalized lease obligations - current portion 786,518
Long-term debt obligations - current portion -
Self-insurance claims liability - cunent portion -
Depository accounts -
Other liabilities 4,667,132

Total current liabilities 10,266,975

Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, net of current ponion
Unearned revenue
Grants refimdable
Capitalized lease obligations, net of current portion
Long-term debt obligations, net of current portion
Self-insurance claims liabilities, net of current ponion
Depository accounts
Other postennploymera benefits obligation 1,230,456
Other liabilities 1,001,426

Total noncurrent liabilities 30,658,545

Total liabilities 40,925,520

265,532

28,161,131

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows from SCM, wants, and others

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 27,033,489
Restricted for:

Nonexpendable - endowments 69,271,861
Expendable:

Scholarships and fellowships 3,238,679
Research
Loans -
Capital projects 5,805,577
Debt service -
Other 26,572,366

Unresnicted 12,120,408

Total net position S 144,042,380

See the accompanying independent auditor's report.

-28-

CALPOLVPOMONA •OIJNFIATION, INC. 

Schcdtde ofNct Fcibaji 

1mw 10. 20 IS 

(fo, sxhakgi is the California Stare Ci trsi) 

Aaa ala: 

isrear assets: 
Cash ara cash :qura]euta 
Shejl-Iei iii a ,vara line its 
Accoippis rccca*. act 
LcaEs recefiiab!c. cuTout 
Ndes eceivalIla trurir4 rxtoti 
Pledges recepvab]o tel 
Prepaid epertses and ether assets 

Tois] cwrcnr assets 

Nneu.rent assIs; 
Rest' stcd cash nrwl cash equrau*s 
Accrpnts rcccka]c. net 
Leases recoabk let of cuz(.uIL prrtvan 
Ncces ft ceiva his, uyst cute inTent 
nntiir lt ns mcc&abk. net 

PIegcs recdvabl,nct 
tndownteit! attabneitc 
Oil ]er krng-tanm live 
Ctt plot a sa eta, net 
Other asseta 

Total piauic wrani a, sers 

TcliI arasets 

Dc It' ed cant tics's s of resotffcc $ 
mortjsed bss oo reftn is) 

Total deferred ottlrn. s of es,nrce 

Liabdc 5: 

Current Iabdlies; 
Accouijla 1,nhIe 
Accrued sabrios and beurfits pa'able 
Accrued cornpcpisated abscuice— CLJJIBTIt poItr 
Unc a, ted 
(\pñu' ed lease obEga is - cm'rcnt [ortioa 
t.on-term debt obEaür1 - CirnariL pdn 
ScIf. aurance ehutta Iaih'hty - current porton 
E)qtuicitoiy fieccinra 
Ccr liabil1ei 

Total swiont biIies 

Nortetuent IMbthSs. 
Accrued c OtuIl F tsatad n bse rices Ic of etatetit pDrtion 

nennied ruc twe 
&aois rcfi.,àbk 
Capitalized lease di itwnq net ofctu'renr pcxl00 
L,x-Isrm ,let obanons net ofeurreni poctoa 
Seff-iisinriec ccahns IiabMs. net of cuirsiul [asrilon 
Depso'y accowIts 
Other pcztsuiultyineru enefaI oWitien 
tither M*s 

Total sencurreet abu1kies 

Total I biies 

Dcferre inths o(rcsovrces; 
Deferred mOot; a Ihms SCAs nnts and c4Iiers 

Tolal cfrferrud nfbwa ofrcs,,urees 

Nct Foathc.i. 
Net mesnTienr Si capal assets 
Roittued for 

Noucxcathble - ctudunvaiienl, 
Exj as a t c : a i 

Scholarsl4,s and fc wslijs 
Research 

('ntoI projects 
De sente 
C - 

Uiti as tnc ad 

Total its t lirtlion 

5.70216 I 
3624055 

5, 3'.74l 

31t9Ifl 
2 765.600 

53883.785 

1217,301 

5,12361 
68,024.560 

70955 
s9giI38 

131084.1 IS 

I 84,9t7,S J 

2014.453 
.544, 147 
45A9I 

I 209334 
785lM 

4667,132 

I066473 

15 .5 31 

18.161131 

1230150 
I J]O I 

301i58 $45 

40125 520 

27 033,4SN 

69.27' .8] 

328,679 

5. 77 

26572,30 
12, l2Q,IU 

S 144.fJ41.380 

See the accompanying independent auditor's report. 

-28- 

129



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Year Ended June 30, 2013

(for inclusion in the California State University)

Revenues:

Operating revenues:
Student tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $ 3,834,057
Grants and contracts, noncapital:

Federal 7,760,754
State 1,980,758
Local -
Nongovernmental 2,432,618

Sales and services of educational activities 6,830,129
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises (net of scholarship

allowances of $ 35,425,226
Other operating revenues 2,894,680

Total operating revenues 61,158,222

Expenses:

Operating expenses:
Instruction 9,079,128
Research 4,758,937
Public service 409,483
Academic support 4,199,452
Student services 736,171
Institutional support 2,368,381
Operation and maintenance of plant 226,412
Student grants and scholarships 1,215,136
Auxiliary enterprise expenses 36,033,816
Depreciation and amortization 3,780,173

Total operating expenses 62,807,089

Operating income (loss) (1,648,867)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State appropriations, noncapital
Federal fmancial aid grants, noncapital
State fmancial aid grants, noncapital
Local financial aid grants, noncapital
Nongovernmental and other fmancial aid grants, noncapital -
Other federal nonoperating grants, noncapital -
Gifts, noncapital 15,619,093
Investment income (loss), net 1,299,406
Endowment income (loss), net 6,688,965
Interest Expenses (1,644,187)
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (3,662,792)

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 18,300,485

Income (loss) before other additions 16,651,618

State appropriations, capital
Grants and gifts, capital
Additions (reductions) to permanent endowments

Increase (decrease) in net position

Net position:
Net position at beginning of year, as previously reported
Restatements
Net position at beginning of year, as restated

Net position at end of year

See the accompanying independent auditor's report.

-29-

16,651,618

127,390,762

127,390,762

144,042,380

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

ScIledale ofReenues, E,cpene, and Changes iii Net Positinn 

Year Ended Jinx 30, 2013 

(for iduxicit in Ihc California Stutc Un'wrsity) 

Revenues: 

Operatiri revenues: 
Student ttiithn and Lees (net ofscholarship allowances oft_________ 
Grants and conriacts. noneapftal: 

Federal 
State 
Local 
Nougove [nine otal 

Sales aixi services ofeducational activities 
Sales ai services ofawdbaTv enterpnses (net of scholarship 

alloy ances oft____________ 
Other operat*ig revenues 

Total operating revenues 

Expenses. 

Operutftigxpnses; 
Instruct km 
Heseareh 
Public service 
Acadeniic support 
Student serwces 
hlstitLtholmlsupport 
Operation and nainienance ofplant 
Student grants and sc Iarshs 
Auxiliary enterpthe expenses 
Depreetion and aniofli,ation 

Total operatig expenses 

Operating inconie (loss) 

tJonopratin re\'cnucs (cxpncs). 
State appropthons, noncapial 
Federal financial aid arit. noneapital 
State Iriaricial lid grunts, nvncupul 
I ocal Imancial aid grants noccapftal 
Nongovcmmen(al and other Imancial a grants, noncapial 
Other federal noiperating grunts, ioncnpilal 
Gifts, noneapilal 
Investment i,con,e (loss), net 
Endownicnt iwomc (loss), net 
Interest Expenses 
Other nonopentuig revenue.c (expene) 

Net nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Income (loss) before other additions 

State approprialioiis. capital 
Grants aid gills, capaal 
Additions (reductions) to wxinunent cndo mcnLs 

Increase (decrease) in net position 

3,834,057 

7760754 
1,980,758 

2,432,618 
6230,129 

35425,226 
2$ 9 4,6 80 

61.158,222 

9,079,128 
4,758,937 

409,483 
4,199,452 

736,171 
2,368,381 

226,412 
t,215,136 

36,033816 
3780.173 

62,807,089 

(t648867) 

15619,093 
1,299,4€ 
6,688,965 

(1,644,187) 
(3,662,792) 

18,300,485 

16,651,618 

16,6516 IX 

Net posftion: 
Net position at  gfrmhig of ycur, us prcviausly reporLed 27,390,762 
Restatements -- 
Net position at bcgnmftig ofycar, as restated 127.390:762 

Net position it end utycar S 144.042,380 

See the aceenipanyirig independent auditor's report 

-29- 

130



0,40
1-1-,.1 III 118,S

,S
,111H

111111
qM

il
1

1

7,
N

0 01.
N

;:

M
O
N

1
1
1
1
1

l
'
C
l
'
.
.
7
e
"
a
'
H

I
II

E
.g111

i
O
r
n
,

N
N
4

W
C
e
.

00

z
0

iF-

M
O
N

1
E
,
.
!

1
1
1
1
1

l
!
'
.
.
:
t
.
:
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1

1
1

1
1
1

,
N
4

tlH
F

H
H

IH
lH

H
 II

sg1
1

zE
z

t 14,1111 H
ks.2.IIIH

111111
lIg1111

,nN
N
O
0

,
M
M

I
I
I
I
I
H
A
R
i
g
.
1
1
1
1
1

111111
1
1
 
M

N
on

O
N
N

N
4

u

014.1111111??,e111111
111111

11F
1111

5
rE

.
6

P
i

U
0°g

0,
7

gm
 2

i
e-0

----d
H

en
l'

i
3

R
g

Illi
1

0
1

ZVvf2

11-H
i

g
a

1111
3

a
II

;'
2 e

nO
 4i

p43
A

1
1

-,8

ei=
1

z
E

t'
t,e

-2
11

o w
° 3

a
knA

*1 ill 0
n
u
 
;
a

.
.
.
-

!
I

i .0(1
2

i
4 2 2 o

H
aw

.
n.g H

:
IV

L
O

niiini-i'laidiffdal
1H

P.%
!..,`2

1
4131

I
M

IIIIIE
firbtrhffilM

I
1g' n

cif)
O

niadadilall"

enenoC
O

C
O

enC
O

enenen4C
O

00C
O

en 4

C
O

tnG
O

C
O

C
O

00G
O

C
 

C
 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

(2 

•
I
I
I
I
I
 

i;
i 
liii 

a 

I 
1 

ii 
I

; 

a
t 

z
x
 

II 
I 

l
i
i
i
 

C
 

Ik
I 

11 
I 

I
I
I
. 

r1
ç
 

S
 

I 
F 

- 
I

I 
F 

I 

0
 
0
 
0
 

I 
N

 
-
 

I'
L

l!
 

s
III 

n
'
,
 

a 
-
 

0
' 

S
 

1
1
1
1
1
1
 
s
I
I
I
I
'
.
 

e
l
 
't
 
N

 

0
 

III 

II 
FF 

T
l
 

I
&. 

J 

F 
F 

F 
F 

F 
F 

I 
F 

F 
.4

 

z - 
0

 
> 

© - 
0

 

— 

Z
- 

o
C

J 

—
 

U
 

U
 

o
 o

 
<

 
I-! 

' 

N
 

F
ir

;
.IF

lF
F

 
F

IF
F

 
!F

F
F

: 

A
 
S

 

FQ
!F

F
F

IF
 

F
IF

 
Z. 

4 

0
, 

cc 0 1 C) 0 U 

ii I 
91! 

I
I
8
 

u
 

'5 

- 

I 
I 

ft  
I a 

a 

I 

!!hJ
ihjpillhliH

P 
1

!ffi
Jj1

ifltU
fl 

131



4ioP

...,>_0.

G
el

1
E

gE
E

cccc
ccccccc

E
,22.2..8.2
0

g tssaasm
s g

ei21-§titt
g

.2-2-E
ee2.2"

1
4
,
1
4
1
1
1
1

W
I
U
M

g
e'd

enC
l

-t 
2: 

C
-
 

4: 
—

 

'F
, 

- 
a
 

-, 
C

, -
 .9 U

, 

o A
 

U
 

—
 

C
 

(a 

L
1

1
1

 
kI 

I 
Il

o
l 

FtI 
II 

-
 

I
,I 

i
s
' 

P1 
v 

:) 

0
 

0
- 

C
) 

B C.) 

C
 

C
) 

C
) 

0
 

0
 

C
) 

C
) 

C
) 

I) 
V

 

a 

-r 

I c
c
c
c
n
 

. 

itf if I I F' 

Q
 

I 

C
 

2 2 C
 

I IIt}tt'I I F
' 

132



1111
111111

111
1111

111111

I
I

I
I

1
1

1
1

1
1

F

1
1111

H
 1111

11111

3.
1

1
1111

1R
111

it
11I

1111
111111

Im
l
i
l
P
i
l

11

1

F
ill

I
I

S
gg

1111
11

1111
111111

1111
11

1111
111111

IH
I

4

1
R

I
1111

gi.IF
LI.11g

1111111
1111

111111

51111re:0
lIlt

l
I
I
I

r.

IZ
 I

'X
I

!III
1.11

1
P

.1
H

II
5
1
5
1

aa-

1111
11

1111
111111

1111
11

1111
11

1
1

1
1

I
I

I
1

1
1

1

iH
z

i
H

I
I

I
"-1

02111

ggiig

00.
U7cict

471
C

D

aa.
"0-01)

=0.5cr,

-a4-1

a)a)
c./)

_

Nen

:
1
1
1
1
:
5
1
4
,
1
1
4
,
1
1
:
1
4
4

lio'g 14E
2

D
O

-21flR
ct_.o_d,

I
g

111
E

2
gill111

pb
g

— z © 

Co 

o  
2

 

F
 

a
 

lI
I
 

I
I
I
I
I
I
.
 

I
I
I
I

I 
iii 

- 

.1
1
 

II
I 

1
1
1
1
1
 

I 
III 

III 
1
1
1
1
1
 

I
I
I
I
!
I
 

F
'' 

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

 

i
i
k
i
1
i
i
i
i
i
 

I
1a1 

r 

I 
n

il 
I 

iL
i

i 
I! 

I 
'i

'' 
:i

l
l 

ii 

'i
i
i
'
'
'
'
'
 

i
i 

- 

I! 
III 

''
'''

H
I
 

I
ll 

II 
I
ll 

F
l 

'
P

1 
I
I
I
'
'
'
'
'
'
 

iL
l 

l
i
i
i
 

III 
l
i
i
i
 

L
I
 

jr
i 

III 
I; 

:1
1
1
1
1
 

li
i

i 
H

I 
U

 
1

11
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
 

U
 

HI 
U

t 
r
 

S
 

ft 
- 

I 

i1' 
ll 

iib 
! 

I
I
l
a
 

IiI 

IIIIIDIIHBIIJI t 
I  

t
 

0
 

2
 

I- 

S
 

t
 

0
 

= V
 

V
 

tio 
C

 

a
 

E C
 

0
 

0
 

-c
 

I) 
I) 

133



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
Other Information
JunCale 30, 2013

(for inclusion in the California State University)

3.2 Detail of depreciation and amortization expense for the year ended June 30, 2013:

Depreciation and amortization mpense related to capital assets $ 3,780,173
Amortization expense related to other assets

Total depreciation and amortizatmn S 3,780,173

4 Long-tertn liabilities activity schedule:

Accrued compensated absences

Capitalized kase obligations:
Gross babnce
Unamortized premium / (discount) on capitalized kase obligations

Total capitalized lease obligations

Balance Prior period
June 30, 2012 adjustments

Balance
June 30, 2012

Reclassifications (restated) Additions

462,957

Reductions

(435,491)

(756,018)
(51,315)

Balance
June 30, 2013

701,023

27,973,430
974,219

Current
portion

435,491

786,518

Long-term
portion

265,532

27,186,912
974,219

$ 673,557

28,729,448 -
1,025,534

673,557

28,729,448
1,025,534

29,754,982 29,754,982 (807,333) 28,947,649 786,518 28,161,131
Long-term debt obligations:

Revenue Bonds - -
Other bonds (non-Rotnue Bonds) - - - -
Commercial Paper - - -
Note Payabk related to SRB - - - -
Other:

Add description - - -
Add description - - -
Add description - - - -
Add description - - - -
Add description - - - - -
Add description - - - - -

Total long-term debt obligations - - - - -
Unamortized bond premium/ (discotot)
Unamortized loss on ramding

Total long-term debt obligations, net

Total bng-term liabilities $ 30 428 539 30 428 539 462,957 (1,242,824) 29,648,672 1,222,009 28,426,663

See the accompanying independent auditor's report.

-33-

U
 

2: 
0

 

2 

0
 —

 
v
-
I
 . 

o 
I
l

L
d
 

o 
S

 

U
 

E H
E g 

1
8
 ! 

S
 

• 
'4

 

II -2 S 

to
! 

:fl1
! 

I
1
2
 

t 
t

9
 

h 
I 

n
 

cI
_

 
-
 

t
ftI.

t
  
d
J
 
J
 

9
.  

III] 
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
 

U
 

('  
0
0
 
C

 

a 
. 

-
 

N
 

1;;
 

I 
J 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 
N

- - 
I 

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
 

0
 

•8
 

N
 

l
i
i
i
 

I
L

I
I
 

I 
t1

 

I
I
I
 

II
I 

11
1
1
1
 

I 
11

1
1
1
1
 

d
 

_ 
.. , 

o
'.e

 4
 

I- 

-E 

a 
U

 
0 

P I 
- 

Ii 
I
  b

 I
L

L
H

' 
g

u
ig

u
 u

n
 

- 
e . 

- 
E 

. 
a al 

E 
- 

-e 
2ouzo 

II 

I I 

I I JIn
 

II 
0 

II
I 

II 

I' 
C '4

 

I
 

C 0 C) 0 0 
c0 

134



L
.')

"
0

4
-.,

_
..

a)
4

>
O

.-.0
P.
t
c

0
t t

4C
11

4.errIC
I)

ici 14';
O

 E
(9

;1
,,c2

00,
1,4a1M

7di
,
-
.
c
.
)

o
 
t
g
.

x
,
5
,
-
,
s

O
 
0

c
A

4
00

4O
0t

a
zh,

-et
oL
.

C
.)

gr,
lEtT

o

t;rm
Igg,siv.qpr411111

sc:2z.ccggfl:n
(4,4(4,1,460:0;',e;

P
O
N
N
O
N
N
,
1
0
4
.
1

n
4
2
;
-
"
r
h
e
4
1
 
1
1
1
1

r
r
t
0
,
6
1
,
1
0
0
:
0

N
M
P
W
1
0
0
4
N
C
t
s

§
§
§
§
1
1
1
1
1

0
6
1
m
a
g

,
,

6
'
6
4
2
2
8
8
2
1
2
4

2
1
G
E
E
E
E
g
g
8
8
g
8
2
,
"
8

[
d
t
l
f
9
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

0
N

owr.;
r-

N
rz

45cg

-t
r:

0

o_
C

2
-
s

i
!
T
a

1i1 4

gg

2

1 E

*g

3

ce6
69

6,].
if

g
g
E
g
i
E
H
R
A
"
-

s
e
g
e
i
r
i
m
i
N
e
.

.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.
.

7
,
'
"
'
"
0
0
'
A
A
g
g
r
'
q
7
U

2
A
A
P
I
A
R
g
g
P
I
A
0
,
9
,
9
,
9

i

4

U
 

z
 

—
 

z
 

o
 

—
 

0
 

o L
  
0
 

o 

E 

-
 

L
i 

U
 

I- 
k

'' 
'I 

V
 

!_
-
 

- 
t 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
n Q

 C
. 

-
1 

C
 

- 
ii!

 

.n
'o

o
  

L
 

11
111 

H
I
ll 

H
 

11
1

1
:1

 

- 
II 

h
u

m 
liii 

l
i
i
i
'' 

11
1
1
1
1
1
 

p
 

1
1

1
1

1
! 

p
 

1
1

1
1

1
 

h
u

lL 

I 
II 

II 
I

I 
I 

I 
-0

 - 
i

ii 
1
1
1
1
1
1
 

- 
I
ll 

I
I
I
1
H

1
 

I
I
I
 

t
 

0
 

0
 

I) 
I-. 
C

a 

2 "3 
t 0
 

t
 0 C. 

I)  
'-

 

S
 

I C
 

a S
 i 

t
 a 

a 

a 
:a 

S 
V

•  I • I 
H

 
U

 

c
o

c
 

S 

C
 

t
N

-
'
O

\
4

'
 

135



eo

-"

111111
"'II

-t.

co.

I

I

'

- I
'=

;
I

R
-t-

(4,5;
g

1

00

C
E
_
f
,

,
8
n

g
al

nosignE
L

-8,2<
,

fel

U 
S.. 

i
 

C) 

C
t 

Z
.2

 
-  —

 .-
 

0
0
 

o 
-a 

2
t 

- I I a C
 

C
 

I 

!
H

I 
IIII 

5 
I 

I 
I

II 
II 

1
1

1
1

1
 

I 
P

III 
I 

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
 

11111 

I 
I 

I 
P 

I 
I 

3 
I 

:: 
I 

I 
f
l 

JHuIii 
lit 

Inlilil , 
: 

I 
3 

u
u
u
..3

c
 

n
c
 

I 
I 

I 

C
 

2 S 00 

S
 f 

136



I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

I
I

m
m

m
i

6
o

g
A

I
g

g !
glniggias
angaiteiha-
.6'666M

M
-ov-ov-o-o,o-o
"-n:tod
<

<
<

¢¢¢¢¢

6 4
I21i'ei

I
'AV

a
P

-re
e'Z

.,

CE
.

E
.tw

ffim
 .

1.
2

N
N

ng -
.,E

,E
,,E

,Feee g
N

...... ow
 . _

I
s

-5-5-5,9,9-st-ollt
4
"
,
8
.
2
0
0
2
8
V
t
g
 
2

tn120.00m
000

W
rii§§§§M

i
Iltg4444444R

llatt0111,
i
l
l
A
A
1
1
1
1
2
1
1

i
l

41.)

C
r)

U
 z - 

4
) 

z o - 
- - 

c
c
 

o  
-
 

• — -I 

cS 
U

 

0
. 

0) 
'0

 

-c
 

0
 

N
 C

 

C
' 

4 

I
 

0
 

0
 

;
 

0
 

.1 

* Hi pi 
!J 

.• 
- 

p
 
0

0
 
a
 

- 
<

U
 
-
 
Z

z
 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

ii 
I 

ii 
I 

I 

I 
g 

¶ , 
C

 

S 

S 
. 

a 

hunu g 
( 

flh
IlIiIIl 

L
L

L
1
i i 

i 
4
 

"
 
7
 

137



-LE-

yodal scimmne mapuadapm 2upCuudulooae aip aas

0(nuo Imun919L99,1P39 um9Foreaml)01
:ssep uoqsod IN

011,0 lag1auPs^11,830 EmoplEaxl) 6
:sop uowod N

(kuua Fulnolaupsn[pejo umoplealq) 8
:snip uopsod 1.2N

((nuDimunoNuPsniP39 umOIME04 L
:ssep uop!sod lam

(Ailua (mun9F8L4150.1PR,10 umolguai9) 9
..ssero wqmd Pm

(kaua NamoiltisnfPelo umoPfeaml) 5
:ssep uowsod

(Aqua IMunor2WIWn1PEPW1'91')j99.90 9
:smompsocIPN

(4qua Rumor 5uPs7iPE.19 um9P1eaJO3
3moucqsoduN

(,(1111DIEum0r195"1P8.10 umopleagl) Z
mwod pN

(koNDImullorsuRWPg.19 ilmoplua4 1
:ssuptiowsodIDN

1!Pa.0151313
gualmsnlpe pop ad joycl tpea ruoaa, oj palooq (pAll alanauR illawams Ispuutqlsaplua pound' alp jo uAtoprysaJq pannap e apptom

(Xl!mamun alms mtuomeD am m umsnpm .ioj)
ETOZ `0£ Ounf

umiumnum law
'DNII '1%1'31Iva/sir Loa ywnwa Al Od Iva ½

.) 

—
 

•' 
V

 
z o —

 

—
 

—
 

L
I) 

en 
—

 

©
 °

E
 

11
r 

c
c
 

o 

C
 

U
 

0
 

0
. 

cn 

S
 0
 

•0
 

a) 
V

  
N

-
- 

en
 

to
 

C
 

C
- 

E C
 

0
 

0
 

C
, 

0
 

-C
 

V
 

V
 

E 

3 a a
 

II 

I 

I 

I 

I  I
 

I  
I
 
I
 

I  
I
 

I 
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1
1

1 
I J J I .1 

-
h

 .h
 .h

 . 
n
 

.g 
g 

I S
 

- 
S

 
o
S
 

t
-
 

' 
t
f
l
 

e 
A

 
V 

tN
 

t
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

Z
 

7
 

7
_
 

138



VICENTI LLOYD STUTZMAN LLPCONSULTANTS AND CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Cal Poly Pomona
Foundation, Inc. (a California State University Auxiliary Organization) (the Foundation) as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2013 and have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination
of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified

-38-

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM

__ VICENTI • LLOYD • STUTZMAN LIP 
B U S I N ES S CONSULTA NTS AND CPAs 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WiTH GO VERNMENTA UDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, inc. 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the Cal Poly Pomona 
Foundation, Inc. (a California State University Auxiliary Organization) (the Foundation) as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2013 and have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination 
of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified 

-38- 

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740 
Tel 626.857.7300 I ax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VL.SLLP.COM 139



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

(42/vt,tc, otgoord_.#

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMA LLP
Glendora, CA
September 12, 2013

-39-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDi'!' 
OF FINANCTAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 

WITH GO VERNMENTA UD1TING STANDARDS 

Compliance and Other Mailers 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on thc 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not cxpress such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to he reported 
under Government Auditing Standardy. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the etlëctiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entitys internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZM  LLP 

(ilendora, CA 
September 12, 201 3 

-39-. 

140



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Single Audit Reports

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon)

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Single Audit Reports 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

(With Independent Auditor's Report Thereon) 

141



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Single Audit Reports

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

Table of Contents

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial

Page

Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 1-2

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program;
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by OMB Circular
A-133 3-5

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 6-8

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 9

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 10-12

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Single Audit Reports 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Table of Contents 

Page 

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Perfonned in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards ...... 1-2 

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; 
and Report on rntemal Control Over Compliance Required by 0MB Circular 
A-133 ....................................................................................................................... 3_S 

Schedule of Expenditures of FederaL Awards ............................................................. 6-8 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards......................................... 9 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ............................................................... 10-12 

142



VICENTI LLOYD STUTZMAN LLPVIBUSINESS CONSULTANTS AND CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
3801 W. Temple Avenue
Pomona, CA 91768

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. (a
California State University Auxiliary Organization) (the Foundation) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2013 and have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination
of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

-1-

2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM

VICE NTI. LLOYD • STUTZMAN 
B USINESS CONSULTANTS AND CPAs 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE ANI) OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITh GO VERNMENTA UDJTING STANDARDS 

Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
3801 W. 'lemple Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91768 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, inc. (a 
California State University Auxiliary Organization) (the Foundation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2013 and have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Foundation's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination 
of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

-'I - 

2210 F. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740 
Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VISILP.COM I Weh WWW.VISIJJ'.COM 143



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ofio
VICENTI, LLOYD & STUTZMA LLP
Glendora, California
September 12, 2013

-2-

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON 
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER 
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GO VKR]YMENTAUDITING STAJVDAKDS 

Compliance and Other Mafters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Foundation's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we perfomed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing. and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

nwbtf 

V[CFNTT. LLOYD & STLJTZM  LLP 

Glendora, California 
September 12,2013 

-2- 

144



_..----__-- VICENT1 LLOYD STUTZMAN LLPCONSULTANTS AND CPAs

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL

AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
3801 W. Temple Avenue
Pomona, CA 91768

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.'s (a California State University Auxiliary
Organization) (the Foundation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Foundation's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2013. The Foundation's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Foundation's major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Foundation's
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's
compliance.

-3-
2210 E. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740

Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM

__ VICENTI. LLOYD. STUTZMAN 
B USINESS CONSULTA NTS AND CPAs 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AN!) REPOR'I' 
ON THE SCHEDUIIE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 

AWARDS REQUIRED BY 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 

Board of Directors 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
3801 W. Temple Avenue 
Pomona, CA 91768 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.'s (a California State University Auxiliary 
Organization) (the Foundation) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (0MB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on each of the Foundation's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 
2013. The Foundation's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section 
of the accompanying schedule of fIndings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Resp sibi1ity 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Foundation's major federal 
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our 
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and 0MB Circular A- 133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and 0MB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Foundation's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in 
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for 
each major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Foundation's 
compliance. 

-3- 
2210 F. Route 66, Suite 100, Glendora, CA 91740 

Tel 626.857.7300 I Fax 626.857.7302 I E-Mail INFO@VLSLLP.COM I Web WWW.VLSLLP.COM 145



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL

AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR 4.133

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered the Foundation's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance, for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable
possibility, that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-4-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT 
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 

AWARDS REQUIRED BY 0MB CIRCULAR A-133 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Foundation complied, in all material respects, with the types of con1plianee 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal 
programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

Report on tntemal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Foundation is responsible for establishing and maintaining etThctive internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing 
our audit of compliance, we considered the Foundation's internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material etTeet on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance, for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with 0MB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
eliectiveness of the Foundation's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance such that there is a reasonable 
possibility, that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material wcakncsses may exist that have not been identified. 

-4- 

146



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL

AWARDS REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB
Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and
have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

\AtnutAL 11tycl:1- moc__e
VICENT1, LLOYD & STUTZMAN iT
Glendora, California
September 12, 2013

-5-

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE 
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT 

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT 
ON TIlE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL 

AWARDS REQUIRED BY 0MB CTRCIJLAR A-133 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 0MB 
Circular A-1 33. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Exnenditures of Federal Awards Required by 0MB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the Foundation, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and 
have issued our report thereon dated September 12, 2013, which contained an unmodified opinion on those 
financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial 
statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federaL awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by 0MB Circular A-[33 and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of nianagenient and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applicd in the audit of the financial statements 
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and othcr additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. n our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is 
fairly stated in alL material respects in relation to the financial statcinents as a whole. 

t1c mtc, I) * 
VICENIl, LLOYD & STTJTZMAN ii. 
Cilendora. California 
September 12, 2013 

-5- 

147



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal grantor/program title

Federal

CFDA

number Pass-through grantor Pass-thru #

Total

Federal

expenditures

US Department of Education.

TRIO Cluster.

ARCHES-Student Support Services 84 042A $ 287,923

College Reading Skills - Student Support Services 84 042A 385,761

TRIO Talent Search Program - Chino Valley Unified 84 044A 244,521

Upward Bound - North 84 047A 346,447

Upward Bound - South 84 047A 253,297

Upward Bound - Chino Valley Unified 84 047A 111,222

Upward Bound Math & Science Competition - North 84 047M 228,766

Upward Bound Math & Science Competition - South 84 047M 243,378

McNair Scholars Program 84 2I7A 231,544

Total TRIO Cluster $ 2,332,859

Other Programs

San Gabriel Valley Mathematics 84.367 University of California, Office of the President CN120273 52,086

San Gabriel Valley Mathematics 84.367 University of California, Office of the President CNI10113 10,319

Great Leaders for Great Schools 84.363A 289,682

Applied Mathematics 84.011 Bakersfield City Elementary School District 11-14326-6332-00 37,897

CCAMPIS 84.3354 205,983

Pasadena City College - Cal Poly Pomona STEM Pathways 84.03IC Pasadena City College P031C 1100 56 332,614

CMP Supporting Readers to Increase Retention 84.367 Regents of the University of California ITQ-03-360 35,739

Total Department of Education 964,320

National Science Foundation.

Increasing the Number and Quality of High School Physics Teachers 47 049 The Amedcan Physical Society PHY0808790 17,886

Bringing NSF MARGINS/GeoPRISMS Continental Margins Research

into Undergraduate Curriculum 47 076 8,308

College of Science Scholars Program 47.076 113,367

The Path to Leadership: Collaborative Institutional Change 47 076 119,093

CSULSAMP Student Scholar Project 47.076 University Enterprises, Inc. RRD -0802628 66,924

Scholarship Programs for Math, Biology, and Computer Science Majors 47 076 39,078

Logistics Techniciany Goods to Go 47 076 Riverside Community College District DUE-0802358 1,691

NSF Noyce Master Teacher Fellows Program 47 076 253,896

ARRA. Robert Noyce Teacher Scholarship Program 47 082 161,659

Three Strategies to Improve STEM Graduation Rates 47.076 115,575

MESA NSF-S STEM Scholarship Grant 47 076 University of California, Office of the President DUE-0631188 29,708

Regional Information Systems Security Center 47 076 Mt San Antonio College DUE-1104278 101,848

Total National Science Foundadon $ 1,029,033

Research and Development Cluster:

Department of Health and Human Services:

Gerthal Herpes Vaccine Discovery 93.855 Molecular Express, Inc 2R44AI066621-03 26,682

Targeted Dendritic Cell Activation 93.855 Molecular Express, Inc 1R43A10948910 IA1 13,349

Molecular Physiology of y-Aminobutyric Acid Transporters 93.859 239,924

DNA Microarray Analysis of Clostridium Bolulinum 93.859 65,356

RISE Program 93.859 447,311

Effects of Cannabinoids and the Peripheral Cannabinoid Receptor 93.859 81,670

Effects of Threatening Environments on Women's Success in Biomedical Majors 93.859 363,973

Control of Cell Differentiation: Inhibition of Sperm Activation 93.859 63,326

Understanding Plasma Assisted Birdilm Inactivation 93 859 49,068

Regulation of a Novel Xenopus Polo-Like Kinase 1 Substrate 93 859 65,430

Adipogenic Toxicity Study of Obesogenic Drugs 93.859 102,413

Signaling Cascade in Skeletal Muscle 93.859 143,303

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and
Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-I 33.

-6-

CAL rOLY POMONA FOUNDATION. INC. 

Schedule of Eqie.'dilurs af Federni Awards 

Year Elided June30, 2013 

Feilerni lotal 

(FDA Federal 

Fctral ai torfprsranl itie nu be r P.55. thrauaii gi a ntor Psasthni # expeud ia rn 

U.S DaprinmuI ofEdLicacam 

TmO Cluster. 

AflCHES-Srndent Suppal Services 

CnI lege Rending Skills - Student Suppml .Sen1 s 

[RIO 14 CII L Seat alt Plow LIII - Cli' no Valley Urul' Cli 

Upward nouod - Honk 

Upward Protrtl - oi,ih 

Upward UmmU - Ch'no Valley Unilied 

Upward Dornnd MaTh & Science Compelitian - North 

Upward found 1aTh & Sciertea Compeiitrnn - South 

MoHair Schnlurs Program 

lolal 11<10 Clunl 

Iltr Ptogrsrn, 

Sn ii Gabriel Vpj Icy %I.ehcm.tioa 

San Oshnel Va]le Mathmuatica 

Oreat Lesdera far Gnat Schca] 

Applied Matheenafics 

(tAMPIS 

PasadtLd Ctty Cu]]ee - al PiAy FcItutId STEM PaLtIsuiva 

CMP Suçporthsg ataderi to Inctease Rttcaliont 

Tonal flcpanmem of FdtIcstie, 

National Sc i ejice Found attoti 

Thcreenp the Nun,ber and Quality ofllig], Srh Phics TeaC]len 

Enitiginag NSF MAkGINS/C.eoPRISMR Continental Margins ecearch 

nia Ciii], tgtuduule C Lu It Lu] VOl 

College of Sc I ttiCt Scholars Progtan, 

mc Perk to' cadetship' CoIl*o,nivc Instititnionel Chnnc 

CSllLgArw Student ScholarPntject 

Solid arshi p Pro2ralnu [Or Math. H jol oy. and Catup3Aa Scj ence Maj ore 

LO9IEiO Tech alt ia  Gocdt in Go 

NSF Noyce Master Teacher Fellowa Pnigmni 

ARRA Rohc, I N',yIx Teacl,w Sottialat slip Fl cw ll 

Three Sasiepies to lmpron STEM Gra&aalioti Rain 

MFSA NSP-S .STri Schol irnhip Or.n. 

Regtanal lnKanuaon Sy stems Seinty C enter 

lola] National Science huidatcsi 

Reaaarth and Development Cl tinter 

tkpatl.iIenI of Heal UI 3lt U HttnIaI Sericc. 

Geelial Herpes Vaccine Cthcoverv 

Targeted Dendritic Cell ActLstion 

I a' Filysiology ofy -.st, II ob ]yI IC A d TtaaIa90 Ian 

DNA Ihgcrctrn.v MiaMi, ofclostridium Bottalinum 

RISE Progreni 

Effeits of Thrc,t. ra nag H n L rounienia oii Wonie&s Success tnt B oniedica] Majora 

Cci mel oP Coil Diffcren nisñei' Inhibi no., of gpo tn,a Atni,4iion 

Uudast4aa,dln P]daaua AnsIS Biulilni l,tu'ivuijun 

It u]atton ore Noel Xeuopu a Polo-Like Kj nec I Sot airace 

Mipocnic Toldeity Srndy of( ogcnic flange 

Signaling Cancade in Skeletal Muncie 

84 042A 27,923 

84042/h 3e5.75] 

S4.OIIA 114 '2] 

84.01 IA 315, 'H 7 

8404fl 253, 29 7 

SI 0lA 11,222 

54.047M 2*766 

64 .0471s1 243,376 

84 2l 144 

S 2332559 

54 267 Unictsiey of Ce I kin in OIP cc of nba Prcsd cisc CW110172 

I 357 Uniernity ofCalifnnitu. Office cfthe Prentdenii CN]10113 l03i9 

M,353A 2S9,42 

54 0]' SakeraReld City Lleinitaiwy School District Il-i 4316.332.00 37.!97 

84 3 5 205.953 

!4,03 IC Fusadetnu CIty Cd]te POJIC]I0Q56 fl25i4 

51 30,7 ReeuIe ofthe Univanatty otCalLiornIa JIQ-03-l&5 35.739 

1 964320 

43 049 The Anie,i can Physic ii Sccieiy Pt tY0s0g79Q I 

47 075 8,105 

17.075 113,367 

47076 li9.093 

17 075 I niersiiy Euaierpnise Inc I D-0502625 65924 

43 070 39075 

4? 07b Riverside Coinivaity College District DUt-C'S'32358 1.591 

4 076 

47 062 161659 

13.076 II5,T$ 

47 076 Uni Iicr,iny of Ce I fern in OIi & the Pie, i dent Dl IP_OM II 58 29,708 

47075 Mt San Anrm6o £iige DUE- 104275 DI .64! 

i,029.033 

93 655 M*cular Dxpi,, I:tc 21t44A30&662 I-el 20.052 

93 855 MSeeItlur F.xi.s Ir.c I R43 6109iSO ill I 13,349 

93 639 139,924 

93 859 05,350, 

07 839 447,3 i 

93 659 

93 659 363.973 

97 639 63.126 

93 659 40, cIa 8 

93 559 55,130 

93 659 102,413 

93 859 141,303 

Sec neconipnnying notes to Schedule olfxpenditiares of Federsi Awards end Xeport on Compliance tbr Each Major Fcdcrsl Program; Repoei on, Internal Control Over Comphanice; and 
Reporton Schedule ofExpenditures offederal A,ards Reqaired by 0MB Circular A-153 

-6- 

148



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal grantor/program title

Federal

CFDA

number Passahrough grantor Pass-thru

Total

Federal

expenditures

US Department of Energy

High Temperature Materials and Coatings for Ultrasupercritical Boilers 81.049 University of North Dakcea DE-EG02-06ER46292 10,106

Ultra-Low Energy Use Appliance Desrgn 81.000 Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory DE-ACO2-05CHI 2231 1,964

U.S. Department of Defense

Remote Sensing Teclmology for Plant Species 12.000 9,560

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Capturing CO2 with MO Aerogels 66.516 14805

US Department of Interior:

Improving the Use of Depth Phases of Earthquakes 15807 United States Geological Service GI 1AP20194 5,146

Monitoring the Dynamics of Rocky Populations in So. Cal 15 423 CSU Fullerton Auxiliary Services, Corp M1OAC20000 23,648

Documentation of Forty Acres in Delano California 15 000 20,927

National Science Foundation:

Robotic Locomotor Training and Muscle Atrophy in the Rat Model 47 041 CSU San Marcos Foundation CBET-0755702 45,941

NEESR-CR: NEESsoft Seismic Risk Reduction for Soft Story 47 041 University of Alabama CMMI-1041631 3,169

Woodframe Buildings

NEESR-CR: NEESsoft Seismic Risk Reduction for Soft Story 47 041 Boar d of Governors of the Colorado State University CMMI-1314957 494

Wcedframe Buildings System

SRN: Routes to Sustainability for Natural Gas Development 47.071 Regents of the University of Colorado CBET-1240584 26,963

Robust Nonlinear Adaptive Control of Unnormed Aerial Vehicles 47 041 68,834

Superhard Boride Coatings 47.049 Regents of the University of Califomia, Los Angeles DMR-0805357 3,775

Comparative Genomics of Phenotypic Variation 47.074 The Trustees of the Indiana University RIB-4824334-CPPE 108,584

Partnership with University of Colorado In Liquid Crystalline Photovoltaics 47.049 Regents of the University of Colorado DMR-0820579 378

Scholar's Award: -Transnational Science During the Cold War and Beyond 47.075 324 09

ARRA: The California-Arizona Minority Partnership for Astronomy Research 47.082 415923

Collaborative Research: REU Seismogenesis of Middle America 47.050 7974

ADVANCE-IT Catalyst Project 47.076 CSU Fullerton Auxiliary Services, Corp. HRD-1209200 14,999

ARRA: NEESR-CR: Performanced-Based Design For Seismic Hazard 47.082 Lehigh University CMMI-0936610 8,840

Mitigation

U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Development, Implementation and Evaluation of a Spanish Dietetic 10 223 18,093

Curriculum

Combination Liposomal and DNA Vaccine Technologies 10.200 CSU Fresno Foundation 2009-38908-20108 39,920

10.309 University of California, Davis 2010-51181-21631 197,406Next Generation Lenuce Breeding Genes to Growers

Assessing the Significance of Epigenetic Control in Lettuce 10.200 CSU Fresno Foundation 2010-38908-20998 53,117

Sowing the Seeds for the Next Generation of Plant Breeders 10.223 68,262

National Aeronautics and Space Administration:

Contributions to the ARIA-EQ System Development 43.000 California Institution of Tecluology NAS7-1407 50,592

Engineered Coatings for Sublimation Suppression 43.000 Glenn Research Center NNCI2VA091I 28,806

Environmental Gas Monitoring Using Unmanned Aerial Vehicles 43.001 let Propulsion Laboratory NAS7-03001 4,511

Novel Spacecraft Thermal Design Concepts 43.001 let Propulsion Laboratory NAS7-03001 2,010

Radiation-Tolerant Implementation of Delta Sigma Concerter 43.001 let Propulsion Laboratory NAS7-03001 11,330

Anitude Control Research for Small Satellites 43.001 let Propulsion Laboratory NAS7-03001 497

Vertical Habitability Layout Studies 43.003 National Space Grant Foundation NNXIOA.176A 29,427

U.S. Department of Transportation

Empirical Bayes-Estimated OTS Collision Rankings for Cities 20.610 State of Califomia - Office of Traffic Safety 2700-101-0890 2,527

Total Research and Development Cluster $ 2,996,042

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-I33.

-7-

CAL FOLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Anrds 

Year Ended June 30,2013 

Federal 

CFD4 

in ,t,ber Fl ac-IrprouFi, 

Tulal 

Federal 

F, es-Il, ro I capritdimj rca 

U S O ueiitofEiiergy 

H' h Tempenalure Materiab n Coal I 095 1° 1 U Itiasupererit,cal Soi 'era 

tm*Ts Faa(r?y Usc ApliencC Dsign 

U.S. Dcpartnant iLfem.e 

Remote Sensi nfl Tcd,nole2y for PIset SpCo, Ca 

U.S Uni tenth] totedion Aency 

r,n Icing ro 2 àh  fl Anepd. 

U.S Derrt7eint of Inter, on: 

imptori n rho I ]ne si flop.4. P bane; of Fsrb q, to hen 

*nito, nc l  Dy i of Rock y  Poula Lpoee ii So. Ca I 

Documem at ion of Pony Acres in Delano Ca]i fon,i, 

Pt,oita I S :e.ice •ewsdalio,i 

Robe, i C Lor,motnr Training and Muscle Airo pIty It 'I.e Ral Model 

NF.PSR-CR NEEssofi Se,nn,je Pith Reductins rlr Ron Sn)' 

hvoodfra,ne So, Id, ,ts 

? ESR-CL NEESsoft SeisSe Fisk Reduction f)r Sc* Ss,ry 

Wmdframe uilding, 

SaN: Routes to Sos iii nab, ljP for Natural ties Uevelopntoni 

Robset Non linear Ada ptis,e Coned of Unmarmed Aerial eli trIes 

Superhard floride Coatings 

Couwerative Cisimmics of theaclypic Varjal ton 

Partnership w,tl, Un vera, ly of Cole redo tn I- NO I I Crystal Li tie N.otovolts ice 

Schela?a Award -Tisnanati Dna I Scienee During 'he Cull War and Beyond 

AJKA. The Cal I Ioii,ia-A rizc.rn M morily Partneis hip (or Astronomy Reset rch 

CS laIxn.e Post rd.  PU Sci,mce cne a of Mid dl A 'ncr, is 

ADVANCE-IT Cata]yst Project 

MaCA: NCESR-Clt Fetfuruanced-Sased Ues,n Eor Sa,smjc Heza.rd 

Mirigarion 

U S. Depeithient of AVictalture 

Ikesi npmant lmplemniiasion and Evolve don of a .5 partish Dieletic 

Cw I '05 Lu:,' 

Combiostien Li potoms] and DNA 'ace i tie technoIie, 

Net Gar.erairnn Leusce Breeding Geces to Growers 

Asses sing the S I  I flcance of Ep I a,tei tc Control in Lettuce 

Son 1ig the S eedt for the Next General ron nil' lani Oreeducs 

Natiousl Anro.rn,atics and S psoc Adauin stratton: 

Co's caihiin, on ion he AR' A- FQ S ysmea Tlovetic.atatr 

Ln,,,et,ed Ctr4tuws lo' SutA,,,,aI,uit Su aesa'u,, 

Envirc.iaitei.ta I Gas Motitering Ut,n9 U tints timed Aerial Vehicles 

Novel Spoceorañ Thermal Design Concepts 

RAd ia],o,t - lolers 'I] ImpI enienlat.on of Delta Siwits Coasce,ta 

Altitude Cnnol Research foe Smell Serellite, 

Veitical Habtiabtljis [about Siod,es 

U S fltpn Isuon] of Tranti,onauesii 

Empaiosl Bay-EsiiniaIsd OTS CcaLI,5Itau Rankings fix Criies 

bail Retcnrch aM t)evelnpuiro. Clutter 

F1e349 Uninasaly Of Notl]I 051014 UE-b(ji2]J0R46292 I 4.108 

F] .0CC La,ncnce Berkeles, Na' i otis] Laboralery DE-ACO2 -05C1 112231 I 964 

I 2.000 9,560 

11,105 

IS RI]? U" tttd Srares G,ologrcsl S nice fl I A P20.94 5,1 It 

I 5.423 C&U Edlerion AusrIray Servicea. Cup Ml 9AC3CWJ 23MB 

15.000 2OO 

47.041 CSU San Marcos Fáandslioit CUCT-OlS 5702 45,94] 

4704 tini,,craiiy of Alabama Ct.li- 1041611 3,109 

47(111 Doand cfGo'ttnio ofthe Colorado State Utira crs,ty Cle2dt-13 14951 494 

Sysrc iii 

47.071 Rcei,L, uL II.. U itt vi, tiny oF Colw ncJu -I 24054 2j5 M 

47 041 68.S34 

47040 Rmn of ho tan ivo rn i 
iy 

 of r.li fnruia I .on Angeles Dflt -0505317 3.Tb 

47.074 Ito 1t 'a lees of il,e iradkula Ui.uwstty ILS-4524334-CFPF I 03,554 

47.049 Reemts of the Uni .tesit. 0f Colorado DN-08205 29 37s 

47015 32.109 

47.0F2 415.923 

4'.OSC 7.974 

47.076 CSuFuterronAuxiltary Seea,c.a. Corp MPG 1209300 14.999 

47.052 Lehigh Ui', sees, I> CIvtIdi.139304 10 5.540 

II) 223 

0.200 CSU Irene Fouadal,cn 2C09.)S S-20IlTh 3920 

0300 llniv siay ef Cnlifavnis Dan'; 2010-31]a]-116,l l92,45 

0.200 LSU fieai'v Fuuavjaliiai 20 10-3 8-20998 

1 a223 63.266 

41 ] 1 Cal 'fort,, Iris' ,tution of Ted.j.ologv NAS7- 1401 50,592 

43.000 Glenn Research Ceuler NNCI2VAOW 

43(e) I hI Psopu Ision Laboratory NA)-0309l '1, 511 

41 DCI ici Pao,i,, ' ties, I iboniory NASI-DlOOi 2.010 

43.00] Jet Va upusivi, Labs,, a toil NA2-O3O0l 

43.001 Jet Nopuision Laboratory NAS 7.03 tO] 197 

43.003 hlatinnal Srnre C,rnni yrstirndrion NNXI0AI7A 29,427 

30.610 Stare ICcl,fcrnia Dmce ofTra[lic Safety 2700-]0l-OSPD 2,527 

S 2,006,042 

See accornpatIying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal A'srds and Report oil Compliance for Each Major Feder1 Program; Report on Internal Control Onci Cn,,n0lia,,c', ala] 
REporl oil SoFilole oIF.xpwuuilt'ies c,Flelenil Av,,'rels Rse]L,roeI by OlvIFI Cirur',ltir A-131. 

-7- 

149



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2013

Federal

CFDA

Federal grantor/program title number Pan-through grantor Pass-thru #

Total

Federal

expenditures

U S. Department oflustice:

Stop Violence Project 16.710 5 875

Violence Prevention Program 16 525 72,007

72,882

Department of Health and Human Services

State Preschool Program 2012/13 (CSPP) 93.575 CA Department of Education CSPP-2150 76,876

General Child Care and Development Program (CCTR) 93.575 CA Department of Education CCTR-2075 58,922

$ B5,798

11 S. Department of Defense

Directed Support of the Collegiate Cyber Defense Competition 12.300 University of Texas, San Antonio FA8750-12-2-0100 13,723

U.S. Department of Agriculture:

Business Marketing Planning for New Agricultural Products 10.233 20,007

National Register Evaluation and Recreation Resident Tract 10.000 10,123

Summer Food--Upward Bound Programs 10.559 CA Deparunent of Education 19-7719-0V 24,193

Focus on the Future: 2Ist Century Multicultural Workforce 10.223 100,151

154,474

Department of Labor

ARRA: California Biotechnology Clinical Laboratory Consortium Project 17.275 San Jose State University Research Foundation GL-20049-10-60-4-6 49,319

National Aeronautics and Space Administration

let Propulsion Laboratory Student Intern 43.001 Jet Propulsion Laboratory NAS7-03001 12,017

National Endowment of the Humanities

Library Special Collections Preservation Enhancements 45.149 287

Total Federal Expenditures 7,760,754

Passed Through to Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in this schedule, the Foundation provided federal awards to the subrecipients as follows:

National Science Foundation

ARRA: The California-Arizona Minority Partnership for Astronomy Research 47.082 89,818

See accompanying notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance; and

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-I33.

-8-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Schedule ofExpenditures orFederal Awards 

Year Ended June 30. 2013 

Ftdsral Total 

CELIA Federal 

auniber ral,lhroaRh grantor rns-Thru # eapemlituree 

to7IlJ S 

td.52 5 72007 

S 72.S81 

J.75 CA Department ofEducaon CSPP-2 I SI) S 7S27a 

3.575 CA Deptrnent ofEducdois CCT}t.1075 55P22 

$ I7c7o 

Prderal 

U S Dupathuleur or Justice. 

Slop Violence I5 r ect 

Vi&enct Prevention Pronsni 

Depanuiieii L A' He a] lb mi! Huiiisii ha 

State Preechuol Inoirarn 2012/13 (CSFP) 

General Child Ce end Devdcpoient Prepsin (CCT) 

U.S Uepsrtiiieii L of Delco at 

Dir,oted Supped ofthe Coliepiate Cyber L'efcase Competition 13.300 Uiakersit (Tc,ca, San k,tonlo 

US Department IAgnculture 

Susires Marka ii Piano' n for New Agncultvral rrod acts 0233 

atioss] RØster n ation aid ltecreedoo Resident Tract 10.000 

SLimmer Peel--Upward actind ptorA,,e IC iSO CA r)cpvnmcni oPFd''oñnn 

Focus an the Furure 2 Isa Century MvIuculmr Warthjrce 10.223 

Departntnt of Laber 

ARBA Cnliffasin Biencd,i,o[oy Clinical Labcrsorv Ccrnoniun, Preicci 17175 Sa 'eec Siaic 1isi,cisiiy  Rcicertb Fou..dsiien 

NaLiejji at Ac' otiaqi Li,a and Spdcc Ad 'iii cit 1 rat i oil 

lee Propulsion Laberatery Student Initiji 43.001 Jet PrcvaI anon L aheranocy 

National Endowment of rha Humanimies 

It lna,y Spaci al Cell cdi Otis FL c. aU oil Lii Itaitcenieni S 45.149 

Total Feder.! Epcndinirci 

pissed Threwli to Subredrienta 

Of nbc fed nnl ow pond i luros pne nn.iral ii, 'hi sob od' 'I a ha Fom,ndtmri can p  (wi dc fade el erec t to ih. ,:b reci pi cnn nq fbI lnvn' 

Nahoinal Science Fcuodcuuin 

AnitA I ho California-Arizona Minority Partnership for A3nroncmy iC earch 47.0a2 

FAS7IO-I 2-2-0100 I 3.713 

S 20,O7 

10,123 
'.9-771 -0V  24,193 

100,151 

i4474 

00-2(2040- tO-50-A 40 219 

NAS1-t000l S 11,017 

2b7 

S 7 I2,7s4 

S SO,!'! 

See accompanying notes to SchSmile ofExpendirures ofFederat A'.,rthanj Repci on Compliance fcc Each Major Federal Program; Repel on Intertial Control O'ierComplianoe; and 
Repori &ini ScF,txlc,Ie of Expentliliires of Eeclriil \svurth Re1.tirerI E OM 14 Cmrn,i Inir A-i1 

-8- 

150



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

Note 2: Basis of Accounting

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the
modified accrual basis of accounting.

Note 3: Relationship to Federal Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
agree, in all material respects, with amounts reported in the related financial reports filed
by the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. The following presents a reconciliation of grant
expenditures to those reported in the financial statements:

Total expenditures per the schedule of expenditures of federal awards $7,760,754
Add expenditures of nonfederal awards 4,413,376

Total expenditure of federal and nonfederal awards per the
financial statements $12174_13D

-9-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Note 1: Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of 0MB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Pr ofit Organizations. 

Note 2: Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Note 3: Relationship to Federal Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
agree, in all material respects, with amounts reported in the related financial reports tiled 
by the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation. Inc. The following presents a reconciliation of grant 
expenditures to those reported in the financial statements: 

Total expenditures per the schedule of expenditures of federal awards $7,760,754 
Add expenditures of nonfèderal awards 4,413,376 

Total expenditure of federal and nonfederal awards per the 
financial statements $12j14,13il 

-9- 

151



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section I : Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued September 12, 2013: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified? No
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of (Circular A-133)? No

Identification of major programs:

Research and Development Cluster including ARRA Funds, CFDA # Various
ARRA: Robert Noyce Teacher Scholarship Program, CFDA #47.082

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

-1 0-

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial &atemenis 

Type of auditor's report issued September 12, 2013: Unqua1fled 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weaknesses identified? No 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to he material weaknesses? No 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No 

Federal A wards 

Internal control over major programs: 
Material weaknesses identified? iVb 
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? No 

Type of auditor's report issued on compiiance for major programs: Unqua1fied 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance 
with section 510(a) of (Circular A-133)? 

Identification of major programs: 

Research and Development Cluster including AItRA Funds, CFDA # Various 
ARRA: Robert Noyce Teacher Scholarship Program, CFDA #47.082 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish hetween type A and type A programs: $300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

10- 

152



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section II: Financial Statement Findings

None noted.

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section II; Financial Statement Findings 

None noted. 

-11- 

153



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Section III-Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None noted.

-12-

CAL POLl' POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Section Ill—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None noted. 

-12- 

154



Memorandum

Date: September 26, 2013

To: Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

From: G. Paul Storey
Executive Director

Subject: ENDOWMENT EARNINGS DISTRIBUTION 2013-14

Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

On an annual basis, the performance of the endowment portfolio and the values of the
undistributed earnings are reviewed to determine if there are funds available for an
endowment distribution per the Administration of Program, Scholarship and Endowment
Funds Policy # 133, please see attached for further details. Please keep in mind, some
endowments may have terms and conditions that take precedence over this policy and
accordingly the following recommendation will include such terms and conditions.

Upon review of the performance of the endowment portfolio and the values of the
undistributed earnings, Foundation management is proposing an endowment distribution of
$3,387,912 or 4.89% comprised of the lessor of 5% of the endowment value (corpus plus
undistributed earnings) or the undistributed earnings value as of June 30, 2013 subject to any
endowment terms and conditions that would take precedence as follows:

Propose a distribution of $707,412 to 227 scholarship endowment operating
accounts.

Propose a distribution of $1,345,709 to 91 program endowment operating
accounts.

Propose a distribution of $1,334,791 from the Kellogg Foundation Legacy
endowment per the terms and conditions of the grant.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approves an endowment
distribution proposal by Foundation management of $3,387,912 to 227 scholarship
endowment operating accounts, 91 program endowment operating accounts and the Kellogg
Foundation Legacy endowment operating account.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013

By: eze-gcg_i
Rachel Dominguez, Secretdry 0
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

1g

Date:

To:

From:

Memorandum

September 26,2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

klfi rtA/
/d /-^/l)'{.<Yrz-

G. Paul Storey I
Executive Director

Subject: ENDOWMENTEARNINGSDISTRIBUTION2013'14

On an annual basis, the performance of the endowment portfolio and the values of the
undistributed earnings are reviewed to determine if there are funds available for an

endowment distribution per the Administration of Program, Scholarship and Endowment
Funds Policy # 133, please see attached for further details. Please keep in mind, some
endowments may have terms and conditions that take precedence over this policy and
accordingly the following recommendation will include such terms and conditions.

Upon review of the performance of the endowment portfolio and the values of the

undistributed earnings, Foundation management is proposing an endowment distribution of

$3,387,912 or 4.89o/o comprised of the lessor of 5o/o of the endowment value (corpus plus

undistributed earnings) or the undistributed earnings value as of June 30,2013 subject to any
endowment terms and conditions that would take precedence as follows:

o Propose a distribution of $707,412 to 227 scholarship endowment operating
accounts.

o Propose a distribution of $1,345,709 to 91 program endowment operating
accounts.

o Propose a distribution of $1 ,334,791 from the Kellogg Foundation Legacy
endowment per the terms and conditions of the grant.

Now therefore be it resolved that the Board of Directors approves an endowment
distribution proposal by Foundation management of $3,387,912 to 227 scholarship
endowment operating accounts, 91 program endowment operating accounts and the Kellogg
Foundation Legacy endowment operating account.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

Erhilhm
tounilatlon

Rachel Dominguez, Sec
By:



 -

 10,000,000

 20,000,000

 30,000,000

 40,000,000

 50,000,000

 60,000,000

 70,000,000

 80,000,000

Endowment Corpus and Total Value 

Corpus Total Value

156



 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

 3,500,000

 4,000,000

Endowment Distributions 

Distributions

3.28% 

0.63% 0.58% 

4.72% 
4.08% 

4.19% 

4.73% 

2.88% 

Proposed 
    4.89% 

3.42% 

4.83% 

157



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
 

 
Subject: Administration of Program, Scholarship    Policy No. 133 

and Endowment Funds      Old No. 1996-3  
            
Reference: 283-II-C, 301-II-D, 320-III-A, 333-III-B   Date:             10/01/97 
  350-III-B 
           Revision: 02/27/01,  
Replaces:     1973-4, 1992-1        02/17/05,  
            11/15/07 
            02/13/12 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To provide guidance for the administration of Program, Scholarship and Endowment Funds. 
The recovery of administrative costs represented by this policy include a Foundation “gift of support” 
equivalent to 25% of the Foundation’s estimated administrative cost for maintaining Foundation 
program, scholarship, endowment/endowment operating accounts. 
POLICY 
 
The yield, mark-to-market and fees assessed will be determined by the type of funds.  It is understood 
that donated funds may contain terms and conditions that take precedence over this policy.   
 
Foundation Program Funds - represent funds invested by the Foundation per the General Investment 
Policy # 131 in support of University activities. 
 
1. Yield will be allocated quarterly on the average daily balance of the respective account. 
 
2. The yield is the weighted average yield (coupon rate of the security plus or minus the 

amortization or accretion of any premium or discount) of the interest bearing securities and cash 
equivalents in the General Investment Portfolio less an annual investment administrative fee of 
0.50% basis points to provide support to the general fund of the Foundation. 

 
3. An administrative fee of 2.55% will be assessed on all expenditures processed, including 

transfer of funds, payroll and accounts payable disbursements to provide support to the general 
fund of the Foundation. The maximum administrative fee per transaction is $2,550.  
 

4. All donations will be assessed a fee of 5%.   
 
Scholarships Funds - represent funds invested by the Foundation per the General Investment Policy # 
131 that are restricted only for the distribution of scholarships.  
 
1. Yield will be allocated quarterly on the average daily balance of the respective account. 

 
2. The yield is the weighted average yield (coupon rate plus or minus the amortization or accretion 

of any premium or discount) of the interest bearing securities and cash equivalents in the 

158



Policy No. 133  
Subject: Administration of Program, Scholarship and Endowment Funds  
Page 2 
 

General Investment Portfolio less an annual investment administrative fee of 0.50% basis points 
to provide support to the general fund of the Foundation. 

 
3. An administrative fee of 0.0% will be assessed on all expenditures processed, including transfer 

of funds, payroll and accounts payable disbursements. 
 

4. All donations will be assessed a fee of 5%.   
 
Endowment Funds - represent funds invested per the Foundation Endowment Investment Policy 130. 
 
1. It is the Foundation’s goal to distribute annually a minimum net return of 5% of endowment 

value as established on June 30th.  Earnings for the fiscal year in excess of the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) for the Los Angeles area, as reported in July for the prior 12 months, and in excess 
of 5% endowment value, may also be distributed.  Endowment earnings shall generally be 
available for distribution from those endowments invested for no less than three (3) consecutive 
months.  Exceptions may be authorized per approval by the Executive Director or his/her 
designee and the Board of Directors.  Endowment earning distribution will occur in the first 
quarter of each fiscal year based upon the percentage of the endowment value and or an 
amount as approved by the Board. 
 

2. Endowment scholarship funds with little or no earnings are eligible for an interest free loan up to 
5% of the endowment value at June 30th upon approval by the Board. Loans are to be repaid 
within 3 years to the General Fund from future scholarship endowment earning distributions.   

 
3. The endowment funds will be assessed an annual administrative fee of seventy-five basis points 

(0.75%).  If the annual earnings are less than 0.75%, fees will first be recovered from prior 
undistributed earnings and if no available prior year earnings, then from corpus.   
 

4. All donations will be assessed a fee of 5%.   
 
Endowment Operating Funds - represent funds invested by the Foundation per the General Investment 
Policy 131. 
 
1. Yield will be paid quarterly on the average daily balance of the respective account. 
 
2. The yield is the weighted average yield (coupon rate of the security plus or minus the amortization 

or accretion of any premium or discount) of the interest bearing securities and cash equivalents in 
the General Investment Portfolio less an annual investment administrative fee of 0.50% basis points 
to provide support to the general fund of the Foundation. 

 
3. An administrative fee of 2.55% will be assessed on all expenditures processed, including transfer of 

funds, payroll and accounts payable disbursements to provide support the general fund of the 
Foundation. The maximum administrative fee per transaction is $2,550.  

 
4. All donations will be assessed a fee of 5%. 
 
 

159



Memorandum

Date: September 26, 2013

To: Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

From: G. Paul Story
Executive Director

Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

Subject 2013-2014 Budget Amendment Foundation Dining Services - Brewery
Laboratory

The Cal Poly Pomona Foundation's Dining Services is requesting a capital budget amount of
$400,000 for the development of a Brewery Laboratory at the Center for Training, Technology
and Incubation (CTTi) in the current Café/Bookstore space. The concept would provide Collins
College of Hospitality Management and College of Agriculture students with a hands on-learning
environment for brewing and brewpub operations. This concept would produce a revenue
stream for the Foundation and is consistent with the Dining Services Master Plan developed by
Envision Strategies in 2012.

Products produced would be sold at the Café adjacent to the proposed brewery location, as well
as the Collins's College, Farm Store, Kellogg West. Round Table Pizza and at catering events
that allow beer and wine service.

Several universities currently have brewery laboratories but this would be one of the first to offer
the opportunity for both brewing and brewpub operations. Craft Beer Brewpubs is one of the
fastest growing industries in the United States.

The expectation is that the Brewery Laboratory would be operational by the start of the Spring
Quarter 2014.

The following resolution is recommended for approval:

RESOLVED, the Board of Directors approves a capital budget request of $400,000 for the
development of a Brewery Laboratory at CTTi in the current Café/Bookstore space.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

By:
Rachel Dominguez, Secret6ry
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation

1Rn

-fz

-AMemorandum

Date:

To:

September 26,2013

Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.

BJ hU POMM

Foundation

From:

Subject. 2013-20'14 Budget Amendment Foundation Dining Services - Brewery
Laboratory

The Cal Poly Pomona Foundation's Dining Services is requesting a capital budget amount of
$400,000 for the development of a Brewery Laboratory at the Center for Training, Technology
and Incubation (CTT|) in the current Caf6/Bookstore space. The concept would provide Collins
College of Hospitality Management and College of Agriculture students with a hands on-learning
environment for brewing and brewpub operations. This concept would produce a revenue
stream for the Foundation and is consistent with the Dining Services Master Plan developed by
Envision Strategies in 2012.

Products produced would be sold at the Caf6 adjacent to the proposed brewery location, as well
as the Collins's College, Farm Store, Kellogg West, Round Table Pizza and at catering events
that allow beer and wine service.

Several universities currently have brewery laboratories but this would be one of the first to offer
the opportunity for both brewing and brewpub operations. Craft Beer Brewpubs is one of the
fastest growing industries in the United States.

The expectation is that the Brewery Laboratory would be operational by the start of the Spring
Quarter 2014.

The following resolution is recommended for approval:

RESOLVED, the Board of Directors approves a capital budget request of $400,000 for the
development of a Brewery Laboratory at CTTi in the current Caf6/Bookstore space.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 26th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2013.

Rachel Dominguez,
Board of Directors
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation



A
Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

Aaron P. Neilson 
Interim Director, Foundation Dining Services 
 
 
August 29, 2013 

G. Paul Storey 
Executive Director 
Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
Re: Brewery Laboratory at CTTI 
 

Dear Paul: 

Attached is a preliminary design of a brewery laboratory developed in concert with Owen 
Williams, owner of Ritual Brewing in Redlands, CA and faculty member at Collins College of 
Hospitality Management. This concept would provide a learning environment for our students, 
while providing additional academic and commercial revenue streams to the Foundation, making 
this concept consistent with the Dining Services Master Plan developed by Envision Strategies in 
2012.  

Products produced in this operation would be sold at the Café adjacent to the proposed brewery 
location, as well as Collin’s School, Farm Store, Kellogg West, and even Round Table Pizza. The 
menu at the existing Café’ at CTTI would be enhanced to create a Brewpub or Gastropub 
atmosphere, creating a destination in this historically problematic location. 

Overview of Brewery Lab: 

The main system would consist of a 3 barrel system capable of brewing 46.5 gallons of beer at a 
time. Additionally, a set of smaller systems with a 10 gallon capacity will allow small groups of 
students to experiment with a variety of brewing styles. Our students will be exposed to hands-on 
propagation of custom yeast strains, the nitrogenation and/or carbonation process, and the 
development unique hop and malt blends. The brewery would provide for both kegging and small-
scale bottling. 

We envision the College of Agriculture’s involvement in producing hops and grains for a 
“Polycentric” line of specialty brews. The Collins College could offer credit courses directly, and 
leverage other courses through the CEU. 

Sample Course Descriptions  

HOMEBREWING BASICS (Draft) 
COURSE DESCRIPTION: 
This is a four-week program for first-time or relatively new homebrewers.  Students will learn the 
basic brewing ingredients and how they work together to create various ales and lagers.  The 
course provides a brief history of brewing, its origins including the oldest recipe in the world, the 
brewing process, and the traditional beer styles of various countries.  Students will discuss 
various equipment options for establishing a basic extract home brewery in their kitchen.  The 
course concludes with a friendly, small batch, extract brewing tasting competition. 
  

 
3801 W. Temple Ave #55 
Pomona, California 91768 
 

161



 
ALL-GRAIN BREWING (Draft) 
COURSE DESCRIPTION: 
This is an advanced four-week program designed for homebrewers to take the step beyond brew-
your-own retail establishments, beer kits, and homebrewing with malt extracts.  The course will 
give brewers the opportunity to learn and practice all-grain brewing using a nano brewing system.  
All-grain brewing allows homebrewers to develop and brew more complex beer styles and beer 
recipes.  All-grain systems provide the brewer with more flexibility and control over the finished 
product.  This course takes the homebrewer through a critical and beneficial personal 
assessment prior to making the commitment and investment in an all-grain system for the home, 
which can move brewing from the stove-top to an advanced single-tier sculpture or gravity-brew 
tower. 
 
THE SCIENCE AND ART OF BREWING (Draft) 
COURSE DESCRIPTION: 
This is the study of the science/art of brewing ales and lagers.  As a great step for advanced 
homebrewers, several types of brewing methods will be explored and implemented on nano 
brewing systems.  The course will cover formulations of recipes to styles of beer as well as a 
deeper understanding of brewing equipment, malts, grains, hops, and water chemistry.  
Additional topics include brewing ingredients beyond the basics, proper professional service of 
each beer style, and career options in the brewing industry.  Hands-on for all pieces of brewery 
equipment will be established while one small batch of beer will be produced from grain to glass.  
Core competencies will allow successful students to acquire Certification in Brewing.  
 
A variety of Cicerone certifications could also be facilitated. 
 
Capital Requirements: 
 
The brewery laboratory would require approximately $400,000 in initial capital outlays: 
 
Architectural/Engineering:  $  40,000  
Brewhouse Equipment:    $ 208,000  
Build Out/Install:   $ 152,000  
  
Total:     $  400,000 
 
 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions you may have. I am very excited about the 
possibilities of this partnership with the Collins College. 
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Aaron Neilson 
Interim Director, Foundation Dining Services 
 
  

162



bB
0b02E

D
B

E
E

M
I-10112E

brV
II

er,

M
E

M
gpi

11
111,..IIIP

.
hiejoitiithatiiL

e,
I

1=
1

1.
M

O
W

LA
O

.72
0

C
O

M
O

N
O

M

M
V

IT
rE

C
E

IA
DO

D
=

sow
.

tow
oc..c.

C
ID

ones
cvsc_

C
D

untom
au.

C
ID

C
O

IN
.C

lID
N

ot
C

ID
M

O
O

N
O

O
O

X
C

O
D

O
C

K
C

O
1a1C

>
C

O
M

O
O

Z
O

s

cE
D

C
C

D
cLA

E
C

M
O

V
E

alp
cE

D
arc

w
oo

C
ID

A
X

IS
.

kW
IO

W
.

(3)
D

O
M

R
O

C
A

C
ID

m
oo,

cow
%

no
;w

oo:
C

ID
m

esco
D

om
oc)

orocc
ro

cm
W

es
O

N
R

II0
(3Z

)
W

O
O

D
O

M
P

O
O

0020C
ea

icr
C

ID
cc

noac
...A

-oc
cc

cm
..

w
w

oor
caw

coca
K

E
A

I/101E
2

bh.1
12-34

,s1M
A

C

bat/
V

IV
IV

110011
IO

W

3a,M
ere

n...ancao
.00
D

O
C

K
O

C
O

C

O
tt,.

dO
C

K

O
bierV

IM
Is

W
W

2

glA
2C

4.3

163



f1111A
1

:--,
-?!/./

i

U
ILLH

......_

,

C
i

0
0

0

*
[3

01-3

A
/ lop

.,46,

PP

,

.011
0

C
P

4-71
' "if/

A
te

4*

.,/,-..

W
A

PI

-4111..

w
tiiito.

:Ittli
/

i,
gm

,.

i
,.up

..,
ocipi/

ill'IS
N

'cs
4.'4

m
O

-------

K
M

6
tO

C
C

Ial
2

..
O

n
H

E
M

btfO
r

3
a

 
 
 

  

164



rC
ri

r
(
)
7
1
 
'
n
-
1
1

1-
07

)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
A

F
E

'

F
U

T
U

R
E

 R
E

N
T

A
L 

S
P

A
C

E
B

R
E

W
E

R
Y

 L
A

B
O

R
A

T
O

R
Y

k
c
 
/

0
1

C
C

-n

0:
71

1

am
,

 

165



166



Cal Poly Pomona

Foundation

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC. 
Memorandum 
 
Date:  September 20, 2013 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
From:  G. Paul Storey 
  Executive Director 

Chief Financial Officer 
 
Subject: Legal Counsel 
 
Each auxiliary organization of the CSU is required to have the advice and counsel of an attorney. These 
individuals are formally appointed by the auxiliary organization’s governing board and are to be available 
on an on-call basis to respond to concerns of management or the governing board (Education Code 
Section 89900(a) 89903.  The Foundation selected and has used the services of Jaffe D. Dickerson, Littler 
Mendelson, PC for several years. 
 
Because of the complexity of auxiliary organizations, it is desirable to have regular briefings of the 
governing board by an attorney with knowledge of the auxiliary organization provisions of the Education 
Code and the Corporate Code governing nonprofit entities to clarify and update legal responsibilities and 
provide the organization with necessary legal advice in operating the auxiliary as a separate yet integral 
part of the campus community.  
 
At this Board Meeting Mr. Jaffe Dickerson will provide a briefing and respond to any questions related to 
his responsibility as counsel for the Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
. 

167



CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, POMONA

Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors, Number 356

September 26, 2013

General Counsel Presentation

Why an Annual Meeting?

Education Code § 89903: “(b) Each governing board [of a CSU auxiliary organization] shall, 
during each fiscal year, hold at least one business meeting in accordance with [Section 89920 et 
seq., the open meeting law requirements for auxiliary organizations]. The board shall have the 
benefit of the advice and counsel of at least one attorney admitted to practice law in this state and 
at least one licensed certified public accountant.”

What new laws and regulations affect us as Board Members?

1. The Richard McKee Transparency Act of 2011 (Education Code § 89913 et seq.):  “The 
Legislature finds and declares ... Access to information concerning the conduct of the 
people's business is a necessary and fundamental right of every person in this state... 
Access to records used, owned, or maintained by auxiliary organizations must be 
balanced by the need to protect the individual privacy rights of donors and volunteers, 
and to protect an auxiliary organization's fiduciary interests.”  

The Act mirrors most of the access to public records requirements found in the California 
Public Records Act (Government Code § 6250 et seq.), which applies to state and local 
governmental agencies. The McKee Act does allow most Foundation donors to remain 
anonymous (EC § 89916).

2. 5 California Code of Regulations § 42600: “By December 31, 2012, the articles of 
incorporation or constitution of an auxiliary organization shall contain a provision that 
upon dissolution of the organization, net assets, other than trust funds, shall be distributed 
to a successor  approved by the president of the campus and by the Chancellor.”  

Previously this regulation required approval by the campus president and the CSU Board 
of Trustees.  The change required all auxiliary organizations to amend and re-file their 
articles of incorporation with the Secretary of State.

What are “9 Steps To Success” for a Board Member?

1. Keep an exceptional educational experience and maximum career opportunities for 
students as your primary focus.

2. Value, support, and advocate for the Foundation.

168



3. Recognize and respect differences of perspective and style on the Board and amongst 
staff, students and University administration.

4. Act with dignity; treat others with dignity.  
5. Strive for consensus, avoid conflict.
6. Understand the distinctions between Board and staff roles. 
7. Understand that authority rests with the Board as a whole, and not with individuals.
8. Keep confidential matters confidential.
9. Commit the time and energy necessary to be an informed and effective leader.

Have a great year!

Jaffe Dickerson
Littler Mendelson, P.C.

169



Littler
Employment & Labor Law Solutions WorldwideTM

1

Jaffe D. Dickerson

Shareholder

2049 Century Park East
5th Floor
Los Angeles, CA 90067
main: (310) 553-0308
direct: (310) 772-7255
fax: (310) 553-5583
jdickerson@littler.com

Practice Areas

Corporate Compliance and Ethics

Corporate Diversity and Inclusion

Discrimination and Harassment

Higher Education

Workplace Violence Protection

Overview

Jaffe D. Dickerson has been a specialist in the field of labor and employment law for over 30 years and 

represents public and private sector employers in all aspects of labor and employment law before state 

and federal administrative agencies and courts. He also has particular expertise in education law and 

non-profit corporation law, working most often with universities, non-profit organizations, and public and 

private sector employers.

Additionally, Jaffe regularly presents management training programs and advises on specialized areas 

of labor and employment law, including:

 Alternative dispute resolution

 Workplace privacy issues

 Performance evaluation

 Executive employment agreements

 Employment discrimination

 Wrongful termination

 Sexual harassment

He has authored and co-authored numerous articles on labor, employment and education law.

Jaffe joined Littler in 1988 after 11 successful years as university counsel for the California State 

University. He previously served on Littler’s Board of Directors and is the former chair and a founding 

170

mailto:jdickerson@littler.com


Jaffe D. Dickerson

2

member of Littler’s Diversity and Inclusion Council. He also helps employers create diversity programs 

that are legally defensible and monitors their success.

Professional and Community Affiliations

 Member, Labor and Employment Law / Public Law sections - State Bar of California

 Member, Beverly Hills Bar Association

 Member, Los Angeles County Bar Association

 Member, National Association of College and University Attorneys

 Former member, Finance Committee - National Association of College and University 

Attorneys

 Former chair, Finance Committee Subcommittee on Investments - National Association of 

College and University Attorneys

 Former chair, Labor and Employment Section - National Bar Association

 Former member/chair/advisor, Executive Committee, Public Law Section - State Bar of 

California

 Former member/chair/advisor, Executive Committee, Labor and Employment Law Section -

State Bar of California

Recognition

 Recipient,  Public Service Award - Compton Unified School District Education Foundation, 

2010

 Named, Super Lawyer - Southern California, 2010-2014

Education

J.D., Boston College Law School 

B.A., College of the Holy Cross 

Bar Admissions

California

Publications & Press

May 28, 2012

The Returning Veteran: 8 Strategies to Ease Their Return to the Workplace

TLNT

February 15, 2012

The 2011 Global Employer: Highlights of Littler's Fourth Annual Global Employer Institute

Littler Report

171



Jaffe D. Dickerson

3

November 1, 2011

Presenting MCCA’s 2011 Diversity Award Winners

Diversity & the Bar

September 2, 2010

The Tricky Business of Background Checks

Los Angeles Daily Journal

March 31, 2009

Court Curbs NLRB Jurisdiction Over Academic Religious Institutions

Littler ASAP

November 6, 2007

USERRA Protections Have Far-Reaching Implications for Employers

Lawdragon

December 15, 2006

Diversifying Party Politics

Los Angeles Daily Journal

December 15, 2006

Diversifying Party Politics

Los Angles Daily Journal

November 30, 2005

To Blog or Not To Blog

Black Enterprise

Speaking Engagements

August 12, 2013

Retail Employers and Guns in the Workplace

Littler Mendelson Webinar

August 9, 2013

Board Member Orientation

California State Student Association

CSUnity Student Leadership Conference

July 15, 2013

Law and School Violence

3rd Annual Institutes of Higher Education Threat Assessment Training – The Federal Bureau of 

Investigation Los Angeles Field Office and Golden West College, Huntington Beach, CA

May 21, 2013

Guns and the Workplace: Who Speaks for the Employer?

HR.com Webinar

172



Jaffe D. Dickerson

4

May 21, 2013

Increasing your Leadership & Visibility Throughout your Career

2013 Diversity Leadership Summit - California Employment Lawyers Association (CELA)

May 8-10, 2013

Guns and the Workplace: Who Speaks for the Employer?

The 2013 Executive Employer® Conference

April 2013

Preventing Campus Violence: Legal Do’s and Don’ts

5th Annual Violence and Victimization Conference on School Violence - California Lutheran University

2007-2013

Workplace Violence Assessment and Prevention

Biannual Mandatory Training, Rules Committee - California State Assembly

June 14, 2012

Workplace Diversity and Discrimination Claims

Littler Mendelson, Denver, CO

May 10, 2012

Controlling Employee Personal Behavior in the Age of Social Media and Personal Technology?

The 2012 Executive Employer® Conference, Littler Mendelson, Scottsdale, AZ

April 2012

Workplace Violence Assessment & Prevention: What Every Employer Should Know

California Lutheran University

July 2011

Institutes of Higher Education Threat Assessment Training: Legal Requirements and Risk Management

Loyola Marymount University

November 21, 2009

Essential Employment Law Issues for California Businesses

Littler Mendelson, Los Angeles, CA

October 18, 2005

Concepts of Understanding Diversity in the Work Place

Full Three-Day Program, University Professional Development/Training Services - Sacramento State 

University, Sacramento, CA

173



Memorandum   
 
Date:  September 26, 2013  
 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 
 
From:  G. Paul Storey 
  Executive Director  
 
Subject: SODEXO SYSTEMS AGREEMENT FOR DINING SERVICES (UPDATE) 
 
 
The Foundation started a partnership with Sodexo Campus Services (Sodexo) in the 
Spring of 2012. This partnership was to assist in leveraging the purchasing power of our 
Dining Services operations.    
 
The partnership, at the time was the first of its kind in the country, which leveraged 
Sodexo’s $5 billion in purchasing power and allowed access to a broad range of tools, 
services, and expertise included the following:  
 

• Nutritional Analysis 
• Menu management tools 
• Professional dining room graphics for resident dining  
• On-trend recipe database of 6000+ recipes for higher education 
• Menu analysis tools 
• Web menu development with nutritional information 
• In–House brand development 
• Design Services 

 
In order to implement these new systems, Sodexo placed a technician on-site to 
support our purchasing and menu management tasks.  
 
Attached is a summary of the program accomplishments and the plan for the 2013-14 
year. We are still very excited about the partnership and feel there are more 
opportunities to pursue to improve productivity.  
 

 

174



• Los Olivos Enhancements  
 

– Food Production System WITH Recipe Database 
– Nutritional Analysis System 
– Menu Graphics System (Signage w/ nutritional/allergen 

information) 
– Inventory System Integrated with “live” pricing from prime 

vendors 
 

• Food Purchasing Leverage Saved 3.25%, or nearly $49K FY 
2012-2013 
 

• Reduced on-hand inventories freed up an average of $10,950 
in Cash per month  
 

• EcoLab Program saved 10.3% in 2012-2013 , or nearly $5K 
 

• Processed $1.5M in accounts payable on behalf of 
Foundation AP department  

 
 

Sodexo Year in Review 2013 - 2013 

175



New Contract Will Save Us $88k Per Year 
Versus “Doing It Ourselves” 

 
• Newly Renegotiated Contract 

– Annual Costs Estimated:  $86K 
– Continued Annual Cost Savings:  <$55K> 
– Net Annual Cost:   $31,000 
 

• Costs of “Doing It Ourselves”  
– Limited/No Recipe Database 
– Initial Capital Outlay $82,000 
– Annual License Fees $62,000 
– Labor for Database Maintenance/Recipe Writing - 

$45,000 
– DIY Annual Costs (Years 1-7):  $118,714 

Sodexo 2013-2014 

176



Memorandum        
Date:  September 26, 2013 
 
To:  Board of Directors        
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc. 
 

From:  G. Paul Storey  
  Executive Director 

Subject: Compliance Audit Update 
 
Once every three years, the Office of the University Auditor conducts a compliance audit 
(internal audit) of the Foundation as directed by the Committee on Audit of the CSU 
Board of Trustees. The Foundation was notified by e-mail on Wednesday January 23, 
2013 that the compliance audit for the period July 2010 through January 2013 will be 
conducted and a formal letter from the Office of the CSU University Auditor was sent to 
the President a few weeks prior to the start of their fieldwork. 
 
The fieldwork began on Monday March 25, 2013 and concluded on Friday April 26, 
2013. An entrance conference was scheduled for Monday March 25, 2013 and we 
invited the members of the Audit Committee and the Board to attend.  At the entrance 
conference the CSU auditors discussed the scope, objectives, schedule and the process 
of reporting for the compliance audit.  The auditors interviewed key personnel and 
reviewed Federal statutes, California code of regulations, Trustee resolutions, Executive 
Orders, Campus and Foundation policies/practices and sound business practices to 
develop a risk assessment and scope to produce an audit program. 
 
Foundation management and staff completed the process of gathering various 
documents and questionnaires in preparation for the audit.  These documents assisted 
the auditors in evaluating internal controls related to the recording of business 
transactions, safeguarding Foundation assets, compliance with policies and the 
promotion of operational efficiency.   
 
On the last day of the auditor’s fieldwork an informal exit conference was held wherein 
the preliminary observations were presented for further discussion and clarification. The 
auditor’s final report was issued and is available on the Chancellor’s Office website 
at http://www.calstate.edu/audit/Audit_Reports/auxorg/2013/1302AUXORGPOM.pdf and 
includes the following recommendations: 
 
Petty Cash and Change Funds  
Fees, Revenues, and Receivables (Collections and Write-Offs)  
Purchasing and Accounts Payable (Purchase Orders) 
Personnel and Payroll (Student Employees 20 hour approval and  Unclaimed Checks) 
Travel (Indemnification and Waivers) 
Auxiliary Programs (Management’s periodic documentation of Bookstore system reports)  
 
Following is the latest correspondence to the Office of the Auditor whereby we 
communicated that all the above recommendations have been completed.  

 

177

http://www.calstate.edu/audit/Audit_Reports/auxorg/2013/1302AUXORGPOM.pdf


rr;
CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSIT Y, POMONA

Office of the Vice President

for Administrative Affairs

August 26, 2013

Mr. Larry Mandel, University Auditor
Office of the Auditor
The California State University
400 Golden Shore, Suite 210
Long Beach, CA 90802

Dear Mr. Mandel:

Subject: Status Report to Recommendations of Auxiliary Organizations 13-02

Enclosed is California State Polytechnic's status report to the Auxiliary Organizations
Audit 13-02. As supported by the attached documentation, we believe the University has
completed recommendations 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10a and 11. A table is also attached,
summarizing the state of completion in each recommendation.

Please direct questions concerning the response to Darwin Labordo, Associate Vice
President of Finance and Administrative Services and Associate Chief Financial Officer
at 909-869-2008 or dlabordo@csupomona.edu.

Skr(cerely,

Ed . Barnes, III, Vice President
Administrative Affairs

Cc: J. Michael Ortiz, President
Cora Culla, Executiye Director, ASI
Darwin Labordo, Associate Vice President, Finance & Administrative Services
David Prenovost, CFO, Financial Services, Cal Poly Foundation
G. Paul Storey, Executive Director, Cal Poly Foundation
Joice Xiong, University Auditor

Enclosure

3801 West Temple Avenue, Pomona, CA 91768 Telephone (909) 869-3019 Fax (909) 869-4541

THE CALIFORNIA STATE UNIVERSITY Bakergield, Channel Islands, Chico, Domiquez Hills, East Bay, Fresno, Fullerton, Humboldt, Long Beath, Los Atgeles,
Maritime Acaden!y, Montero? Bay, Northridge, Pomona, Sacramento, San Bernardino, San Diego, San Francisco, San Jose, San Luis Obispo, San Marcos, Sonoma, Stanislaus

178



AUXILIARY ORGANIZATIONS

CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY,
POMONA

Status Report 13-02
August 26, 2013

CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.

PETTY CASH AND CHANGE FUNDS

Recommendation 1

We recommend that the Foundation write off the cited petty cash account.

Status Report

The petty cash fund was written off and the account closed during fieldwork. (Attachment A)

Timeline: Completed

FEES, REVENUES, AND RECEIVABLES

COLLECTIONS

Recommendation 2

We recommend that the Foundation:

a. Perform and document collection and follow-up activity for delinquent accounts receivable to
facilitate collection or support account write-off.

b. Periodically review and validate supporting documentation for long-outstanding accounts
receivable.

Status Report

We have developed procedures to perform and document collection and follow-up activities and
periodically review and validate long-outstanding accounts receivable. As a result, we have written
off the appropriate accounts receivables. (Attachment B)

Timeline: Completed

Page 1 of 4

179



WRITE-OFFS

Recommendation 3

We recommend that the Foundation reiterate to project managers that uncollectible receivables must
be written off in a timely manner.

Status Report

We have reiterated to project managers that uncollectible receivables must be written off in a timely
manner. We have written off the affected accounts receivables. (Attachment C)

Timeline: Completed

PURCHASING AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

PURCHASE ORDERS

Recommendation 4

We recommend that the Foundation investigate and resolve open purchase orders in a timely manner.

Status Report

We have developed procedures to investigate and resolve open purchase orders. We have cleared the
affected open purchase orders. (Attachment D)

Timeline: Completed

UNCLAIMED CHECKS

Recommendation 5

We recommend that the Foundation promptly escheat the cited unclaimed checks to the state.

Status Report

We have escheated the unclaimed checks. (Attachment E)

Timeline: Completed

TRAVEL

Recommendation 6

Page 2 of 4

180



We recommend that the Foundation reiterate to project managers that properly completed release
forms or waivers are to be obtained from all students traveling by air.

Status Report

We have reiterated to project managers to complete release forms and waivers. (Attachment F)

Timeline: Completed

PERSONNEL AND PAYROLL

Recommendation 7

We recommend that the Foundation monitor and document approval for student employees working
more than 20 hours per week.

Status Report

We have developed procedures to monitor and document approval for student employees working
more than 20 hours per week. (Attachment G)

Timeline: Completed

AUXILIARY PROGRAMS

Recommendation 8

We recommend that the Foundation document periodic management review of bookstore system
monitoring reports.

Status Report

We have developed procedures to document periodic review of bookstore system monitoring reports.
(Attachment H)

Timeline: Completed

ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INCORPORATED

CASH RECEIPTS AND HANDLING

Recommendation 10

We recommend that ASI:

a. Update cash handling procedures to reflect current operations.

Page 3 of 4

181



b. Include an independent cash count of each cashier's opening bank in daily cash register opening
procedures.

c. Include an independent count of each cash bag in daily cash register close-out procedures.

d. Independently reconcile daily sales receipts for the last shift of the day before cash is dropped in
the safe for deposit.

Status Report

a) ASI updated the cash handling procedures in the Bronco Fitness Center (Attachment I).

Timeline: August 31, 2013.

FEES, REVENUES, AND RECEIVABLES

Recommendation 11

We recommend that ASI reiterate to staff that collection and follow-up activity for delinquent
accounts receivable must be performed and documented to facilitate collection or support timely
account write-off.

Status Report

ASI began performing and documenting the collection and follow-up activity for delinquent accounts
receivable to support the timely account write-off effective April 30, 2013. (Attachment J)

Timeline: Completed

Page 4 of 4

182



CALIFORNIA STATE POLYTECHNIC UNIVERSITY, POMONA
Auxiliary Organizations

Status Report, August 26, 2013

Recommendation
Number Description Completed

In
Progress

Expected
Completion

CPP FOUNDATION

1 Petty Cash and Change Funds X Completed

2
Fees, Revenues, and Receivables
Collections X Completed

3

Fees, Revenues, and Receivables
Write Offs X Completed

4
Purchasing and Accounts Payable
Purchase Orders X Completed

5

Purchasing and Accounts Payable
Unclaimed Checks X Completed

Completed6

Purchasing and Accounts Payable
Travel X

7 Personnel and Payroll X Completed

8 Auxiliary Programs X Completed

ASSOCIATED STUDENTS, INCORPORATED

October 31, 2013

10 Cash Receipts and Handling October 31, 2013

11 Fees, Revenues, and Receivables X Completed

183



Memorandum   
 
Date:  September 26, 2013 
  
 
To:  Board of Directors 
  Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.       
 
          
From:  G. Paul Storey 
  Executive Director 
  
Subject: Status Report on the 2013-2014 Board-approved  

Capital Improvement Program 
 
We are delivering a status update on the Foundation progress related to the 2013-2014 Board 
approved capital improvement budget as reflected in the attachment.  The Cal Poly Pomona 
Foundation Capital Improvement Program included $3,824,500 in 2013-14 for new capital 
improvement requests, and $488,503 in capital improvement carry forward from prior years. 

 

184



Prior Proposed Proposed  
Years Detail Total  

Remaining 2013-14 2013-14 Directors Update - September 2013
Enterprise Activities

Foundation Housing

University Village 235,303        696,000        Security camera system replacement ($100,000), Security gate system replacement 
($80,000), Refurbish Phase II ($155,000), Bathroom vanities Phases I and II 
($61,000), Kitchen cabinets Phase II ($275,000), Carpet replacement- various apts 
($25,000)

Security Camera system-In Process of 
Completion-Expected Date: 10/1; 
Security gate system replacement 
Expected Date: 10/1; Phase II 
Paint/refurbish completed 9/1: 
bathroom vanity project postponed; 
kitchen cabinet replacment completed 
9/1; carpet replacement by 10/1

Total Foundation Housing 696,000     
Bronco Bookstore

Bookstore -               40,000          40,000       Sales floor space ($30,000), Repair atrium doors ($10,000)
 Doors repaired by Sep 20; sales floor 
space by Sep 26 

Dining Services

Dining 16,000          147,500        

 POS upgrade ($10,000), Bldg 97 generator hookup ($18,000), Bldg 97 lighting retro 
($60,000), Bldg 97 fire alarm ($30,000), Kikka workstation ($4,500), Mobile 
implementation project ($10,000), Jamba Juice equipment ($15,000) 

POS Upgrade complete, generator 
hookup complete, Kikka POS 
Complete, Mobile implementation 
(Food Truck) 90% (Testing tablet 
now)

ENV Café 5,000            Tables and chairs for patio with umbrellas
Found some umbrellas on campus, 
tables/chairs deferred.

Vending 50,000          Shop 24 infrastructure
Will be complete by end of September 
2013

Los Olivos 229,000        
 Server refresh- counters, floor, abatement, cabinets, paint, lights, add vegan 
station, ceiling In Process, targeted 9/18 completion.

Vista Market 10,600          
Magellan 8405 scanner/scale, sapphire glass, produce rail ($4,600), Office space 
optimization ($6,000) Complete

Kellogg West Dining 234,000        
Truck ($15,000), Walk in doors, paint kitchen and PDR's, stone tops for 2 cabinets, 
curtains for dining room, upgrades to dining area ($219,000)

Complete with the exception of 
staining new doors.

Subway 5,400            Turbo chef oven
 Complete. Transferred old oven to LO 
for Deli 

Round Table Pizza 18,000          Install booths  Will be complete by 9/15/13. 
Taco Bell 23,000          Brand refresh- license fees, prepare for new contract  80% Complete 
Total Dining Services 717,500     

Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge  
Kellogg West Rooms & 
Conference 1,000,000      Crestview Bldg 77 exterior and courtyard update

Completed by 10/1 with the exception 
of pool decking

Total Kellogg West 1,000,000  
Facilities

Facilities -               No capital budget requested N/A
Total Facilities -            

Real Estate Activities

CTTI  Buildings 13,000          192,000        
Patch & paint exterior ($110,000), LED wall lights ($11,000), Repair and resurface 
decks and stairways ($63,000), HVAC compressor replacement ($8,000)

Work beginning 9/14 – cost below 
budget $90,000 including decks.  Wall 
lights on order and on budget, HVAC 
compressor replacement likely in the 
next few months.

                                                                                       CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
                                                                                        2013-14 PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET

185



Prior Proposed Proposed  
Years Detail Total  

Remaining 2013-14 2013-14 Directors Update - September 2013

                                                                                       CAL POLY POMONA FOUNDATION, INC.
                                                                                        2013-14 PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET

Innovation Village 50,000          Master planning consultant fees
Master planning for Spadra 
100%complete

Bldg 97 31,000          Fire alarm system replacement Not yet scheduled

Bldg 66 52,000          
Exterior paint ($17,000), Energy management system ($7,000), Fan motor 
replacement ($10,000), Atrium furniture and trash containers ($8,000), Door repair 
($10,000)

Exterior paint complete right on 
budget.  EM system, door repair by 
Sep 20; furniture not yet started, fan 
motor not needed yet.

Total Real Estate Activities 325,000     
College of Ag

Spadra/Westwind Ranch 59,000          Pickup truck ($29,000), John Deere Gator ($15,000), Tropic Breeze wind machine 
R/R ($15,000) Activity has not commenced

Pine Tree Ranch 77,000          60,000          Repairs to residence/Phase 2 Activity has not commenced
Farm Store 55,000          255,000        Re-location of Farm Store entrance Activity has not commenced
Arabian Horse Center 50,000          Digital X-ray machine Activity has not commenced
Vet Clinic 80,000          Stationary X-ray machine Activity has not commenced

 504,000     
College of Science

Chemistry Agilent Project 10,000          -            Computer Equipment
College of Extended University

CPELI Standard 310,000        
310,000     

48'x60' modular building ($165,000), Concrete slab ($75,000), Signage for building 
and CPELI complex area ($50,000),  Electrical, plumbing, and utility set up 
($20,000) Activity has not commenced

Administration 
Human Resources 12,000          3 Kronos touch terminals Purchase by 12/1
Marketing 10,000          Wide format printer z6200 Purchase by 11/1
Admin 15,000          70,000          Bldg 55 HVAC units ($60,000), Exterior paint Bldg 55 ($10,000) HVAC and exterior panting by 12/1

Management Info Systems 45,000          
Kronos updates- expansion of services and upgrade from 6.1 to 6.3. Wrap up 
interface work related to upgrade

90% complete, waiting on final VPN 
connection to go live on the cloud, 
scheduled for 9/18

Management Info Systems 15,000          
SAN storage expansion- to ensure adequate space for disaster recovery, disk-to-
disk recovery and anticipated growth in data services

Waiting for completion of One Solution 
upgrade in October before initiating

Management Info Systems 15,000          
Disaster recovery equipment migration to hosted- project costs for the movement of 
equipment and services to co-location and sync DR data

Quote has been developed from 
Exagrid and scheduled for review

Management Info Systems 12,200          
Disk to Disk Back-up solution- For enterprise backup and recover as well as 
disaster recovery capability

Disk-to-disk backup has been 
integrated into the DR project for 
efficiency

Management Info Systems 15,000          
Mobile device lab- preproduction testing environment to provide mobile file access 
and security improvements To be initiated in January 2014

Management Info Systems 30,000          
VM VDI hardware/software purchases- to expand virtual desktops to reduce desktop 
hardware costs

Will be started pending completion of 
One Solution upgrade

Management Info Systems 50,000          
OneSolution/Endowment Software Upgrade- To provide more efficient processing of 
donations and endowments

70% complete, Webforms, Mock go-
live done, pending Cognos training 
and RC testing to remain on track

Management Info Systems 20,000          Security log monitoring software Pending close of PCI Gap Analysis
    
Total Administration 232,000     

Prior Years and Proposed Capital Budg 488,503        3,824,500  

Total Prior Years and Proposed Capital Budget 4,313,003  

Note - the proposed capital budget assumes funding of $1,309,000 from the Capital Reserve, $229,000 from the Residential Board Meal Program
Surplus Reserve and $1,104,997 from the operations of the units.

186



ft

I

187



40

I II

188



lit
aN

S,
 X

F

11
11

11
11

11

189



190



191



192



The Connedwit5 Tkat Count

NACAS
FALL 2013

he Magazine Connect' g College Auxiliary Services Professionals

RHEIN
OCTOSER
27-3012013
ANAHEIM MARRIOTT HOTEL

ANAHEIM, CA

INSIDE:

General
Sessions, Big

Ideas
PAGE 13

Learn From
Your CA

Colleagues:
Take a

Campus Tour
PAGE 28

MAKING T DAY'S DREA Exhibit Hall
Connections

PAGE 34
193



11. A CAMPUS TOURS

TAKE A TO
Don't miss this opportunity to observe some

auxiliary best practkes in action during the

campus tours as part of NACAS 2013. There

is so much to see and experience at these

beautiful institutionsl All tours require pre-

registration. Register for the tours when

you register for the conference, If you have

already registered for the conference and

would like to add a campus tour, please print

a registration form to provide payment and

note which event you'd like to attend.

CAMPUS TOURS
NACAS 45th

Annual Conference

Oct. 27-30, 2013

Tuesday, Oct. 29

1:30 p.m. - 6 p.m.

CAL POLY POMONA
Striking a balance between urban excitement and

rural charm, Cal Poly Pomona, one of only seven

polytechnic universities nationwide, covers 1,438
acres and is the second largest in area among the

California State University's 23 campuses. More

than 3,000 faculty and staff support the education
of 21,000 students.

In support of the polytechnic learn-by-doing phi-
losophy, Innovation Village Research Park seeks to

establish a world-class research and development

environment for public-private partnerships. The
leaders of tomorrow's industries exchange new
ideas and work together with the campus com-
munity in creating new foundations for the future.

Aside from traditional classroom instruction,
College of Agriculture students have the oppor-
tunity to learn everything about food production
from start to finish using the latest technology on
the Cal Poly Pomona fields, facilities and in the

greenhouses. All products from student enterprise
projects eventually end up for sale in the Farm
Store at Kellogg Ranch.

ATTENDEES WILL:
Observe public-private partnerships at their fin-

est by touring Innovation Village Research Park.

Innovation Village partners include Souther
California Edison and the American Red Cross.

Gain insights from university-auxiliary partnership
at the Farm Store at Kellogg Ranch and learn hol.

campus grown and raised products can be use,
in commercial units and in student meal plans.

Tour the Arabian Horse Center, home to approx
mately 85 purebred Arabian horses used in Equin

Sciences' teachings, outreach, research and intel

nationally recognized breeding and training prc
grams. Student employees and volunteers play a

important role in center activities, connecting wit

the surrounding community.

Tour traditional retail locations including the bool4

store, dining service operations, and the Kellog,
West Conference Center and Hotel as part of th

support offered to students, faculty, staff and vis,
tors to the university.

ElCOLLEGE SERVICES I FALL 2013 194



CAMPUS TOURS

TAKE A TOUR
on't miss this opportunity to observe some

uxiliary best practices in action during the

3mpus tours as part of NACAS 2013. There

so much to see and experience at these

eautiful institutions! AU tours require pre-

?gistration. Register for the tours when

DU register for the conference. If you have

'ready registered for the conference and

,ould like to add a campus tour, please print

registration form to provide payment and
ote which event you'd like to attend.

CAMPUS TOURS
NACAS 45th

Annual Conference

Oct. 27-30, 2013

Tuesday, Oct. 29

1:30 p.m. 6 p.m.

CAL POLY POMONA
Striking a balance between urban excitement and

rural charm, Cal Poly Pomona, one of only seven

polytechnic universities nationwide, covers 1,438
acres and is the second largest in area among the

California State University's 23 campuses. More
than 3,000 faculty and staff support the education

of 21,000 students.

In support of the polytechnic learn-by-doing phi-
losophy, Innovation Village Research Park seeks to

establish a world-class research and development

environment for public-private partnerships. The
leaders of tomorrow's industries exchange new
ideas and work together with the campus corn-
munity in creating new foundations for the future.

Aside from traditional classroom instruction,
College of Agriculture students have the oppor-
tunity to learn everything about food production
from start to finish using the latest technology on
the Cal Poly Pomona fields, facilities and in the
greenhouses. All products from student enterprise
projects eventually end up for sale in the Farm

Store at Kellogg Ranch.

ATTENDEES WILL:
Observe public-private partnerships at their fin-
est by touring Innovation Village Research Park.

Innovation Village partners include Southern
California Edison and the American Red Cross.

Gain insights from university-auxiliary partnerships
at the Farm Store at Kellogg Ranch and learn how

campus grown and raised products can be used
in commercial units and in student meal plans.

Tour the Arabian Horse Center, home to approxi-

mately 85 purebred Arabian horses used in Equine

Sciences' teachings, outreach, research and inter-

nationally recognized breeding and training pro-
grams. Student employees and volunteers play an

important role in center activities, connecting with

the surrounding community.

Tour traditional retail locations including the book-

store, dining service operations, and the Kellogg
West Conference Center and Hotel as part of the

support offered to students, faculty, staff and visi-

tors to the university.

COLLEGE SERVICES I FALL 2013

CLAREMONT UNIVERSITY
CONSORTIUM
A visit to The Claremont Colleges is a visit to eight

institutions at once. Through a combination of
discussions, bus tour, and visits to the Huntley
Bookstore, and "Connection"-the ID card, copy,

mail, discount ticket, laundry/dry cleaning services
and café one-stop in the library-participants will
learn about and see six of the seven colleges plus

The Claremont University Consortium, which is
the central support and services institution of the
colleges. Additionally, we will briefly discuss the

Association for Collaborative Leadership (ACL), which

is headquartered at CUC, and offers support (much

like NACAS) for hundreds of formal institutional

UNIVERSITY OF
CALIFORNIA IRVINE
In 2012, UC Irvine (UCI) ranked first in the U.S. and

fourth in the world among the 100 best universi-
ties less than 50 years old, according to an analy-

sis by Times Higher Education. In 2013, Kiplinger
ranked UCI 16th out of the top 100 best-value
public colleges and universities in the nation.
What is University of California Irvine's secret?
UCI constantly and consistently strives to provide
students with high quality, service excellence. And

most importantly the school strives to provide
great value in every area of student life. UCI seeks

innovative partnerships that assist the University

in achieving their goal of providing an exceptional

student experience.

ATTENDEES WILL:
Learn how UCI's Hospitality Service intentionally
selected a dining retail brand portfolio to drive

revenue growth by exceeding expectations and
delivering a consistently exceptional customer
experience.They implemented a data-driven mar-

ket research process coupled with industry data
and trends to increase the probability of success.

collaborations around the world (many NACAS mem-

bers are also members of ACL). The tour will include a

visit to one institution which was named by Forbes as

one of the five most beautiful campuses in the world

(you'll have to take the tour to find out which one!).

ATTENDEES WILL:
Learn the very unique way that seven colleges and

one support institution, sharing one footprint,
work together to offer "the inestimable personal
values of the small college and the facilities of

the great university" through shared resources,
cross-registrations and inter-campus social and

educational opportunities, following the original
Oxford-Cambridge Model.

Visit the newly renovated and
expanded Student Center where
careful and intentional selection and

placement of a variety of regional,
national and proprietary dining retail

brands increased revenue by 125 per-

cent since opening in 2008.

Visit Vista del Campo, which opened
in 2004 and Camino del Sol, which
opened in 2010 as part of a public/

private partnership with American
Campus Communities (ACC). At these

properties, participants will tour
the Community Center's common
area amenities, see a typical apart-
ment and see a brief demonstra-
tion of ACC's "Virtual Leasing Tool."

American Campus Communities has

developed and now manages four
distinct apartment communities on
the UCI Campus, totaling 1,753 units

and 5,158 beds, comprising nearly
40 percent of the university's total

housing stock. 6

Learn how The Claremont Colleges and CUC hav

integrated several student services includin .
library, café, copy, ID card and laundry service
into one convenient stop for students, facult
and staff.

Observe how all seven educational institution.

including five undergraduate colleges and tw
graduate schools share one bookstore, on
library, one student health service, and man
other resources. The colleges include Pomon

College, Claremont Graduate University, Scripp
College, Claremont McKenna College, Harve
Mudd College, Pitzer College and Keck Grad uat

Institute for Applied Sciences.

Photo by UC Irvine Communications.

CThe Connections That Count I www.nacas.org
'

195


	02C_Fdn BOD Mtg Sched 2013-14.pdf
	“Quality Service Supporting Quality Education”

	02D 2013-14 Committee Assignments.pdf
	Quality Service Supporting Quality Education

	02D State Preschool Audit Resolution 2012-2013.pdf
	Memorandum
	To:  Board of Directors
	Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
	From:  David F. Prenovost
	Senior Managing Director/Chief Financial Officer

	02E1 Investment 4th Q backup docs.pdf
	DashBoard Rpt
	02b Investments 4Q 2012-13 - 2nd page to print.pdf
	June 13 General Portfolio


	02F Financial Highlights - 2012-13.pdf
	Memorandum
	Senior Managing Director/CFO
	Subject: FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS – FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 2012-13

	02F1 Fin Highlights backup docs.pdf
	0613
	07b Debt Service.pdf
	debt coverage  12-13 & 13-14 

	07c Reserve Analysis.pdf
	Sheet1


	02G Real Estate Acquisition and Development Policy 123 Cover Letter.pdf
	Memorandum
	Date:  September 26, 2013

	02H Minimum Authorized Signatures Policy 122 Cover Letter.pdf
	Memorandum
	Date:  September 26, 2013

	03A Fin & Single Audit Resolution 12-13.pdf
	Memorandum
	Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
	From:  David Prenovost
	Senior Managing Director/CFO

	03B Endowment Distribution - Cover letter.pdf
	Memorandum
	To:  Board of Directors
	Cal Poly Pomona Foundation, Inc.
	From:  G. Paul Storey
	Executive Director

	03B1 Endowment spending.pdf
	Chart Corpus & Values
	03b Endowment Portfolio Analysis with Percentage of Distribution.pdf
	Chart Distributions


	03C 2013 Budget Amendment Brewery Pub.pdf
	Memorandum
	From:  G. Paul Storey

	VA Legal Counsel.pdf
	Memorandum
	Date:  September 17, 2013

	VB Sodexo Agreement Update.pdf
	Memorandum
	From:  G. Paul Storey
	Executive Director

	VB1 Sodexo update 2013.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2

	VC CSU Compliance Audit Update cover ltr.pdf
	Memorandum
	From:  G. Paul Storey
	Subject: Compliance Audit Update

	VD 2013-2014 Capital Request-Updates.pdf
	Memorandum

	0 Agenda 356.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS


	VD1 Capital Budget 13_14 First Page DONE_1__ADD THIS NOW.pdf
	Capital Bud Sum 13-14

	0 Agenda 356.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS


	0 Agenda 356.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS


	0 Agenda 356.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS


	0 Agenda 356.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS


	0 Agenda 356_new.pdf
	2:00 pm – Garden Vista Room @ Kellogg West Conference Center & Lodge
	IV. DISCUSSION ITEMS





